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Item 8.01 Other Events.

Leggett & Platt, Incorporated (the “Company”) is making this filing to update the presentation of certain financial information and related disclosures contained
in its Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2020 (the “2020 Form 10-K”) to reflect a change from last-in, first-out ("LIFO") to the first-in, first-out
("FIFO") inventory cost method.

Beginning with the first quarter 2021 Form 10-Q, we changed our method for valuing certain inventories (primarily domestic steel-related inventories, largely
in the Bedding Products and Furniture, Flooring & Textile Products segments) to the FIFO cost method from the LIFO cost method. We believe that this
change in accounting is preferable as it more closely resembles the physical flow of inventory, is a more consistent method to value inventory across our
businesses, and results in improved comparability with industry peers. After this change, we no longer utilize the LIFO cost method; the majority of our
inventories are now valued using the FIFO method, with the remainder valued using an average-cost method.

Prior to 2019, the LIFO inventories represented approximately 50% of our inventories. With the acquisition of Elite Comfort Solutions, Inc. ("ECS") in the first
quarter of 2019, LIFO inventories decreased to roughly 40%, as ECS did not utilize the LIFO method. At December 31, 2020, our LIFO inventories were lower
than historical levels and represented about one-third of our total inventories. This was due to the sharp increase in demand that began in the second quarter of
2020 and several divestitures and closures of operations using the LIFO cost method in the last three years.

With the change from LIFO to FIFO, we expect to make tax payments of $21 million, in the aggregate, during the years 2021- 2023 based on current tax rates.
This change will also increase our reported working capital. Our LIFO reserve at December 31, 2020 was $55 million and has averaged approximately $60
million over the last four years. When the LIFO reserve is eliminated, the book value of our inventory will increase. Our days inventory outstanding ("DIO")
under the LIFO cost method for the year ended December 31, 2020 was 69 days compared to 74 days under the FIFO method.

The exhibits to this Form 8-K supersede and replace the following items in the 2020 Form 10-K to reflect, retrospectively, the adjustments resulting from the
elimination of LIFO for all periods presented. The retrospectively adjusted items are attached as Exhibits 99.1, 99.2 and 99.3 and are incorporated herein by
reference.

. Exhibit 99.1 - Item 6. Revised Selected Financial Data
. Exhibit 99.2 - Item 7. Revised Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
. Exhibit 99.3 - Item 15(a). Revised Financial Statements and Financial Statement Schedule (including but not limited to revisions to Note A —

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies; Note C - Impairment Charges; Note E - Restructuring and
Restructuring-Related Charges; Note F — Segment Information; Note G — Earnings Per Share; Note H - Accounts
and Other Receivables; Note N — Income Taxes; Note O - Other (Income) Expense; Note R - Acquisitions; and the
Quarterly Summary of Earnings.

The information related to the elimination of the LIFO inventory methodology contained in this Form 8-K supersedes what was in the 2020 Form 10-K. All
other information in the 2020 Form 10-K remains unchanged and has not been otherwise updated for transactions, events, or trends occurring, or risks and
uncertainties arising after, the filing of the 2020 Form 10-K. For developments since the filing of the 2020 Form 10-K, please refer to the Company’s Form 10-
Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2021, as well as other filings the Company files with the SEC. The information in this Current Report on Form 8-K
should be read in conjunction with the 2020 Form 10-K and such subsequent filings.

FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Current Report on Form 8-K, including the exhibits hereto, and our other public disclosures, whether written or oral, may contain “forward-looking™
statements including, but not limited to: the profitable growth and operating performance of the Company; projections of Company revenue, income, earnings,
capital expenditures, dividends, capital structure, cash from operations, cash repatriation, restructuring and related costs, tax impacts or other financial items,
effective tax rate; maintenance of indebtedness under the commercial paper program; litigation exposure; our ability to deleverage; possible plans, goals,
objectives, prospects, strategies, or trends concerning future operations; statements concerning future economic performance, possible goodwill or other asset
impairment; access to liquidity; compliance with the debt covenant requirements; amount of fixed cost savings; raw material availability and pricing; supply
chain disruptions; labor, nonwoven fabric, microchips, and chemical shortages; employee termination costs; and the underlying assumptions relating to the
forward-looking statements. These statements are identified either by the context in which they appear or by use of words such as “anticipate,” “believe,”

“estimate,” “expect,” “guidance,” “intend,” “may,” “plan,” “project,” “should,” or the like. All such forward-looking
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statements, whether written or oral, and whether made by us or on our behalf, are expressly qualified by the cautionary statements described in this provision.

Any forward-looking statement reflects only the beliefs of the Company or its management at the time the statement is made. Because all forward-looking
statements deal with the future, they are subject to risks, uncertainties, and developments which might cause actual events or results to differ materially from
those envisioned or reflected in any forward-looking statement. Moreover, we do not have, and do not undertake, any duty to update or revise any forward-
looking statement to reflect events or circumstances after the date on which the statement was made. For all of these reasons, forward-looking statements
should not be relied upon as a prediction of actual future events, objectives, strategies, trends, or results.

Readers should review Item 1A Risk Factors in our most recently filed Form 10-K and Form 10-Q for a description of important factors that could cause actual
events or results to differ materially from forward-looking statements. It is not possible to anticipate and list all risks, uncertainties, and developments which
may affect our future operations or our performance, or which otherwise may cause actual events or results to differ materially from forward-looking
statements. However, the known material risks and uncertainties include the following:

« the adverse impact on our trade sales, earnings, liquidity, cash flow, and financial condition caused by the COVID-19 pandemic which has had and,
depending on the length and severity of the pandemic and the timing and effectiveness of any vaccines, could continue, in varying degrees, to
negatively impact, among other things (i) the demand for our products and our customers’ products, growth rates in the industries in which we
participate, and opportunities in those industries; (ii) our manufacturing facilities’ ability to remain fully operational, obtain necessary raw materials
and parts, maintain appropriate labor levels, and ship finished products to customers; (iii) operating costs related to pay and benefits for our
terminated employees; (iv) our ability to collect trade and other notes receivables in accordance with their terms due to customer bankruptcy,
financial difficulties or insolvency; (v) impairment of goodwill and long-lived assets; (vi) restructuring and related costs; and (vii) our ability to
borrow under our revolving credit facility, including our ability to comply with the restrictive covenants in our credit facility that may limit our
operational flexibility and our ability to pay our debt when it comes due;

« inability to “deleverage” after the ECS acquisition, due to increases or decreases in our capital needs, which may vary depending on a variety of factors,
including, without limitation, demand for our products, cash flow, any acquisition or divestiture activity, our working capital needs, and capital
expenditures;

* our ability to manage working capital;

« adverse changes in consumer confidence, housing turnover, employment levels, interest rates, trends in capital spending, and the like;

» factors that could impact raw materials and other costs, including the availability and pricing of steel scrap and rod, chemicals, nonwoven fabrics,
microchips, the availability of labor, wage rates, and energy costs;

« our ability to pass along raw material cost increases through increased selling prices;

* price and product competition from foreign (particularly Asian and European) and domestic competitors;

+ our ability to maintain profit margins if our customers change the quantity and mix of our components in their finished goods;

* our ability to access the commercial paper market;

« the speed at which vaccines for the COVID-19 virus are administered, the percentage of the population vaccinated, and the effectiveness of those
vaccines;

» our ability to maintain and grow the profitability of acquired companies;

« adverse changes in political risk, and U.S. or foreign laws, regulations, or legal systems (including tax law changes);

« cash generation sufficient to pay the dividend;

« our ability to realize deferred tax assets on our balance sheet;

* cash repatriation from offshore accounts;

« tariffs imposed by the U.S. government that result in increased costs of imported raw materials and products that we purchase;

» our ability to maintain the proper functioning of our internal business processes and information systems through technology failures or otherwise;

« our ability to avoid modification or interruption of our information systems, including our industrial control systems, through cybersecurity breaches;

« the loss of business with one or more of our significant customers;

« our ability to comply with environmental, social, and governance responsibilities;

« litigation risks related to various contingencies including antitrust, intellectual property, contract disputes, product liability and warranty, taxation,
environmental, and workers’ compensation expense;

* our borrowing costs and access to liquidity resulting from credit rating changes;

* business disruptions to our steel rod mill;
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« risks related to operating in foreign countries, including, without limitation, credit risks, ability to enforce intellectual property rights, currency exchange
rate fluctuations, industry labor strikes, increased customs and shipping rates, inconsistent interpretation, and enforcement of foreign laws;

* risks relating to the United Kingdom’s exit from the European Union (commonly known as “Brexit”);

« the continued effectiveness and enforcement of anti-dumping and countervailing duties on the import of innersprings, steel wire rod, and finished
mattresses;

+ our ability to comply with privacy and data protection regulations; and

* our ability to comply with climate change laws and regulations.

MARKET AND INDUSTRY DATA

Unless we indicate otherwise, we base the information concerning our markets/industry contained herein on our general knowledge of and expectations
concerning those markets/industry, on data from various industry analyses, on our internal research, and on adjustments and assumptions that we believe to be
reasonable. However, we have not independently verified data from market/industry analyses and cannot guarantee their accuracy or completeness.

Item 9.01 Financial Statements and Exhibits.

d) Exhibits.
EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit No. Description

23* Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

99.1* Item 6. Revised Selected Financial Data retrospectively adjusted for the LIFO to FIFO accounting change for all periods
presented

99.2* Item 7. Revised Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations retrospectively
adjusted for the LIFO to FIFO accounting_change

99.3* Item 15(a). Revised Financial Statements and Financial Statement Schedule retrospectively adjusted for the LIFO to FIFO
accounting change for the fiscal years ended 2020, 2019, and 2018

101.INS Inline XBRL Instance Document (the instance document does not appear in the Interactive Data File because its XBRL tags
are embedded within the Inline XBRL document)

101.SCH*,** Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema

101.CAL*** Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase

101.DEF*,** Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase

101.LAB*** Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase

101.PRE*** Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase

104 Cover Page Interactive Data File (the cover page interactive data file does not appear in the Interactive Data File because its tags are

embedded within the Inline XBRL document contained in Exhibit 101)

* Denotes filed herewith.

** Filed as Exhibit 101 to this report are the following formatted in Inline XBRL (eXtensible Business Reporting Language): (i) Consolidated Statements of
Operations for each year in the three year period ended December 31, 2020; (ii) Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss) for each year in the
three year period ended December 31, 2020; (iii) Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019; (iv) Consolidated Statements of
Cash Flows for each year in the three year period ended December 31, 2020; (v) Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity for each year in the three year
period ended December 31, 2020; and (vi) Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.



SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned hereunto duly authorized.

LEGGETT & PLATT, INCORPORATED

Date: May 25, 2021 By: /s/ SCOTT S. DOUGLAS
Scott S. Douglas
Senior Vice President -
General Counsel & Secretary




EXHIBIT 23

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements on Form S-8 (Nos. 333-157536, 333-166960,
333-181432, 333-203992, 333-203995, 333-210077, 333-228189, 333-253875) of Leggett & Platt, Incorporated of our report dated
February 24, 2021, except with respect to our opinion on the consolidated financial statements insofar as it relates to the change in
the manner in which the company accounts for inventory discussed in Note A, as to which the date is May 25, 2021, relating to the
financial statements and financial statement schedule and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, which appears
in this Current Report on Form 8-K.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
St. Louis, Missouri
May 25, 2021



EXHIBIT 99.1

Item 6. Selected Financial Data.

As of January 1, 2021, we changed our method for valuing certain inventories (primarily domestic steel-related inventories) to the FIFO cost
method from the LIFO cost method. The effects of this change have been retrospectively applied to all periods presented. See Note A on page
11 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Exhibit 99.3 attached to this Form 8-K for additional information.

(Unaudited) 20201 2019 2 2018 3 2017 % 2016 °

(Dollar amounts in millions, except per share data)

Summary of Operations

Net Trade Sales from Continuing

Operations $ 4,280 $ 4,753 $ 4,270 $ 3,944 $ 3,750
Earnings from Continuing
Operations 253 314 324 308 375
Earnings (loss) from Discontinued
Operations, net of tax — — — Q) 19
Net Earnings attributable to Leggett
& Platt, Inc. common shareholders 253 314 324 307 394
Earnings per share from Continuing
Operations
Basic 1.86 2.33 2.41 2.27 2.72
Diluted 1.86 2.32 2.39 2.25 2.68

Earnings (Loss) per share from
Discontinued Operations

Basic — — — (.01) 14

Diluted — — — (.01) 14
Net Earnings per share

Basic 1.86 2.33 2.41 2.26 2.86

Diluted 1.86 2.32 2.39 2.24 2.82
Cash Dividends declared per share 1.60 1.58 1.50 1.42 1.34

Summary of Financial Position

Total Assets

Long-term Debt, including finance
leases $ 1,849 $ 2,067 $ 1,168 $ 1,098 $ 956

All amounts are presented after tax.

1 Earnings from Continuing Operations for 2020 includes a $25 million goodwill impairment charge; a $6 million charge for note
impairment; a $3 million stock write-off from a prior year divestiture; a $6 million charge for restructuring; and decreases from the impact
of lower sales, primarily from pandemic-related economic declines across most of our businesses.

4,800 $ 4,855 $ 3,448 $ 3,593 $ 3,012

L

2 In January 2019, we acquired ECS for approximately $1.25 billion and increased our debt levels as discussed in Note R on page 55 and
Note J on page 33 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Exhibit 99.3 attached to this Form 8-K. Earnings from
Continuing Operations for 2019 includes a $9 million charge for restructuring; and a $1 million charge for ECS transaction costs.

3 Earnings from Continuing Operations for 2018 includes a $19 million charge for restructuring; a $12 million charge for note impairment; a
$6 million charge for ECS transaction costs; and a $2 million benefit associated with Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (TCJA).

4 Earnings from Continuing Operations for 2017 includes a $50 million charge associated with TCJA; $13 million of net gains on sales of a
business and real estate; an $8 million tax benefit from a divestiture; a $10 million pension settlement charge; and a $3 million charge for
an impairment of a wire business.

5 Earnings from Continuing Operations for 2016 includes $17 million of gains on sales of businesses; a $3 million goodwill impairment
charge; and a $5 million gain on a foam litigation settlement. Discontinued operations primarily consists of a gain on a foam litigation
settlement.



EXHIBIT 99.2

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations.

HIGHLIGHTS

As with most companies, we faced a wide variety of challenges in 2020 stemming from the COVID-19 pandemic. The impact began in January, directly
affecting our operations in China. The crisis accelerated, impacting virtually all geographies by mid-March. We quickly took action to align our variable cost
structure to demand levels, significantly reduce fixed costs and cut capital expenditures, prioritize accounts receivable and inventory management, and amend
the financial covenant in our revolving credit facility to provide additional liquidity. These efforts helped to strengthen cash flow and protect our balance sheet.
By mid-second quarter 2020, we began to see rapid recovery in businesses serving home-related markets. This benefited our Bedding, Home Furniture,
Flooring, and Textiles businesses. As sales recovered, we maintained most of the fixed cost reductions, adding costs only to support higher volumes and future
growth opportunities. EBIT margins benefited from this cost discipline.

Sales decreased 10% in 2020, primarily from pandemic-related economic declines across most of our businesses. Acquisitions added 1% to sales.
Organic sales (as defined below) were down 11%, on 10% lower volume and raw material-related selling price decreases of 1%.

Earnings decreased primarily from the impact of lower sales and a goodwill impairment charge, partially offset by fixed cost reductions.

In 2020, we generated operating cash flow of $603 million, a $65 million decrease versus a record $668 million in 2019. The decrease was driven
primarily by lower earnings. We generated more than enough operating cash flow to fund dividends and capital expenditures, something we have accomplished
each year for over 30 years.

Because of the economic impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic on our business, we amended our revolving credit agreement in May to change our
financial covenant to a 4.75x net debt to trailing 12-month EBITDA metric (from 3.5x total debt). This change increased availability under our revolving credit
facility, which serves as back-up for our commercial paper program. We ended 2020 with full availability under the $1.2 billion credit facility. We also
continued our focus on deleveraging in 2020 by limiting acquisitions and share repurchases and using operating cash flow to repay debt. We reduced debt by
$228 million in 2020 and expect to further reduce debt levels in 2021. Our financial base remains strong.

We increased the annual dividend in 2020 to $1.60 per share from $1.58 per share in 2019 and extended our record of consecutive annual increases to 49
years. Consistent with our deleveraging plan, share repurchases were limited in 2020. For the full year, we repurchased 240,000 shares of our stock, primarily
surrendered for employee benefit plans.

Portfolio management remains a strategic priority. Over the past several years we have enhanced our business portfolio and improved margins by growing
our stronger businesses and exiting or restructuring businesses that consistently struggled to deliver acceptable returns. During 2020, we divested two
businesses in our Bedding Products segment: a small operation in our former Fashion Bed business and a small specialty wire operation in our Drawn Wire
business. Total capital expenditures were $66 million, 54% lower than 2019, reflecting our sharp focus on optimizing cash flow as we navigated the effects of
the COVID-19 pandemic.
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We incurred the following pretax charges in 2020:

(Dollar amounts in millions) Cash Non-Cash Total
Goodwill impairment $ — $ 25 $ 25
Note impairment — 8 8
Stock write-off from prior year

divestiture — 4 4
Restructuring-related charges 8 — 8
Total charges $ 8 $ 37 $ 45

The $25 million goodwill impairment charge related to our Hydraulic Cylinders business. The $8 million impairment charge related to a note receivable.
The $4 million stock write-off was associated with a prior year divestiture that filed bankruptcy in 2020. The restructuring-related charges are primarily
attributable to pandemic-related severance costs.

These topics are discussed in more detail in the sections that follow.

INTRODUCTION
Total Shareholder Return

Total Shareholder Return (TSR), relative to peer companies, is a primary financial measure that we use to assess long-term performance. TSR = (Change
in Stock Price + Dividends) + Beginning Stock Price. Our goal is to achieve TSR in the top third of the S&P 500 companies over the long term through an
approach that employs four TSR sources: revenue growth, margin expansion, dividends, and share repurchases.

‘We monitor our TSR performance relative to the S&P 500 on a rolling three-year basis. Our TSR was below the 11-14% target over the most recent 3-
year period. Over those same years, the TSR of the S&P 500 at 14% was well above historical averages. As a result, our recent 3-year averages did not meet
our top-third goal. For the 3-year period that ended on December 31, 2020, our TSR performance of 1% placed us in the bottom third of the S&P 500. We
believe our disciplined growth strategy, portfolio management, and prudent use of capital will support achievement of our goal over time.

The table below shows the components of our TSR targets. Long term, accomplishing this level of performance over rolling three-year periods should
enable us to consistently attain our top-third TSR goal.

Current Targets

Revenue Growth 6-9%
Margin Increase 1%
Dividend Yield 3%
Stock Buyback 1%
Total Shareholder Return 11-14%

Senior executives participate in an incentive program with a three-year performance period based on two equal measures: (i) our TSR performance
compared to the performance of a group of approximately 300 peers, and (ii) the Company or segment Earnings Before Interest and Taxes (EBIT) Compound
Annual Growth Rate (CAGR).

Customers

We serve a broad suite of customers, with our largest customer representing approximately 6% of our sales in 2020. Many are companies whose names
are widely recognized. They include bedding brands and manufacturers; residential and office furniture producers; automotive OEM and Tier 1 manufacturers;
and a variety of other companies.
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Organic Sales
We calculate organic sales as trade sales excluding sales attributable to acquisitions and divestitures consummated within the last twelve months.

Management uses the metric, and it is useful to investors, as supplemental information to analyze our underlying sales performance from period to period in our
legacy businesses.

Major Factors That Impact Our Business

Many factors impact our business, but those that generally have the greatest impact are market demand, raw material cost trends, and competition.
However, in 2020 COVID-19 has had the largest impact on our business.

COVID-19 Impacts on our Business

The impact of the COVID-19 pandemic began in January 2020, directly affecting our operations in China, as well as the global supply chain. The crisis
accelerated, impacting virtually all geographies by mid-March 2020. The pandemic had, and could further have, an adverse impact, in varying degrees, to
among other things (i) the demand for our products and our customers’ products, growth rates in the industries in which we participate, and opportunities in
those industries; (ii) our manufacturing operations' ability to remain open, or fully operate, obtain necessary raw materials and parts, maintain appropriate labor
levels, and ship finished products to customers; (iii) operating costs related to pay and benefits for terminated employees; (iv) the collection of trade and other
notes receivables in accordance with their terms due to customer bankruptcy, financial difficulties, or insolvency; (v) impairment of goodwill and long-lived
assets; and (vi) our ability to borrow under our credit facility in compliance with restrictive covenants; all of which, in the aggregate, had, and could further
have, a material negative impact on our trade sales, earnings, cash flow, and financial condition.

In response to the COVID-19 pandemic, we took action to:

¢ Implement comprehensive safety protocols

®  Monitor and manage supply chain risks

*  Align our variable cost structure to demand levels

*  Significantly reduce fixed costs by approximately $90 million and cut capital expenditures by over 50% to $66 million (used primarily for
maintenance capital)

®  Prioritize accounts receivable collections and manage inventory levels

*  Amend the financial covenant in our revolving credit facility to provide additional liquidity

These efforts helped to strengthen cash flow and protect our balance sheet as we moved through the year. By mid-second quarter 2020, we began to see
rapid recovery in businesses serving home-related markets. With consumers spending less on travel and entertainment, they began investing more in their
homes. This benefited our Bedding, Home Furniture, Flooring, and Textiles businesses. We ended 2020 with fourth quarter sales in many of our businesses
above fourth quarter 2019 levels. We believe that our financial resources and liquidity levels, along with various contingency plans to reduce costs are sufficient
to manage the impact currently anticipated from the COVID-19 pandemic. Below is a more in-depth discussion of the various 2020 impacts of COVID-19 on
our business.

Demand for our Products. Various governments in Asia, Europe, North America, and elsewhere instituted, and some have reinstituted, quarantines,
shelter-in-place, or stay-at-home orders, or restrictions on public gatherings as well as limitations on social interactions, which have had, and could further
have, an adverse effect on the demand for our products.

Trade sales in 2020 were down 10% versus 2019. Following steep declines in the second quarter of 2020, we returned to year-over-year sales growth in
the third and fourth quarters in ECS, U.S. and European Spring, Home Furniture, Fabric Converting, and Geo Components. These business units continued to
benefit from a consumer spending focus on home products. Automotive trade sales grew in the fourth quarter, while demand continues to be weak in our
Aerospace and Work Furniture business units.
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Impact on our Manufacturing Operations. We have manufacturing facilities in the United States and 16 other countries. All of these countries have been
affected by the COVID-19 pandemic. Our facilities are open but we have, from time to time, some capacity restrictions on our plants due to governmental
orders in various parts of the world. We have been and could be further negatively affected by governmental action in any one or more of the countries in which
we operate by the imposition, or re-imposition, of restrictive social measures, mandatory closures of retail establishments that sell our products or our
customers’ products, travel restrictions, and restrictions on the import or export of products.

The U.S. and other governments have ordered that certain nonwoven fabrics used to produce ComfortCore® innersprings be prioritized to produce
medical supplies, resulting in shortages of the fabrics for non-medical applications. These shortages and strong bedding demand have caused the Company
temporarily to be unable to supply full industry demand for ComfortCore®. In an effort to manage supply chain risks, we are engaging with customers to work
through these issues. The shortages have resulted in higher pricing for nonwoven fabrics. If we are unable to obtain the fabrics, cannot pass the cost along to
our customers, are required to modify existing contracts to accommodate customers, or pay damage claims to customers, our results of operations may be
negatively impacted. As demand has improved, we also have experienced some temporary labor shortages. We are in the process of hiring additional
employees and adding equipment, particularly in our U.S. Spring business, to meet this demand.

Because of the shift of production by semiconductor microchip manufacturers to consumer electronics, such as laptops and tablets for home-schooling
and home-offices, and away from automotive applications during the COVID-19 related automotive industry shutdowns in 2020, currently there is a shortage
of microchips in the automotive industry. Our Automotive Group uses the microchips in seat comfort products, and to a lesser extent in motors and actuators.
Although, to date, our Automotive Group has been able to obtain an adequate supply of microchips, we are dependent on our suppliers to deliver these
microchips in accordance with our production schedule, and a shortage of the microchips can disrupt our operations and our ability to deliver products to our
customers. Also, because of the industry shortage, automotive OEMs and other suppliers have not been able to secure an adequate supply of microchips, and as
a result have reduced their production of automobiles or parts, which in turn has recently reduced, and may continue to reduce our sale of products. If we
cannot secure an adequate supply of microchips in our supply chain, and the microchips cannot be sourced from a different supplier, or the automotive OEMs
and other suppliers continue to reduce their production as a result of such shortage, this may negatively impact our sales, earnings and financial condition.

Some facilities have experienced problems delivering products to customers because of travel restrictions and disruption in logistics necessary to
import, export, or transfer products across borders.

Our inability to keep our manufacturing operations open, build and maintain appropriate labor levels, obtain necessary raw materials and parts, and
ship finished products to customers may increase labor and commodity costs and otherwise negatively impact our results of operations.

The Company has implemented comprehensive safety protocols focused on protecting our employees and ensuring a safe work environment. Where
possible, our employees are working remotely. However, most of our production employees have returned to work. When employees test positive for COVID-
19, we follow adopted protocols which include enhanced disinfecting that targets areas that have likely exposure to COVID-19. The employee is required to
observe a quarantine period, monitor symptoms, and follow medical guidance prior to returning to work. Contact tracing is performed to identify any other
employees who had direct contact with the employee who tested positive for COVID-19. If any direct contacts are identified, those employees must also self-
isolate, monitor symptoms, and follow medical guidance prior to returning to work. A significant increase in COVID-19 cases among our employees may
disrupt our ability to maintain necessary labor levels and produce and deliver products to our customers if we are unable to shift production to other
manufacturing facilities.

Severance Costs Related to Workforce Reductions. To align our variable cost structure to reduced demand for our products in certain business units, we
decreased the size of our workforce. We incurred severance costs of $7 million in 2020 and we do not expect any additional material charges. However, if
circumstances change because of lack of demand, mandatory governmental closure of our facilities, or otherwise, we may incur future material separation
costs.

Collection of Trade and Notes Receivables. Some of our customers and other third parties have been adversely affected by the social and governmental
restrictions and limitations related to the COVID-19 pandemic. If these parties suffer significant financial difficulty, they may be unable to pay their debts to us,
they may reject their contractual obligations to us under bankruptcy laws or otherwise, or we may have to negotiate significant discounts and/or extend
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financing terms with these parties. If we are unable to collect trade receivables and other notes receivables on a timely basis, this inability will require larger
provisions for bad debt. We are closely monitoring accounts receivable and collections. However, at December 31, 2020, the level of our accounts receivable in
current status was above pre-COVID-19 levels.

Impairment of Goodwill and Long-Lived Assets. A significant portion of our assets consists of goodwill and other long-lived assets, the carrying value of
which may be reduced if we determine that those assets are impaired. At December 31, 2020, goodwill and other intangible assets represented $2.1 billion, or
44% of our total assets.

The 2020 annual goodwill impairment testing resulted in a $25 million non-cash goodwill impairment charge in the second quarter of 2020 with respect
to our Hydraulic Cylinders reporting unit, which is a part of the Specialized Products segment. Demand for hydraulic cylinders is dependent upon capital
spending for material handling equipment.

The impairment charge reflects the complete write-off of the goodwill associated with the Hydraulic Cylinders reporting unit and will not result in future
cash expenditures. The anticipated longer-term economic impacts of COVID-19 lowered expectations of future revenue and profitability causing its fair value
to fall below its carrying value. In connection with the preparation and review of the second quarter financial statements we concluded that an impairment
charge was required with respect to this reporting unit.

Of the remaining six reporting units, three had fair values in excess of carrying value of less than 100%.

 Fair value for our Bedding reporting unit exceeded carrying value by 65%. Our 2019 acquisition of ECS is part of our Bedding reporting unit,
and goodwill for our Bedding reporting unit was $857 million at December 31, 2020.

+ Fair value for our Aerospace reporting unit exceeded carrying value by 51%. Goodwill for the Aerospace reporting unit was $59 million at
December 31, 2020.

« Fair value for our Work Furniture reporting unit exceeded carrying value by 25%. Goodwill for the Work Furniture reporting unit was $97
million at December 31, 2020.

If there is a prolonged adverse economic impact from the COVID-19 pandemic, or otherwise, we may not be able to achieve projected performance levels.

Internal forecasts and industry data suggest that economic impacts of COVID-19 for the aerospace industry may be longer than previously expected. We are
continuing to monitor all factors impacting this industry. If actual results materially differ from the assumptions and estimates used in the goodwill and long-
lived asset valuation calculations, we could incur future impairment charges. These non-cash charges could have a material negative impact on our earnings.

Our Ability to Borrow under our Credit Facility. Our multi-currency credit facility matures in January 2024 and provides us the ability, from time to time
subject to certain restrictive covenants and customary conditions, to borrow, repay, and re-borrow up to $1.2 billion. Because of the economic impacts of the
COVID-19 pandemic on our business, in early May 2020 we amended the credit facility to, among other things, change the restrictive borrowing covenants.
The prior leverage ratio covenant required us to maintain a leverage ratio of consolidated funded indebtedness to trailing 12-month consolidated EBITDA (each
as defined in the credit facility) of not greater than 3.50 to 1.00. The covenant was changed in two ways: (i) the calculation of the ratio now subtracts
unrestricted cash (as defined in the credit facility) from consolidated funded indebtedness; and (ii) the ratio levels were changed to 4.75 to 1.00 for each fiscal
quarter-end date through March 31, 2021; 4.25 to 1.00 at June 30, 2021; 3.75 to 1.00 at September 30, 2021; and 3.25 to 1.00 at December 31, 2021 and
thereafter. In addition, the amount of total secured debt limit was changed from 15% to 5% of our total consolidated assets until December 31, 2021, at which
time it will revert back to 15%. Various interest rate terms were also changed. The impact on our interest expense will depend upon our ability to access the
commercial paper market, and if so, the degree of that access. The amended credit facility also contains an anti-cash hoarding provision that limits borrowing if
the Company has a consolidated cash balance (as defined in the credit facility) in excess of $300 million without planned expenditures. At December 31, 2020,
the Company was in compliance with all of its debt covenants and expects to be able to maintain compliance with the amended debt covenant requirements.

Our credit facility serves as back-up for our commercial paper program. At December 31, 2020, we had no commercial paper outstanding and had no
borrowing under the credit facility. As our trailing 12-month consolidated
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EBITDA, unrestricted cash, and debt levels change, our borrowing capacity increases or decreases. Based on our trailing 12-month consolidated EBITDA,
unrestricted cash, and debt levels at December 31, 2020, our borrowing capacity under the credit facility was the full $1.2 billion at year end. However, this
may not be indicative of the actual borrowing capacity going forward, which may be materially different depending on our consolidated EBITDA, unrestricted
cash, and debt levels at that time. Also, our access to the commercial paper market may be restricted depending on the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic to
the short-term debt markets.

Relief under the CARES Act and Foreign Governmental Subsidies. We are deferring payment of employer's Social Security match into 2021 and 2022,
as provided by the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) Act. Through December 31, 2020, we have deferred $19 million. Half of the
amount will be paid in 2021 and half in 2022. We also received $21 million in government subsidies, primarily in our international locations, in 2020. These
deferrals and subsidies are not expected to have a material impact on our short- or long-term financial condition, results of operations, liquidity, or capital
resources and do not contain material restrictions on our operations, sources of funding, or otherwise.

Market Demand

Market demand (including product mix) is impacted by several economic factors, with consumer confidence being the most significant. Other important
factors include disposable income levels, employment levels, housing turnover, and interest rates. All of these factors influence consumer spending on durable
goods, and therefore affect demand for our products and components. Some of these factors also influence business spending on facilities and equipment,
which impacts approximately 20% of our sales.

Raw Material Costs

Our costs can vary significantly as market prices for raw materials (many of which are commodities) fluctuate. We typically have short-term
commitments from our suppliers; accordingly, our raw material costs generally move with the market. Our ability to recover higher costs (through selling price
increases) is crucial. When we experience significant increases in raw material costs, we typically implement price increases to recover the higher costs.
Conversely, when costs decrease significantly, we generally pass those lower costs through to our customers. The timing of our price increases or decreases is
important; we typically experience a lag in recovering higher costs, and we also realize a lag as costs decline.

Steel is our principal raw material. At various times in past years, we have experienced significant cost fluctuations in this commodity. In most cases, the
major changes (both increases and decreases) were passed through to customers with selling price adjustments. Over the past few years, we have seen varying
degrees of inflation and deflation in U.S. steel pricing. In 2019, steel costs decreased through most of the year. In 2020, steel costs deflated modestly through
the majority of the year followed by significant inflation late in the year.

As a producer of steel rod, we are also impacted by changes in metal margins (the difference in the cost of steel scrap and the market price for steel rod).
In 2019, although steel prices decreased through the year, a wider metal margin persisted. As a result, our steel operations experienced enhanced profitability in
2019. In 2020, these metal margins compressed to near normalized levels.

With the acquisition of ECS, we now have greater exposure to the cost of chemicals, including TDI, MDI, and polyol. The cost of these chemicals has
fluctuated at times, but ECS has generally passed the changes through to its customers. In 2019, ECS experienced a negative effect on trade sales due to
chemical deflation. In 2020, chemicals deflated further in the first half of the year followed by inflation in the second half of the year as a result of supply
shortages.

Our other raw materials include woven and nonwoven fabrics and foam scrap. We have experienced changes in the cost of these materials and generally
have been able to pass them through to our customers.

When we raise our prices to recover higher raw material costs, this sometimes causes customers to modify their product designs and replace higher cost
components with lower cost components. We must continue providing product options to our customers that enable them to improve the functionality of their
products and manage their costs, while providing higher profits for our operations.
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Competition

Many of our markets are highly competitive, with the number of competitors varying by product line. In general, our competitors tend to be smaller,
private companies. Many of our competitors, both domestic and foreign, compete primarily on the basis of price. Our success has stemmed from the ability to
remain price competitive, while delivering innovation, better product quality, and customer service.

We continue to face pressure from foreign competitors, as some of our customers source a portion of their components and finished products offshore. In
addition to lower labor rates, foreign competitors benefit (at times) from lower raw material costs. They may also benefit from currency factors and more
lenient regulatory climates. We typically remain price competitive in most of our business units, even versus many foreign manufacturers, as a result of our
highly efficient operations, automation, vertical integration in steel and wire, logistics and distribution efficiencies, and large scale purchasing of raw materials
and commodities. However, we have also reacted to foreign competition in certain cases by selectively adjusting prices, developing new proprietary products
that help our customers reduce total costs, and shifting production offshore to take advantage of lower input costs.

Since 2009, there have been antidumping duty orders on innerspring imports from China, South Africa, and Vietnam, ranging from 116% to 234%. In
September 2019, the Department of Commerce (DOC) and the International Trade Commission (ITC) concluded a second sunset review extending the orders
for an additional five years, through October 2024; at which time, the DOC and ITC will conduct a third sunset review to determine whether to extend the
orders for an additional five years.

Antidumping and countervailing duty cases filed by major U.S. steel wire rod producers have resulted in the imposition of antidumping duties on imports
of steel wire rod from Brazil, China, Belarus, Indonesia, Italy, Korea, Mexico, Moldova, Russia, South Africa, Spain, Trinidad & Tobago, Turkey, Ukraine,
United Arab Emirates, and the United Kingdom, ranging from 1% to 757%, and countervailing duties on imports of steel wire rod from Brazil, China, Italy, and
Turkey, ranging from 3% to 193%. In June 2020, the ITC and DOC concluded a first sunset review, extending the orders on China through June 2025, and in
July 2020, the ITC and DOC concluded a third sunset review, determining to extend the orders on Brazil, Indonesia, Mexico, Moldova, and Trinidad & Tobago
through August 2025. Duties will continue through December 2022 for Belarus, Italy, Korea, Russia, South Africa, Spain, Turkey, Ukraine, United Arab
Emirates, and the United Kingdom. At those times, the DOC and the ITC will conduct sunset reviews to determine whether to extend those orders for an
additional five years.

In September 2018, the Company, along with other domestic mattress producers, filed petitions with the DOC and the ITC alleging that manufacturers of
mattresses in China were unfairly selling their products in the United States at less than fair value (dumping) and seeking the imposition of duties on mattresses
imported from China. In October 2019, the DOC made a final determination assigning duty rates between 57% to 1,732%. In November 2019, the ITC made a
unanimous final determination that domestic mattress producers were materially injured by reason of the unfairly priced imported mattresses. An antidumping
order on imports of Chinese mattresses will remain in effect for five years, through December 2024, at which time the DOC and ITC will conduct a sunset
review to determine whether to extend the order for an additional five years.

In March 2020, the Company, along with other domestic mattress producers and two labor unions representing workers at other mattress producers, filed
antidumping petitions with the DOC and the ITC alleging that manufacturers of mattresses in Cambodia, Indonesia, Malaysia, Serbia, Thailand, Turkey, and
Vietnam were unfairly selling their products in the United States at less than fair value (dumping) and a countervailing duty petition alleging manufacturers of
mattresses in China were benefiting from subsidies. In May 2020, the ITC made a unanimous, affirmative preliminary determination of a reasonable likelihood
of injury. In August 2020, the DOC made a preliminary determination in the countervailing investigation, assigning China a duty rate of 97.78%, and, in late
October 2020, the DOC made preliminary determinations in the antidumping investigations, assigning duty rates of 2.61- 989.9%. Final determinations are
expected in the first half of 2021. See Item 3 Legal Proceedings on page 28 of our Form 10-K filed February 24, 2021 for more information.
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Acquisition of ECS

On January 16, 2019, we acquired ECS for a cash purchase price of approximately $1.25 billion. ECS, headquartered in Newnan, Georgia, is a leader in
specialized foam technology, primarily for the bedding and furniture industries. With 16 facilities across the United States, ECS operates a vertically-integrated
model, developing many of the chemicals and additives used in foam production, producing specialty foam, and manufacturing private label finished products.
These innovative specialty foam products include finished mattresses sold through both traditional and online channels, mattress components, mattress toppers
and pillows, and furniture foams. ECS has a diversified customer mix and a strong position in the high-growth compressed mattress market segment. ECS
operates within the Bedding Products segment.

For information on the financing of the ECS acquisition, please see the Commercial Paper Program on page 23 in this Exhibit 99.2.

Change in Segment Reporting in 2020

Our reportable segments are the same as our operating segments, which also correspond with our management organizational structure. To reflect how we
manage our businesses, and in conjunction with the change in executive officer leadership, our management organizational structure and all related internal
reporting changed effective January 1, 2020. As a result, the composition of our segments also changed to reflect the new structure. For information on the
change in our segment reporting structure, please see Item 1 Business, Revised Segment Structure on page 7 of our Form 10-K filed February 24, 2021.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS—2020 vs. 2019

As of January 1, 2021, we changed our method for valuing certain inventories (primarily domestic steel-related inventories) to the FIFO cost method
from the LIFO cost method. The effects of this change have been retrospectively applied to all periods presented. See Note A on page 11 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements in Exhibit 99.3 attached to this Form 8-K for additional information.

Trade sales decreased 10% in 2020. Acquisitions, net of divestitures, added 1% to sales growth. Organic sales decreased 11%, with volume down 10%.
Trade sales were primarily impacted by pandemic-related economic declines along with the planned lower volume in business we exited in connection with the
2018 Restructuring Plan as discussed in Note E beginning on page 23 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Exhibit 99.3 attached to this Form
8-K (which reduced trade sales 2%). Raw material-related selling price decreases early in the year reduced trade sales 1%.

Earnings decreased primarily from lower trade sales volume and a goodwill impairment charge, partially offset by fixed cost reductions. Further details
about our consolidated and segment results are discussed below.
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Consolidated Results

The following table shows the changes in sales and earnings during 2020, and identifies the major factors contributing to the changes.

(Dollar amounts in millions, except per share data) Amount % 1
Net trade sales:
Year ended December 31, 2019 $ 4,753
Divestitures (14) — %
2019 sales excluding divestitures 4,739
Approximate volume losses (483) (20) %
Approximate raw material-related inflation and currency impact (32) (1)
Organic sales (515) (11)
Acquisition sales growth 56 1
Year ended December 31, 2020 $ 4,280 (20) %
Earnings:
(Dollar amounts, net of tax)
Year ended December 31, 2019 $ 314
Lower restructuring-related charges ($9 in 2019; $6 in 2020) 3
Goodwill impairment (25)
Note impairment (6)

Stock write-off from a prior year divestiture ?3)

Other items, including COVID-related economic declines, partially offset by fixed cost
reductions, lower interest expense and lower taxes

(30)
Year ended December 31, 2020 $ 253
2019 Earnings Per Diluted Share $ 2.32
2020 Earnings Per Diluted Share $ 1.86

1 Calculations impacted by rounding

Full-year trade sales decreased 10%, to $4,280 million, and organic sales decreased 11%. Volume declined 10%, primarily due to pandemic-related
economic declines and the planned exit of business in Fashion Bed and Drawn Wire which reduced sales 2%. Raw material-related selling price deflation early
in the year reduced sales by 1%. Acquisitions, net of divestitures, contributed 1% to sales growth.

As indicated in the table above, earnings decreased from the goodwill impairment charge, the impairment charge related to a note receivable, and the

stock write-off associated with a prior year divestiture that filed bankruptcy in 2020, partially offset by lower restructuring-related charges. Operationally,
earnings decreased primarily from the impact of lower sales, partially offset by fixed cost reductions.

Interest and Income Taxes

Net interest expense in 2020 was lower by $4 million compared to the twelve months ended December 31, 2019 primarily due to lower debt levels and
interest rates.
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Our worldwide effective income tax rate was 23% in 2020, compared to 22% in 2019. The following table reflects how our effective income tax rate
differs from the statutory federal income tax rate. See Note N on page 49 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Exhibit 99.3 attached to this

Form 8-K for additional details.

Statutory federal income tax rate

Increases (decreases) in rate resulting from:
State taxes, net of federal benefit
Tax effect of foreign operations
Global intangible low-taxed income
Current and deferred foreign withholding taxes
Stock-based compensation
Change in valuation allowance
Change in uncertain tax positions, net
Goodwill impairment
Other permanent differences, net
Other, net

Effective tax rate

Year Ended December 31
2020 2019
21.0 % 21.0 %
.8 1.3
(2.2) (1.7)
(3) 2.3
2.7 1.3
(.6) (1.1)
.8 4
6 (3)
1.6 —
(1.3) (3)
(3) 7)
22.8 % 22.2 %
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As of January 1, 2021, we changed our method for valuing certain inventories (primarily domestic steel-related inventories) to the FIFO cost method
from the LIFO cost method. The effects of this change have been retrospectively applied to all periods presented. See Note A on page 11 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements in Exhibit 99.3 attached to this Form 8-K for additional information.

In the following section we discuss 2020 sales and EBIT (earnings before interest and taxes) for each of our segments. We provide additional detail about
segment results and a reconciliation of segment EBIT to consolidated EBIT in Note F on page 26 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Exhibit
99.3 attached to this Form 8-K. All segment data also has been retrospectively adjusted to reflect the change in segment structure discussed in Item 1 Business,
Revised Segment Structure on page 7 of our Form 10-K filed February 24, 2021.

. (Dollar amounts
in millions)

Trade Sales
Bedding
Products
Specialized
Products
Furniture,
Flooring & Textile
Products

Total
trade sales

EBIT

Bedding
Products

Specialized
Products

Furniture,
Flooring & Textile
Products

Intersegment

eliminations &
other

Total
EBIT

Depreciation
and Amortization
Bedding

Products
Specialized
Products
Furniture,
Flooring & Textile
Products

Unallocated 2

Total
Depreciation
and
Amortization

% Change
Change in Sales Organic
2020 2019 $ % Sales
2,039.3 $ 2,254.3 $ (215.0) (9.5) % (10.0) %
891.2 1,066.8 (175.6) (16.5) (16.5)
1,349.7 1,431.4 (81.7) (5.7) (8.1)
4,280.2 $ 4,752.5 $ (472.3) (9.9) % (10.9) %
Change in EBIT EBIT Margins
2020 2019 $ % 2020 2019
192.4 $ 214.9 $ (22.5) (10.5) % 9.4 % 9.5 %
92.0 169.9 (77.9) (45.9) 10.3 15.9
126.5 102.3 24.2 23.7 9.4 7.1
(3.4) (.3) (3.1)
407.5 $ 486.8 $ (79.3) (16.3) % 9.5 % 10.2 %
2020 2019
106.7 $ 107.3
44.3 41.8
25.5 25.7
12.9 17.1
189.4 $ 191.9

! This is the change in sales not attributable to acquisitions or divestitures in the last 12 months. Refer to the Bedding Products and Furniture, Flooring &
Textile Products discussions below for a reconciliation of the change in total segment sales to organic sales.

2 Unallocated consists primarily of depreciation and amortization on non-operating assets.

Bedding Products

Trade sales decreased 9.5%. Acquisitions, net of divestitures, increased sales .5%. Organic sales were down 10%. Volume decreased 9%, with raw
material-related selling price decreases and negative currency impact reducing sales 1%.
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EBIT decreased $23 million, primarily from pandemic-related economic declines, lower metal margin in our rod mill, and the $8 million impairment
related to a note receivable, partially offset by fixed cost reductions.

Specialized Products

In Specialized Products, trade sales were down 16%. Organic sales were down 16%, with volume down 17%. Currency benefit increased sales 1%.

EBIT decreased $78 million, primarily from pandemic-related economic declines and a $25 million goodwill impairment charge in Hydraulic Cylinders,
partially offset by fixed cost reductions.

Furniture, Flooring_& Textile Products

Trade sales in Furniture, Flooring & Textile Products decreased 6%. Organic sales were down 8% and volume decreased 8%, with raw material-related
selling price decreases offset by a currency benefit. A small Geo Components acquisition completed in December 2019 added 2% to trade sales.

EBIT increased $24 million, primarily from fixed cost reductions, improved pricing and lower restructuring-related charges, partially offset by lower
volume.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS—2019 vs. 2018

As of January 1, 2021, we changed our method for valuing certain inventories (primarily domestic steel-related inventories) to the FIFO cost method
from the LIFO cost method. The effects of this change have been retrospectively applied to all periods presented. See Note A on page 11 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements in Exhibit 99.3 attached to this Form 8-K for additional information.

Trade sales increased 11% in 2019. Acquisitions, primarily ECS, added 14% to sales. Organic sales were down 3%, on 3% lower volume. Raw material-
related selling price increases added 1% to sales, offset by a 1% negative currency impact. Sales growth in most businesses, including U.S. Spring, Automotive,
Work Furniture, and Aerospace, was offset primarily by the planned exit of business in Fashion Bed and Home Furniture which reduced sales 3% and weak
trade demand for steel rod and wire.

Earnings decreased primarily from higher interest expense due to debt increases to fund the ECS acquisition, growth-related costs in U.S. Spring and
Automotive, lower volume in our Steel Rod and Drawn Wire businesses, and higher taxes. The earnings decrease was partially offset by earnings from the ECS
acquisition, lower raw material costs as well as the non-recurrence of a note impairment charge in 2018 and lower restructuring-related and acquisition-related
transaction costs. Further details about our consolidated and segment results are discussed below.
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Consolidated Results

The following table shows the changes in sales and earnings during 2019, and identifies the major factors contributing to the changes.

(Dollar amounts in millions, except per share data) Amount % 1
Net trade sales:
Year ended December 31, 2018 $ 4,270
Approximate volume losses (112) 3) %
Approximate raw material-related inflation and currency impact (22) —
Organic sales (134) (3
Acquisition sales growth 617 14
Year ended December 31, 2019 $ 4,753 11 %
Earnings:
(Dollar amounts, net of tax)
Year ended December 31, 2018 $ 324
Lower restructuring-related charges ($19 in 2018; $9 in 2019) 10
Lower ECS transaction costs ($6 in 2018; $1 in 2019) 5
Non-recurrence of note impairment 12

Other items, including higher interest expense, growth-related costs, lower steel rod
and wire volume, and higher taxes, partially offset by contribution from ECS and lower raw

material costs (37)
Year ended December 31, 2019 $ 314
2018 Earnings Per Diluted Share $ 2.39
2019 Earnings Per Diluted Share $ 2.32

1 Calculations impacted by rounding

Full-year trade sales grew 11%, to $4.75 billion, and organic sales decreased 3%. Volume declined 3%, with gains in most of our businesses, including
U.S. Spring, Automotive, Work Furniture, and Aerospace, more than offset by the planned exit of business in Fashion Bed and Home Furniture which reduced
sales 3% and weak trade demand for steel rod and wire. Raw material-related selling price inflation from increases implemented in late 2018 were offset by a
negative currency impact. Acquisitions contributed 14% to sales growth.

As indicated in the table above, earnings decreased primarily from higher interest expense due to debt increases to fund the ECS acquisition, growth-
related costs in U.S. Spring and Automotive, lower volume in our Steel Rod and Drawn Wire businesses, and higher taxes. The earnings decrease was partially
offset by earnings from the ECS acquisition, lower raw material costs as well as the non-recurrence of a note impairment charge in 2018 and lower
restructuring-related and acquisition-related transaction costs.

Interest and Income Taxes

Net interest expense in 2019 was higher by $30 million primarily due to debt increases in early 2019 to fund the ECS acquisition.
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Our worldwide effective income tax rate was 22% in 2019, compared to 21% in 2018. The following table reflects how our effective income tax rate
differs from the statutory federal income tax rate. See Note N on page 49 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Exhibit 99.3 attached to this

Form 8-K for additional details.

Statutory federal income tax rate

Increases (decreases) in rate resulting from:
State taxes, net of federal benefit
Tax effect of foreign operations
Global intangible low-taxed income
Current and deferred foreign withholding taxes
Stock-based compensation
Change in valuation allowance
Change in uncertain tax positions, net
Other permanent differences, net
Other, net

Effective tax rate

Year Ended December 31
2019 2018
21.0 % 21.0 %
1.3 1.1
(1.7) (7
2.3 7
1.3 3.6
.1) (:8)
4 (1.9)
(:3) (-3)
(3) (1.3)
(.7) (.8)
22.2 % 20.6 %
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Segment Results

As of January 1, 2021, we changed our method for valuing certain inventories (primarily domestic steel-related inventories) to the FIFO cost method
from the LIFO cost method. The effects of this change have been retrospectively applied to all periods presented. See Note A on page 11 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements in Exhibit 99.3 attached to this Form 8-K for additional information.

In the following section we discuss 2019 sales and EBIT for each of our segments. We provide additional detail about segment results and a
reconciliation of segment EBIT to consolidated EBIT in Note F on page 26 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Exhibit 99.3 attached to this
Form 8-K. All segment data also has been retrospectively adjusted to reflect the change in segment structure discussed in Item 1 Business, Revised Segment
Structure on page 7 of our Form 10-K filed February 24, 2021.

% Change

Change in Sales Organic

(Dollar amounts 1
in millions) 2019 2018 $ % Sales

Trade Sales
Bedding

Products $ 2,254.3 $ 1,795.3 $ 459.0 25.6 % (6.0) %
Specialized

Products 1,066.8 1,056.3 10.5 1.0 —
Furniture,

Flooring & Textile

Products 1,431.4 1,417.9 135 1.0 (2.0)

Total
trade sales $ 4,752.5 $ 4,269.5 $ 483.0 11.3 % (3.0) %

Change in EBIT EBIT Margins
2019 2018 $ % 2019 2018

EBIT

Bedding

Products $ 214.9 $ 171.4 $ 43.5 254 % 9.5 % 9.5 %
Specialized

Products 169.9 189.5 (19.6) (10.3) 15.9 17.9
Furniture,

Flooring & Textile

Products 102.3 99.9 2.4 2.4 7.1 7.0
Intersegment

eliminations &

other (.3) (.5) 2

Total
EBIT $ 486.8 $ 460.3 $ 26.5 5.8 % 10.2 % 10.8 %

2019 2018

Depreciation
and Amortization

Bedding

Products $ 107.3 $ 47.3
Specialized

Products 41.8 39.0
Furniture,

Flooring & Textile

Products 25.7 27.0

Unallocated 2 17.1 22.8
Total
Depreciation

and
Amortization $ 191.9 $ 136.1

! This is the change in sales not attributable to acquisitions or divestitures in the last 12 months. Refer to each segment discussion below for a
reconciliation of the change in total segment trade sales to organic sales.

2 Unallocated consists primarily of depreciation and amortization on non-operating assets.

Bedding_Products
Trade sales grew 26%. Acquisitions added 32% to sales partially offset by a 6% organic sales decline. Volume decreased 5%, primarily from our decision

to exit Fashion Bed and weak trade demand for steel rod and wire, partially offset by growth in U.S Spring and European Spring. Currency impact reduced
sales by 1%.
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EBIT increased $44 million, primarily from earnings from the ECS acquisition (including $45 million of amortization expense and a $5 million non-
recurring charge related to acquired inventories), the non-recurrence of a $16 million non-cash impairment charge related to a note receivable in the fourth
quarter of 2018, and lower restructuring-related charges ($5 million in 2019 versus $13 million in 2018), partially offset by growth-related costs in U.S. Spring
and lower steel rod and wire volume.

Specialized Products

Trade sales were up 1% from the PHC acquisition in early 2018. Organic sales were flat. Volume increased 2% from growth in Automotive and
Aerospace. Currency impact, net of raw material-related selling price increases in Hydraulic Cylinders, decreased sales 2%.

EBIT decreased $20 million, with earnings from higher sales offset by higher operating costs in Aerospace and Hydraulic Cylinders, negative currency
impact, and investment to support future growth in Automotive.

Furniture, Flooring_& Textile Products

Trade sales increased 1%. Acquisitions added 3% to sales. Organic sales were down 2%. Volume decreased 3%, primarily from planned declines in Home
Furniture and lower sales in Flooring Products, partially offset by growth in Work Furniture and Geo Components. Raw material-related price increases, net of
negative current impact, added 1% to sales.

EBIT increased $2 million, primarily from improved pricing and lower fixed costs attributable to restructuring activity and lower restructuring-related
charges ($5 million in 2019 versus $10 million in 2018), partially offset by lower volume.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITALIZATION

In 2020, we generated $603 million in cash from operations, a $65 million decrease from 2019. Our operations provided more than enough cash to fund
both capital expenditures and dividend payments, something we have accomplished each year for over 30 years. We expect this to again be the case in 2021.

Total capital expenditures in 2020 were $66 million, 54% lower than 2019, reflecting our sharp focus on optimizing cash flow as we navigated the effects
of COVID-19. We raised the annual dividend to $1.60 per share from $1.58 per share and extended our record of consecutive annual increases to 49 years.

In May, we amended our revolving credit agreement to change our financial covenant to a 4.75x net debt to trailing 12-month EBITDA metric (from 3.5x
total debt). This change increased availability under the revolving credit facility, which serves as back-up for our commercial paper program. We ended 2020
with full availability under the $1.2 billion credit facility.

We also continued our focus on deleveraging in 2020 by limiting acquisitions and share repurchases and using operating cash flow to repay debt. We

reduced debt by $228 million in 2020 and expect to further reduce debt levels in 2021. In keeping with our deleveraging plan, we repurchased only 240,000
shares of our stock during the year, primarily surrendered for employee benefit plans.
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Cash from Operations

EXHIBIT 99.2

Cash from operations is our primary source of funds. Earnings and changes in working capital levels are the two factors that generally have the greatest

impact on our cash from operations.

Cash From Operations
(millions of dollars)
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Cash from operations decreased $65 million in 2020, primarily reflecting lower earnings.

As of January 1, 2021, we changed our method for valuing certain inventories (primarily domestic steel-related inventories) to the FIFO cost method
from the LIFO cost method. The effects of this change have been retrospectively applied to all periods presented. See Note A on page 11 of the Notes to

Consolidated Financial Statements in Exhibit 99.3 attached to this Form 8-K for additional information.

We closely monitor our working capital levels and we ended 2020 with working capital at 13.8% and adjusted working capital at 8.4% of annualized
sales.! The table below explains this non-GAAP calculation. We eliminate cash and current debt maturities from working capital to monitor our operating
efficiency and performance related to trade receivables, inventories, and accounts payable. We believe this provides a more useful measurement to investors

since cash and current maturities can fluctuate significantly from period to period.

(Dollar amounts in millions) 2019
Current assets $ $ 1,577.1
Current liabilities 928.1
Working capital 649.0
Cash and cash equivalents 247.6
Current debt maturities and current portion of operating lease liabilities 90.4
Adjusted working capital $ $ 491.8
Annualized sales * $ $ 4,579.6
Working capital as a percent of annualized sales % 14.2
Adjusted working capital as a percent of annualized sales % 10.7

1 Annualized sales equal fourth quarter sales ($1,182.0 million in 2020 and $1,144.9 million in 2019) multiplied by 4. We believe measuring our
working capital against this sales metric is more useful, since efficient management of working capital includes adjusting those net asset levels to

reflect current business volume.
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Three Primary Components of our Working_Capital

Amount (in millions) Days
2020 2019 2018 2020 2019 2018
Trade Receivables $ 535 $ 564 $ 545 pso! 47 43 46
Inventories 692 676 700 | DIO? 74 67 71
Accounts Payable 552 463 465 DPO 3 55 45 49

L Days sales outstanding: ((beginning of year trade receivables + end of period trade receivables) + 2) + (net trade sales + number of days in the period).

2 Days inventory on hand: ((beginning of year inventory + end of period inventory) + 2) + (cost of goods sold + number of days in the period).

8 Days payables outstanding: ((beginning of year accounts payable + end of period accounts payable) + 2) = (cost of goods sold + number of days in the
period).

Trade Receivables - At December 31, 2020, compared to 2019, our trade receivables decreased by $29 million and our DSO increased. Although our
DSO increased notably in the first half of the year as a result of COVID-19, strong credit discipline drove steady DSO improvement in the latter half of the year
to a more normal level.

We are closely monitoring accounts receivable and collections. We recognized $17 million of bad debt expense for the year:
$20 million in the first quarter partially due to COVID-19 impacts on our customers and risk across our account portfolio; approximately half
was associated with a Bedding customer that was partially reserved in 2018 and had continued to experience financial difficulties and
liquidity problems over the last two years.

+ $3 million reductions to bad debt expense during the last half of the year as our accounts receivable in current status improved and returned to
a standing consistent with pre-COVID-19 levels.

Although positive trends in the latter half of the year allowed us to reduce some of first quarter’s expense, our full-year expense (in addition to the reserve
for one customer noted above) is higher than our historical experience. Our first quarter bad debt expense included an increased qualitative risk for
macroeconomic conditions, which we believe continued to be appropriate at year end. We also monitor general macroeconomic conditions and other items that
could impact the expected collectibility of all customers, or pools of customers, with similar risk. We obtain credit applications, credit reports, bank and trade
references, and periodic financial statements from our customers to establish credit limits and terms as appropriate. In cases where a customer’s payment
performance or financial condition begins to deteriorate or in the event of a customer bankruptcy, we tighten our credit limits and terms and make appropriate
reserves based upon the facts and circumstances for each individual customer, as well as pools of customers, with similar risk.

Inventories - Our inventories increased $16 million at December 31, 2020 compared to the prior year. Our DIO also increased during 2020. Primary
factors contributing to increased inventory include inventory purchases related to growing demand and increased raw material costs. Full-year increase in DIO
is primarily a result of lower cost of goods sold. Although we experienced increased raw material costs and higher freight charges due to raw material
shortages, volumes at the end of the first quarter 2020 and into second quarter 2020 were greatly reduced. While inventory balances and DIO fluctuated notably
during 2020, the year-end balance and fourth quarter DIO both returned to more normal levels, and we took steps to carefully control inventory levels as
demand improved. Inventory at December 31, 2019 was lower due to focused inventory reductions, restructuring activities, and steel deflation, more than
offsetting the 2019 acquisition activity. We believe we have established adequate reserves for any slower-moving or obsolete inventories. We continuously
monitor our slower-moving and potentially obsolete inventory through reports on inventory quantities compared to usage within the previous 12 months. We
also utilize cycle counting programs and complete physical counts of our inventory. When potential inventory obsolescence is indicated by these controls, we
will take charges for write-downs to maintain an adequate level of reserves. Our reserve balances, as a percentage of period-end inventory, were consistent with
our historical average.
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Accounts Payable - Our accounts payable increased $89 million at December 31, 2020 compared to the prior year. Our DPO also increased during 2020.
The rise was primarily related to the inventory factors discussed above and continued focus on optimizing payment terms with our vendors. Our payment terms
did not change meaningfully, as we chose to keep our commitment to our vendors by paying on time during periods of reduced demand earlier in the year and
did not request an extension of terms. We continue to look for ways to establish and maintain favorable payment terms through our significant purchasing
power and also utilize third-party services that offer flexibility to our vendors, which in turn helps us manage our DPO as discussed below.

Accounts Receivable and Accounts Payable Programs

We have participated in trade receivables sales programs with third-party banking institutions and trade receivables sales programs that have been
implemented by certain of our customers the last few years. Under each of these programs, we sell our entire interest in the trade receivable for 100% of face
value, less a discount. Because control of the sold receivable is transferred to the buyer at the time of sale, accounts receivable balances sold are removed from
the Consolidated Balance Sheets and the related proceeds are reported as cash provided by operating activities in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.
We had approximately $45 million and $40 million of trade receivables that were sold and removed from our Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31,
2020 and 2019, respectively. These sales reduced our quarterly DSO by roughly three days, and the impact to operating cash flow was approximately $5
million and $25 million at December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

For accounts payable, we have historically looked for ways to optimize payment terms through utilizing third-party programs that allow our suppliers to
be paid earlier at a discount. While these programs assist us in negotiating payment terms with our suppliers, we continue to make payments based on our
customary terms. A vendor can elect to take payment from a third party earlier with a discount, and in that case, we pay the third party on the original due date
of the invoice. Contracts with our suppliers are negotiated independently of supplier participation in the programs, and we cannot increase payment terms
pursuant to the programs. As such, there is no direct impact on our DPO, accounts payable, operating cash flows or liquidity. The accounts payable, which
remain on our Consolidated Balance Sheets, settled through the third-party programs, were approximately $105 million and $55 million at December 31, 2020
and 2019, respectively. We did not request an extension of terms during the pandemic. However, we increased purchases late in the year as demand returned,
which resulted in greater vendor participation by those that have historically utilized these programs, and we have also experienced greater interest by other
vendors as they also strive to optimize their customer collections.

While we utilize the above items as tools in our cash flow management, and offer them as options to facilitate customer and vendor operating cycles, if
there were to be a cessation of these programs, we do not expect it would materially impact our operating cash flows or liquidity.
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Uses of Cash
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To carefully manage cash during the pandemic-related economic declines across most of our businesses, we reduced capital expenditures by over 50% for
2020 (to be used primarily for maintenance capital) and limited acquisition spending. We intend to make investments to support expansion in businesses and
product lines where sales are profitably growing, for efficiency improvement and maintenance, and for system enhancements. We expect capital expenditures to
approximate $150 million in 2021. Our employee incentive plans emphasize returns on capital, which include net fixed assets and working capital. This
emphasis focuses our management on asset utilization and helps ensure that we are investing additional capital dollars where attractive return potential exists.

Our long-term, 6-9% annual revenue growth objective envisions periodic acquisitions. We are seeking strategic acquisitions, and we are looking for
opportunities to enter new growth markets (carefully screened for sustainable competitive advantage). As a reminder, in connection with the acquisition of ECS
our debt levels increased, and we are focused on deleveraging by, among other factors, controlling the pace of acquisition spending.

In 2018, we acquired three businesses for total consideration of $109 million. The first is Precision Hydraulic Cylinders (PHC), a leading global
manufacturer of engineered hydraulic cylinders primarily for the materials handling market. The second and third are both operations in our Geo Components
business: a small producer of geo components, and a manufacturer and distributor of innovative home and garden products that can be found at many major
retailers.

In 2019, we acquired two businesses for total consideration of $1.27 billion. In January 2019, we acquired ECS, a leader in the production of proprietary
specialized foam used primarily for the bedding and furniture industries, for total consideration of approximately $1.25 billion. In December 2019, we acquired
a small manufacturer and distributor of geosynthetic fabrics, grids and erosion control products in our Geo Components business unit.

In 2020, we acquired no businesses.

Additional details about acquisitions can be found in Note R on page 55 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Exhibit 99.3 attached to this
Form 8-K.

20



Pay Dividends

250

200

150

100

50

Dividends Paid

(millions of dollars)

194

205 212

I
2018

I I
2019 2020

1.70
1.60
1.50
1.40
1.30
1.20
1.10
1.00

Dividends Declared
(dollars per share)

1 1.60
1.50 1.58

| |
2018 2019 2020

EXHIBIT 99.2

Dividends are the primary means by which we return cash to shareholders. The cash requirement for dividends in 2021 should approximate $220 million.

Our long-term targeted dividend payout ratio is approximately 50% of adjusted EPS (which excludes special items such as significant tax law impacts,

impairment charges, restructuring-related charges, divestiture gains, and litigation accruals/settlements). Continuing our long track record of increasing the
dividend remains a high priority. In 2020, we increased the annual dividend by $.02 from $1.58 to $1.60 per share. 2020 marked our 49th consecutive annual

dividend increase, a record that only ten S&P 500 companies currently exceed. We are proud of our dividend record and plan to extend it.
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Share repurchases are the other means by which we return cash to shareholders. During the last three years, we repurchased a total of 4 million shares of

our stock and issued 4 million shares (through employee benefit plans and stock option exercises). In 2020, we repurchased 240,000 shares (at an average price
of $46.32) and issued 1 million shares.

Our long-term priorities for use of cash remain: fund organic growth, pay dividends, fund strategic acquisitions, and repurchase stock with available cash.

With the increase in leverage from our acquisition of ECS, as previously discussed, we are prioritizing debt repayment after funding necessary expenditures and
dividends, and as a result, are temporarily limiting share repurchases and acquisitions. We have been authorized by the Board to repurchase up to 10 million
shares each year, but we have established no specific repurchase commitment or timetable.
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Capitalization
This table presents key debt and capitalization statistics at the end of the three most recent years.
(Dollar amounts in millions) 2020 2019 2018
Total debt excluding revolving
credit/‘commercial paper $ 1,900.2 $ 2,056.1 $ 1,099.0
Less: Current maturities of long-term debt 50.9 51.1 1.2
Scheduled maturities of long-term debt 1,849.3 2,005.0 1,097.8
Average interest rates 37 % 3.6 % 3.6 %
Average maturities in years 1 5.3 6.0 6.7
Revolving credit/commercial paper 2 - 61.5 70.0
Weighted average interest rate on year-
end balance — % 2.0 % 2.6 %
Average interest rate during the year 2.0 % 2.6 % 2.4 %
Total long-term debt 1,849.3 2,066.5 1,167.8
Deferred income taxes and other liabilities 519.6 518.9 257.3
Equity 1,425.1 1,341.9 1,206.8
Total capitalization $ 3,794.0 $ 3,927.3 $ 2,631.9
Unused committed credit: 2
Long-term $ 1,200.0 $ 1,138.5 $ 730.0
Short-term — — —
Total unused committed credit $ 1,200.0 $ 1,138.5 $ 730.0
Cash and cash equivalents $ 348.9 $ 247.6 $ 268.1

! These rates include current maturities, but exclude commercial paper to reflect the averages of outstanding debt with scheduled maturities. The rates
also include amortization of interest rate swaps.

2 The unused committed credit amount is based on our revolving credit facility and commercial paper program which, at the end of 2018, had $800
million of borrowing capacity. In January 2019, we expanded the size of our revolving credit facility from $800 million to $1.2 billion and
correspondingly increased permitted borrowings, subject to covenant restrictions, under our commercial paper program primarily to finance the ECS
transaction.

In July 2018, we retired $150 million of 4.4% notes at maturity.

In January 2019, we increased the size of our revolving credit facility from $800 million to $1.2 billion (and increased permitted borrowings, subject to
covenant restrictions, under our commercial paper program in a corresponding amount), and added additional borrowing capacity in the form of the five-year
term loan facility in the amount of $500 million, all primarily to finance the ECS acquisition. We pay quarterly principal installments of $12.5 million through
the maturity date of January 2024. Additional principal payments, including a complete early payoff, are allowed without penalty. As of December 31, 2020,
we had repaid $195 million, including prepayments on a portion of Term Loan A of $60 million in the third quarter and $48 million in the fourth quarter of
2020.

In March 2019, we issued $500 million aggregate principal amount of notes that mature in 2029. The notes bear interest at a rate of 4.4% per year, with
interest payable semi-annually beginning on September 15, 2019. The net proceeds of these notes were used to repay a portion of the commercial paper
indebtedness incurred to finance the ECS acquisition.

Our next large maturity is in August 2022 when $300 million of senior notes will mature.
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Commercial Paper Program

In January 2019, we expanded the borrowing capacity under our credit facility from $800 million to $1.2 billion, extended the term to January 2024, and
correspondingly increased permitted borrowings under our commercial paper program primarily to finance the ECS Acquisition. The ECS Acquisition was
financed through the issuance of approximately $750 million of commercial paper (of which roughly $500 million was subsequently refinanced through the
public issuance of 10-year 4.4% notes due in 2029) and the issuance of a $500 million five-year Term Loan A, with our current bank group, pursuant to which
we pay principal in the amount of $12.5 million each quarter and the remaining principal at maturity. The credit facility allows us to issue letters of credit
totaling up to $125 million. When we issue letters of credit under the facility, we reduce our available credit and commercial paper capacity by a corresponding
amount. Amounts outstanding related to our commercial paper program were:

(Dollar amounts in millions) 2020 2019 2018

Total program authorized $ 1,200.0 $ 1,200.0 $ 800.0
Commercial paper outstanding (classified as long-term debt) — 61.5 70.0
Letters of credit issued under the credit facility — — —
Total program usage — 61.5 70.0
Total program available $ 1,200.0 $ 1,138.5 $ 730.0

The average and maximum amounts of commercial paper outstanding during 2020 were $145 million and $422 million, respectively. During the fourth
quarter, the average and maximum amounts outstanding were $49 million and $122 million, respectively. At year end, we had no letters of credit outstanding
under the credit facility, but we had issued $41 million of stand-by letters of credit under other bank agreements to take advantage of better pricing. Over the
long term, and subject to our capital needs, market conditions, alternative capital market opportunities, and our ability to continue to access the commercial
paper market, we expect to maintain the indebtedness under the program by continuously repaying and reissuing the commercial paper notes. We view
commercial paper as a source of long-term funds and when outstanding, have classified the borrowings under the commercial paper program as long-term debt
on our balance sheet. We have the intent to roll over such obligations on a long-term basis and have the ability to refinance these borrowings on a long-term
basis as evidenced by our $1.2 billion revolving credit facility maturing in 2024 discussed above.

With cash on hand, operating cash flow, our commercial paper program and/or our credit facility, and our ability to obtain debt financing, we believe we
have sufficient funds available to repay maturing debt, as well as support our ongoing operations.

Our credit facility was amended in May 2020 and contains revised restrictive covenants. The revised covenants limit: a) as of the last day of each fiscal
quarter, the leverage ratio of consolidated funded indebtedness (minus unrestricted cash) to trailing 12-month consolidated EBITDA (each as defined in the
credit facility) must not exceed 4.75 to 1.00 for each fiscal quarter end date through March 31, 2021; 4.25 to 1.00 at June 30, 2021; 3.75 to 1.00 at September
30, 2021; and 3.25 to 1.00 at December 31, 2021 and thereafter; b) the amount of total secured debt to 5% of our total consolidated assets until December 31,
2021, at which time it will revert to 15% of our total consolidated assets; and c) our ability to sell, lease, transfer, or dispose of all or substantially all of our
total consolidated assets. Various interest rate terms were also changed. The impact on our interest expense will depend upon our ability to access the
commercial paper market, and if so, the degree of that access. The amendment also added an anti-cash hoarding provision that limits borrowing if the Company
has a consolidated cash balance (as defined in the credit facility) in excess of $300 million without planned expenditures. We were comfortably in compliance
with our covenants at the end of 2020, and had access to the full $1.2 billion borrowing capacity under the credit agreement. For more information about long-
term debt, please see Note J on page 33 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Exhibit 99.3 attached to this Form 8-K.
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Accessibility of Cash

At December 31, 2020, we had cash and cash equivalents of $349 million primarily invested in interest-bearing bank accounts and in bank time deposits
with original maturities of three months or less. Substantially all of these funds are held in the international accounts of our foreign operations. During 2020,
2019, and 2018 we brought back $188 million, $279 million, and $314 million of foreign cash, respectively.

If we were to immediately bring back all our foreign cash to the U.S. in the form of dividends, we would pay foreign withholding taxes of approximately
$20 million. Due to capital requirements in various jurisdictions, approximately $58 million of this cash was inaccessible for repatriation at year end.

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

The following table summarizes our future contractual cash obligations and commitments at December 31, 2020:
Payments Due by Period ®

Less More
Than 1 1-3 35 Than 5
Contractual Obligations Total Year Years Years Years
(Dollar amounts in millions)
Long-term debt * $ 1,896 $ 50 $ 399 $ 453 $ 994
Finance leases 4 1 2 1 —
Operating leases 180 a7 72 38 23
Purchase obligations 2 450 445 4 1 _
Interest payments 3 390 70 123 90 107
Deferred income taxes 205 — — — 205
Other obligations (including pensions
and net reserves for tax contingencies) 4 196 4 31 32 129
Total contractual cash obligations $ 3,321 $ 617 $ 631 $ 615 $ 1,458

1 The long-term debt payment schedule presented above could be accelerated if we were not able to make the principal and interest payments when due. We
are focused on deleveraging by temporarily limiting share repurchases, controlling the pace of acquisition spending, and using operating cash flow to repay
debt.

2 purchase obligations primarily include open short-term (30-120 days) purchase orders that arise in the normal course of operating our facilities.

3 Interest payments assume debt outstanding remains constant with amounts at December 31, 2020 and at rates in effect at the end of the year.

4 Other obligations include our net reserves for tax contingencies in the "More Than 5 Years" column, because these obligations are long-term in nature and
actual payment dates cannot be specifically determined. Other obligations also include a $32 million long-term deemed repatriation tax payable and our
current estimate of $4 million for minimum contributions to defined benefit pension plans.

5 Less Than 1 Year (due in 2021), 1-3 Years (due in 2022 and 2023), 3-5 Years (due in 2024 and 2025), and More Than 5 Years (due in 2026 and beyond).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

EXHIBIT 99.2

We prepare our consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. To do so,
we must make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues, expenses, and disclosures. If we used different estimates
or judgments our financial statements would change, and some of those changes could be significant. Our estimates are frequently based upon historical
experience and are considered by management, at the time they are made, to be reasonable and appropriate. Estimates are adjusted for actual events, as they

occur.

“Critical accounting estimates” are those that are: (a) subject to uncertainty and change, and (b) of material impact to our financial statements. Listed
below are the estimates and judgments, which we believe could have the most significant effect on our financial statements.

We provide additional details regarding our significant accounting policies in Note A on page 11 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in

Exhibit 99.3 attached to this Form 8-K.

Description

Judgments and
Uncertainties

Effect if Actual Results
Differ From Assumptions

Goodwill

Gooduwill is assessed for impairment
annually as of June 30 and as triggering
events occur.

Gooduwill is evaluated annually for
impairment as of June 30 using a
quantitative analysis at the reporting unit
level, which is one level below our operating
segments.

Judgment is required in the quantitative
analysis. We estimate fair value using a
combination of:

(a) A discounted cash flow model that
contains uncertainties related to the forecast
of future results, as many outside economic
and competitive factors can influence future
performance. Revenue growth, cost of sales,
and appropriate discount rates are the most
critical estimates in determining enterprise
values using the cash flow model.

(b) The market approach, using price to
earnings ratios for comparable publicly
traded companies that operate in the same
or similar industry and with characteristics
similar to the reporting unit. Judgment is
required to determine the appropriate price
to earnings ratio.

The June 2020 review resulted in a non-
cash goodwill impairment charge of $25
million with respect to our Hydraulic
Cylinders reporting unit, which is part of the
Specialized Products segment. This
impairment charge reflects the complete
write-off of the goodwill associated with the
Hydraulic Cylinders reporting unit. Three
other reporting units had fair values in
excess of carrying value of less than 100%
as discussed in Note C on page 20 of the
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
in Exhibit 99.3 attached to this Form 8-K. At
December 31, 2020, we had $1.4 billion of
goodwill.

We had no goodwill impairments in 2019 or
2018.

Information regarding material assumptions
used to determine if a goodwill impairment
exists can be found in Note A on page 11
and Note C on page 20 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements in
Exhibit 99.3 attached to this Form 8-K.

We conduct impairment testing based on
our current business strategy in light of
present industry and economic conditions,
as well as future expectations. If we are not
able to achieve projected performance
levels, future impairments could be possible.
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Description

Judgments and
Uncertainties

Effect if Actual Results
Differ From Assumptions

Other Long-Lived Assets

Other long-lived assets are tested for
recoverability at year end and whenever
events or circumstances indicate the carrying
value may not be recoverable.

For other long-lived assets we estimate fair
value at the lowest level where cash flows
can be measured (usually at a branch level).

Impairments of other long-lived assets
usually occur when major restructuring
activities take place, or we decide to
discontinue selected products.

Our impairment assessments have
uncertainties because they require estimates
of future cash flows to determine if
undiscounted cash flows are sufficient to
recover carrying values of these assets.

For assets where future cash flows are not
expected to recover carrying value, fair value
is estimated which requires an estimate of
market value based upon asset appraisals for
like assets.

These impairments are unpredictable.
Impairments did not exceed $8 million per
year in any of the last three years.

At December 31, 2020, net property, plant and
equipment was $785 million, net intangible
assets, other than goodwill, was $702 million,
and operating right-of-use assets was $162
million.

Inventory Reserves

We reduce the carrying value of inventories
to reflect an estimate of net realizable value
for slow-moving (i.e., not selling very quickly)
and obsolete inventory.

Generally, a reserve is required when we
have more than a 12-month supply of the
product.

The calculation also uses an estimate of the
ultimate recoverability of items identified as
slow-moving, based upon historical
experience.

If we have had no sales of a given product
for 12 months, those items are generally
deemed to be obsolete with no value and are
written down completely.

Our inventory reserve contains uncertainties
because the calculation requires
management to make assumptions about the
value of products that are obsolete or slow-
moving.

Changes in customer behavior and
requirements can cause inventory to become
obsolete or slow-moving. Restructuring
activity and decisions to narrow product
offerings also impact the estimated net
realizable value of inventories.

At December 31, 2020, the reserve for
obsolete and slow-moving inventory was $40
million (approximately 6% of inventories). This
is consistent with the reserves at December
31, 2019 and 2018, representing
approximately 6% of inventories.

Additions to inventory reserves in 2020 were
$14 million, which was slightly lower than our
$16 million three-year average. Our reserve
balances as a percentage of period-end
inventory have remained consistent, and we
do not expect significant changes to our
historical obsolescence levels.
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Description

Judgments and
Uncertainties

Effect if Actual Results
Differ From Assumptions

Credit Losses

For accounts and notes receivable, we
estimate a bad debt reserve for the amount
that will ultimately be uncollectible.

When we become aware of a specific
customer’s potential inability to pay, we
record a bad debt reserve for the amount
we believe may not be collectible. We also
monitor general macroeconomic conditions
and other items that could impact the
expected collectibility of all customers or
pools of customers with similar risk.

As discussed in Note H on page 29 of the
Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements in Exhibit 99.3 attached to this
Form 8-K, we adopted ASU 2016-13
"Financial Instruments—Credit Losses"
(Topic 326) in 2020, which amended the
impairment model to require a forward-
looking approach based on expected
losses, rather than incurred losses, to
estimate credit losses on certain types of
financial instruments, including trade
receivables.

Our bad debt reserve contains uncertainties
because it requires management to
estimate the amount uncollectible based
upon an evaluation of several factors such
as the length of time that receivables are
past due, the financial health of the
customer, industry and macroeconomic
considerations, and historical loss
experience.

Our customers are diverse and many are
small-to-medium sized companies, with
some being highly leveraged. Bankruptcy
can occur with some of these customers
relatively quickly and with little warning.

In cases where a customer’s payment
performance or financial condition begins to
deteriorate, we tighten our credit limits and
terms and make appropriate reserves when
deemed necessary. Certain of our
customers have from time to time
experienced bankruptcy, insolvency, and/or
an inability to pay their debts to us as they
come due. If our customers suffer significant
financial difficulty, they may be unable to
pay their debts to us timely or at all, they
may reject their contractual obligations to us
under bankruptcy laws or otherwise, or we
may have to negotiate significant discounts
and/or extend financing terms with these
customers.

A significant change in the financial status of
a large customer could impact our
estimates. However, we believe we have
established adequate reserves on our
customer accounts.

Our bad debt expense has fluctuated over
the last three years: $17 million in 2020, $3
million in 2019, and $17 million in 2018. The
expense for 2020 and 2018 was impacted
by one account that is now fully reserved at
$25 million, including $23 million of a note
receivable and $2 million for a trade account
receivable ($9 million in 2020 and $16
million in 2018), as discussed in Note H on
page 29 of the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements in Exhibit 99.3
attached to this Form 8-K.

2020's expense was also impacted by
pandemic-related economic declines.
Although we have not experienced
significant issues with customer payment
performance during this time, the effects of
the pandemic have adversely impacted the
operations of many of our customers, which
have and could further impact their ability to
pay their debts to us. As a result, we
increased the reserves on trade accounts
receivable to reflect this increased risk.

Excluding the note receivable discussed
above, the average annual amount of bad
debt expense associated with trade
accounts receivable was less than $5 million
(significantly less than 1% of annual net
trade sales) over the last three years. At
December 31, 2020, our allowances for
doubtful trade accounts receivable were
$19 million (less than 4% of our trade
receivables of $555 million).
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Description

Judgments and
Uncertainties

Effect if Actual Results
Differ From Assumptions

Workers’ Compensation

We are substantially self-insured for costs
related to workers’ compensation, and this
requires us to estimate the liability
associated with this obligation.

Our estimates of self-insured reserves
contain uncertainties regarding the potential
amounts we might have to pay. We consider
a number of factors, including historical
claim experience, demographic factors, and
potential recoveries from third party
Insurance carriers.

Over the past five years, we have incurred,
on average, $9 million annually for costs
associated with workers’ compensation.
Average year-to-year variation over the past
five years has been approximately

$1 million. At December 31, 2020, we had
accrued $32 million to cover future self-
insurance liabilities.

Pension Accounting

For our pension plans, we must estimate
the cost of benefits to be provided (well into
the future) and the current value of those
benefit obligations.

The pension liability calculation contains
uncertainties because it requires
management's judgment. Assumptions
used to measure our pension liabilities and
pension expense annually include:

- the discount rate used to calculate the
present value of future benefits

- an estimate of expected return on pension
assets based upon the mix of investments
held (bonds and equities)

- certain employee-related factors, such as
turnover, retirement age, and mortality.
Mortality assumptions represent our best
estimate of the duration of future benefit
payments at the measurement date. These
estimates are based on each plan's
demographics and other relevant facts and
circumstances

- the rate of salary increases where
benefits are based on earnings.

Each 25 basis point decrease in the
discount rate increases pension expense by
$.6 million and increases the plans’ benefit
obligations by $9.8 million.

Each 25 basis point reduction in the
expected return on assets would increase
pension expense by $.4 million, but have no
effect on the plans’ funded status.

Contingencies

We evaluate various legal, environmental,
and other potential claims against us to
determine if an accrual or disclosure of the
contingency is appropriate. If it is probable
that an ultimate loss will be incurred and
reasonably estimable, we accrue a liability
for the estimate of the loss.

Our disclosure and accrual of loss
contingencies (i.e., losses that may or may
not occur) contain uncertainties because
they are based on our assessment of the
probability that the expenses will actually
occur and our reasonable estimate of the
likely cost. Our estimates and judgments
are subjective and can involve matters in
litigation, the results of which are generally
unpredictable.

Legal contingencies are related to numerous
lawsuits and claims described in Note T on
page 60 of the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements in Exhibit 99.3
attached to this Form 8-K.

During the three-year period ended
December 31, 2020, we recorded expense
of $3 million.
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Description

Judgments and
Uncertainties

Effect if Actual Results
Differ From Assumptions

Income Taxes

In the ordinary course of business, we must
make estimates of the tax treatment of
many transactions, even though the
ultimate tax outcome may remain uncertain
for some time. These estimates become
part of the annual income tax expense
reported in our financial statements.
Subsequent to year end, we finalize our tax
analysis and file income tax returns. Tax
authorities periodically audit these income
tax returns and examine our tax filing
positions, including (among other things)
the timing and amounts of deductions, and
the allocation of income among tax
jurisdictions. If necessary, we adjust income
tax expense in our financial statements in
the periods in which the actual outcome
becomes more certain.

Our tax liability for unrecognized tax
benefits contains uncertainties because
management is required to make
assumptions and to apply judgment to
estimate the exposures related to our
various filing positions.

Our effective tax rate is also impacted by
changes in tax laws, the current mix of
earnings by taxing jurisdiction, and the
results of current tax audits and
assessments.

At December 31, 2020 and 2019, we had
$14 million and $15 million, respectively, of
net deferred tax assets on our balance
sheet, primarily related to net operating
losses and other tax carryforwards. The
ultimate realization of these deferred tax
assets is dependent upon the amount,
source, and timing of future taxable
income. In cases where we believe it is
more likely than not that we may not realize
the future potential tax benefits, we
ehstablish a valuation allowance against
them.

Changes in U.S. and foreign tax laws could
impact assumptions related to the taxation
and repatriation of certain foreign earnings.

Audits by various taxing authorities continue
as governments look for ways to raise
additional revenue. Based upon past audit
experience, we do not expect any material
changes to our tax liability as a result of this
audit activity; however, we could incur
additional tax expense if we have audit
adjustments higher than recent historical
experience.

The likelihood of recovery of net operating
losses and other tax carryforwards has been
closely evaluated and is based upon such
factors as the time remaining before
expiration, viable tax planning strategies,
and future taxable earnings expectations.
We believe that appropriate valuation
allowances have been recorded as
necessary. However, if earnings
expectations or other assumptions change
such that additional valuation allowances
are required, we could incur additional tax
expense. Likewise, if fewer valuation
allowances are needed, we could incur
reduced tax expense.
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Description

Judgments and
Uncertainties

Effect if Actual Results
Differ From Assumptions

Acquisitions

When acquisitions occur, we value the
assets acquired, liabilities assumed, and
any noncontrolling interest in acquired
companies at estimated acquisition date
fair values. Goodwill is measured as the
excess amount of consideration
transferred, compared to fair value of the
assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed. Our estimates of fair value are
based upon assumptions believed to be
reasonable but which are inherently
uncertain.

The purchase price allocation for business
acquisitions contains uncertainties because
it requires management's judgment.
Determining fair value of identifiable assets,
particularly intangibles, requires
management to make estimates, which are
based on all available information. Critical
estimates include the timing and amount of
future revenues and expenses associated
with an asset, as well as an appropriate
discount rate. Determining fair values for
these items requires significant judgment
and includes a variety of methods and
models that utilize significant Level 3 inputs,
as discussed in Note A on page 11 of the
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
in Exhibit 99.3 attached to this Form 8-K.

In 2020, no businesses were acquired, as
discussed in Note R on page 55 of the
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
in Exhibit 99.3 attached to this Form 8-K.

The judgments made in determining the
estimated fair value assigned to the assets
acquired, as well as the estimated life of the
assets, can materially impact net income in
periods subsequent to the acquisition
through depreciation and amortization, and
in certain instances through impairment
charges, if the asset becomes impaired in
the future. We regularly review for
impairments. Unanticipated events and
circumstances may occur which may affect
the accuracy or validity of such
assumptions, estimates, or actual results.
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CONTINGENCIES

For contingencies related to the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on our business, please see “COVID-19 Impacts on our Business” on page 3 in this
Exhibit 99.2.

Litigation

Accruals for Probable Losses

We are exposed to litigation contingencies that, if realized, could have a material negative impact on our financial condition, results of operations, and
cash flows. Although we deny liability in all currently threatened or pending litigation proceedings in which we are or may be a party, and believe we have
valid bases to contest all claims made against us, we have recorded a litigation contingency accrual for our reasonable estimate of probable loss for pending and
threatened litigation proceedings, in aggregate, in millions, as follows:

Year Ended December 31
2020 2019 2018
Litigation contingency accrual - Beginning of period $ 7 $ 1.9 $ 4
Adjustment to accruals - expense 1 .6 1.8
Currency (1) — —
Cash payments (.2) (1.8) (.3)
Litigation contingency accrual - End of period $ o5 $ 7 $ 1.9

The above litigation contingency accruals do not include accrued expenses related to workers' compensation, vehicle-related personal injury, product and
general liability claims, taxation issues, and environmental matters, some of which may contain a portion of litigation expense. However, any litigation expense
associated with these categories is not anticipated to have a material effect on our financial condition, results of operations, or cash flows. For more information
regarding accrued expenses, see Note I under "Accrued expenses” on page 32 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Exhibit 99.3 attached to this
Form 8-K.

Reasonably Possible Losses in Excess of Accruals

Although there are a number of uncertainties and potential outcomes associated with all of our pending or threatened litigation proceedings, we believe,
based on current known facts, that additional losses, if any, are not expected to materially affect our consolidated financial position, results of operations, or
cash flows. However, based upon current known facts, as of December 31, 2020, aggregate reasonably possible (but not probable, and therefore not accrued)
losses in excess of the accruals noted above are estimated to be $12 million, including $11 million for Brazilian value-added tax matters and $1 million for
other matters. If our assumptions or analyses regarding these contingencies are incorrect, or if facts change, we could realize losses in excess of the recorded
accruals (and in excess of the $12 million referenced above), which could have a material negative impact on our financial condition, results of operations, and
cash flows.

For more information regarding litigation contingencies, please refer to Note T on page 60 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Exhibit
99.3 attached to this Form 8-K, which is incorporated herein by reference.

Aerospace and Work Furniture Reporting Units' Goodwill

Fair value for our Aerospace and Work Furniture reporting units exceeded carrying value by 51% and 25%, respectively, at our June 30, 2020 annual
goodwill impairment testing date.

Sales for both of these units were adversely impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic. If there is a prolonged adverse economic impact, or otherwise, we may
not be able to achieve projected performance levels. Although we do not believe that a triggering event has occurred, internal forecasts and industry data
suggest that economic impacts of COVID-19 for the aerospace industry may be longer than previously expected during the second quarter impairment testing.
We are continuing to monitor all factors impacting this industry.
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The goodwill associated with the Aerospace and Work Furniture reporting units was $59 million and $97 million, respectively, at December 31, 2020.

Continued negative market trends may impact future earnings. If we are not able to achieve projected performance levels, future impairments may be
possible.

Potential Sale of Real Estate

Although the potential sale is subject to significant conditions that may change the timing, the amount, and whether the sale is completed at all, we have
agreed to sell certain real estate associated with prior years' restructuring activities in the Bedding Products segment. If the sale is completed, we expect to
realize a gain of up to $25 million to $30 million on this transaction in 2021.

Cybersecurity Risks

We rely on information systems to obtain, process, analyze, and manage data, as well as to facilitate the manufacture and distribution of inventory to and
from our facilities. We receive, process, and ship orders, manage the billing of and collections from our customers, and manage the accounting for and payment
to our vendors. We have a formal process in place for both incident response and cybersecurity continuous improvement that includes a cross-functional
Cybersecurity Oversight Committee. Members of the Cybersecurity Oversight Committee update the Board quarterly on cyber activity, with procedures in
place for interim reporting if necessary.

Although we have not experienced any material cybersecurity incidents, we have enhanced our cybersecurity protection efforts over the last few years.
We use a third party to periodically benchmark our information security program against the National Institute of Standards and Technology’s Cybersecurity
Framework. We provide quarterly cybersecurity training for employees with access to our email and data systems, and we have purchased broad form cyber
insurance coverage. However, because of risk due to the COVID-19 pandemic regarding increased remote access, remote work conditions, and associated
strain on employees, technology failures or cybersecurity breaches could still create system disruptions or unauthorized disclosure of confidential information.
We cannot be certain that the attacker’s capabilities will not compromise our technology protecting information systems. If these systems are interrupted or
damaged by any incident or fail for any extended period of time, then our results of operations could be adversely affected. We may incur remediation costs,
increased cybersecurity protection costs, lost revenues resulting from unauthorized use of proprietary information, litigation and legal costs, reputational
damage, damage to our competitiveness, and negative impact on stock price and long-term shareholder value.

NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

The FASB has issued accounting guidance effective for current and future periods. See Note A on page 11 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements in Exhibit 99.3 attached to this Form 8-K for a more complete discussion.
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Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules.

(a) Financial Statements and Financial Statement Schedule.

The Reports, Financial Statements and Notes, supplementary financial information and Financial Statement Schedule listed below are included in this
Form 8-K Exhibit 99.3:

Page No.
* Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 2
*  Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 3
» Consolidated Statements of Operations for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2020 6
» Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss)_for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2020 7
* Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2020 and 2019 8
» Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2020 9
» Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2020 10
¢ Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 11
* Quarterly Summary of Earnings (Unaudited) 63
»  Schedule II—Valuation and Qualifying Accounts and Reserves for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2020 64

We have omitted other information schedules because the information is inapplicable, not required, or in the financial statements or notes.
(b) Exhibits—See Exhibit Index beginning on page 135 of the Form 10-K filed February 24, 2021.

We did not file other long-term debt instruments because the total amount of securities authorized under all of these instruments does not exceed ten
percent of the total assets of the Company and its subsidiaries on a consolidated basis. The Company agrees to furnish a copy of such instruments to the SEC
upon request.


http://www.sec.gov/ix?doc=/Archives/edgar/data/58492/000005849221000005/leg-20201231.htm#ib497585951bb4c17b7231080df185ae4_355

EXHIBIT 99.3

Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management of Leggett & Platt, Incorporated is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting as defined
in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f). Leggett & Platt’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America. The Company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that:

»  Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of Leggett &
Platt;

*  Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and that receipts and expenditures of Leggett & Platt are being made only in accordance
with authorizations of management and directors of Leggett & Platt; and

*  Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of Leggett & Platt assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation
of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Under the supervision and with the participation of management (including ourselves), we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of Leggett &
Platt’s internal control over financial reporting, as of December 31, 2020, based on the criteria in Internal Control—Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on the evaluation under this framework, we concluded that Leggett & Platt’s
internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2020.

Leggett & Platt’s internal control over financial reporting, as of December 31, 2020, has been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent
registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report appearing on page 3 of this Form 8-K, Exhibit 99.3.

/s/ KARL G. GLASSMAN /s/ JEFFREY L. TATE

Karl G. Glassman Jeffrey L. Tate

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
February 24, 2021 February 24, 2021
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Leggett & Platt, Incorporated

Opinions on the Financial Statements and Internal Control over Financial Reporting

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Leggett & Platt, Incorporated and its subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of December 31,
2020 and 2019, and the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income (loss), changes in equity and cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended December 31, 2020, including the related notes and financial statement schedule listed in the index appearing under Item 15(a)
(collectively referred to as the “consolidated financial statements”). We also have audited the Company's internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2020, based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission (COSO).

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of
December 31, 2020 and 2019, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2020 in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material
respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2020, based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework
(2013) issued by the COSO.

Changes in Accounting Principles

As discussed in Notes A and K to the consolidated financial statements, respectively, the Company changed the manner in which it accounts for inventory
in 2021, and the manner in which it accounts for leases in 2019.

Basis for Opinions

The Company's management is responsible for these consolidated financial statements, for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting,
and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management’s Annual Report on Internal
Control Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express opinions on the Company’s consolidated financial statements and on the Company's internal
control over financial reporting based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States) (PCAOB) and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules
and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud, and whether effective
internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects.

Our audits of the consolidated financial statements included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis,
evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. Our audit of internal control
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audits also included performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.
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Definition and Limitations of Internal Control over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation
of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Critical Audit Matter

The critical audit matter communicated below is a matter arising from the current period audit of the consolidated financial statements that was
communicated or required to be communicated to the audit committee and that (i) relates to accounts or disclosures that are material to the consolidated
financial statements and (ii) involved our especially challenging, subjective, or complex judgments. The communication of critical audit matters does not alter
in any way our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, taken as a whole, and we are not, by communicating the critical audit matter below, providing
a separate opinion on the critical audit matter or on the accounts or disclosures to which it relates.

Goodwill Impairment Assessment - Work Furniture and Aerospace Reporting Units

As described in Notes A, C and D to the consolidated financial statements, the Company’s consolidated net goodwill balance was $1,388.8 million as of
December 31, 2020, and the goodwill associated with the Work Furniture and Aerospace reporting units were $97.2 million and $59.5 million, respectively.
Management assesses goodwill for impairment annually and as triggering events occur. An impairment charge is recognized for the amount by which the
carrying amount exceeds the reporting unit's fair value, up to the total amount of goodwill for the reporting unit. Fair value of the reporting unit is determined
by management using a combination of two valuation methods, a market approach and an income approach, with each method generally given equal weighting
in determining the fair value assigned to each reporting unit. The market approach estimates fair value by first determining price-to-earnings ratios for
comparable publicly traded companies with similar characteristics of the reporting unit. The price-to-earnings ratio for comparable companies is based upon
current enterprise value compared to the projected earnings for the next two years. The enterprise value is based upon current market capitalization and
includes a control premium. Projected earnings are based upon market analysts’ projections. The earnings ratios are applied to the projected earnings of the
comparable reporting unit to estimate fair value. The income approach is based on projected future (debt-free) cash flow that is discounted to present value
using factors that consider the timing and risk of future cash flows. Discounted cash flow projections are based on 10-year financial forecasts developed from
operating plans and economic projections, sales growth, estimates of future expected changes in operating margins, terminal value growth rates, discount rates,
future capital expenditures and changes in working capital requirements.

The principal considerations for our determination that performing procedures relating to the goodwill impairment assessment of the Work Furniture and
Aerospace reporting units is a critical audit matter are (i) the significant judgment by management when determining the fair value measurement of the
reporting units derived from the income approach; (ii) the high degree of auditor judgment, subjectivity, and effort in performing procedures and evaluating
management’s significant assumptions related to sales growth, estimates of future expected changes in operating margins, and discount rates; and (iii) the audit
effort involved the use of professionals with specialized skill and knowledge.

Addressing the matter involved performing procedures and evaluating audit evidence in connection with forming our overall opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. These procedures included testing the effectiveness of controls relating to management’s goodwill impairment assessment, including
controls over determination of the fair value of the
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Company’s Work Furniture and Aerospace reporting units. These procedures also included, among others, (i) testing management's process for determining the
fair value estimate of the reporting units, (ii) evaluating the appropriateness of the discounted cash flow model, (iii) testing the completeness, accuracy and
relevance of underlying data used in the model, and (iv) evaluating the significant assumptions used by management related to the sales growth, estimates of
future expected changes in operating margins, and discount rates. Evaluating management’s assumptions used in the income approach related to sales growth
and estimates of future expected changes in operating margins involved evaluating whether the assumptions were reasonable considering (i) past and present
performance of the reporting units, (ii) the consistency with external market and industry data, and (iii) whether these assumptions were consistent with
evidence obtained in other areas of the audit. Professionals with specialized skill and knowledge were used to assist in the evaluation of the Company's
discounted cash flow model and the discount rates.

/sl PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS LLP

St. Louis, Missouri
February 24, 2021, except with respect to our opinion on the consolidated financial statements insofar as it relates to the change in the manner in which the company accounts for
inventory discussed in Note A, as to which the date is May 25, 2021

We have served as the Company’s auditor since 1991.
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LEGGETT & PLATT, INCORPORATED

Consolidated Statements of Operations

Year Ended December 31
(Amounts in millions, except per share data) 2020 2019 2018
Net trade sales $ 4,280.2 $ 4,7525 $ 4,269.5
Cost of goods sold 3,376.1 3,728.5 3,357.4
Gross profit 904.1 1,024.0 912.1
Selling and administrative expenses 424.4 469.7 425.1
Amortization of intangibles 65.2 63.3 20.5
Impairments 29.4 7.8 5.4
Other (income) expense, net (22.4) (3.6) .8
Earnings before interest and income taxes 407.5 486.8 460.3
Interest expense 82.7 90.7 60.9
Interest income 3.1 7.4 8.4
Earnings before income taxes 327.9 403.5 407.8
Income taxes 74.8 89.4 84.1
Net earnings 253.1 314.1 323.7
(Earnings) attributable to noncontrolling interest, net of tax (.1) (.1) (.2)
Net earnings attributable to Leggett & Platt, Inc. common shareholders $ 253.0 $ 3140 $ 323.5
Net earnings per share attributable to Leggett & Platt, Inc. common shareholders
Basic $ 1.86 $ 233 $ 241
Diluted $ 186 $ 232§ 2.39

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



EXHIBIT 99.3

LEGGETT & PLATT, INCORPORATED

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Year Ended December 31
(Amounts in millions)

2020 2019 2018
Net earnings $ 253.1 $ 3141 $ 323.7
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
Foreign currency translation adjustments 27.8 5.0 (67.0)
Cash flow hedges 5.5 7.7 (.3)
Defined benefit pension plans 9.0) (11.9) (.8)
Other comprehensive income (loss) 24.3 .8 (68.1)
Comprehensive income 277.4 314.9 255.6
Less: comprehensive (income) attributable to noncontrolling interest — (.1) (.2)
Comprehensive income attributable to Leggett & Platt, Inc. $ 2774 $ 3148 $ 255.4

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



(Amounts in millions, except per share data)
ASSETS
Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Trade receivables, net

Other receivables, net

Total receivables, net
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Total current assets

Property, Plant and Equipment—at cost

Machinery and equipment

Buildings and other

Land

Total property, plant and equipment

Less accumulated depreciation

Net property, plant and equipment

Other Assets
Goodwill
Other intangibles, net
Operating lease right-of-use assets

Sundry
Total other assets
TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Current Liabilities
Current maturities of long-term debt
Current portion of operating lease liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Other current liabilities
Total current liabilities
Long-term Liabilities
Long-term debt
Operating lease liabilities
Other long-term liabilities
Deferred income taxes
Total long-term liabilities
Commitments and Contingencies
Equity

Common stock: Preferred stock—authorized, 100.0 shares; none issued; Common stock—authorized, 600.0 shares of $.01 par value; 198.8 shares

issued
Additional contributed capital
Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive (loss)

LEGGETT & PLATT, INCORPORATED
Consolidated Balance Sheets

Less treasury stock—at cost (66.2 and 67.0 shares at December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively)

Total Leggett & Platt, Inc. equity

Noncontrolling interest
Total equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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December 31

2020 2019
$ 3489 $ 247.6
535.2 564.4

28.4 275

563.6 591.9

691.5 675.7

54.1 61.9

1,658.1 1,577.1

1,396.2 1,388.8

740.9 719.0

43.6 435

2,180.7 2,151.3

1,395.9 1,320.5
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$ 509 § 51.1
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275.2 281.0

85.3 93.3

1,006.0 928.1

1,849.3 2,066.5

122.1 121.6

192.1 173.5

205.4 2238

2,368.9 2,585.4

2.0 2.0

543.2 536.1

2,797.2 2,763.9

(52.4) (76.8)

(1,865.4) (1,883.8)

1,424.6 1,341.4

5 5

1,425.1 1,341.9

$ 4,8000 $ 4,855.4
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LEGGETT & PLATT, INCORPORATED
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31
(Amounts in millions) 2020 2019 2018
Operating Activities
Net earnings $ 2531 §$ 3141 $ 323.7
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 119.4 117.5 104.3
Amortization of intangibles and supply agreements 70.0 74.4 31.8
Long-lived asset impairment 4.0 7.8 5.4
Goodwill impairment 25.4 — —
Provision for losses on accounts and notes receivable 17.1 2.8 16.7
Writedown of inventories 13.6 15.1 18.2
Net gain from sales of assets and businesses — (5.0) (2.1)
Deferred income tax (benefit) expense (20.9) .8 2.6
Stock-based compensation 29.2 33.0 35.5
Pension expense (income), net of contributions 1.9 4.3 (19.2)
Other, net 9.5 2.2 7
Increases/decreases in, excluding effects from acquisitions and divestitures:
Accounts and other receivables 24.3 53.0 (25.8)
Inventories (31.9) 73.8 (85.6)
Other current assets 4.8 (2.8) (1.9)
Accounts payable 83.0 (39.4) 36.2
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 1 16.4 (.2)
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 602.6 668.0 440.3
Investing Activities
Additions to property, plant and equipment (66.2) (143.1) (159.6)
Purchases of companies, net of cash acquired — (1,265.1) (109.2)
Proceeds from sales of assets and businesses 14.8 5.5 4.9
Other, net 2.4 (15.5) (13.9)
Net Cash Used for Investing Activities (49.0) (1,418.2) (277.8)
Financing Activities
Additions to long-term debt — 993.3 —
Payments on long-term debt (157.5) (37.6) (155.4)
Change in commercial paper and short-term debt (70.3) 8.7) 69.6
Dividends paid (211.5) (204.6) (193.7)
Issuances of common stock 1.5 9.3 4.8
Purchases of common stock (10.6) (16.4) (112.4)
Additional consideration paid on prior year acquisitions 8.4) (1.1) 9.3)
Other, net (4.9) (3.1) (.5)
Net Cash (Used for) Provided by Financing Activities (461.7) 731.1 (396.9)
Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash 9.4 (1.4) (23.6)
Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 101.3 (20.5) (258.0)
Cash and Cash Equivalents—Beginning of Year 247.6 268.1 526.1
Cash and Cash Equivalents—End of Year $ 3489 $ 2476 $ 268.1
Supplemental Information
Interest paid (net of amounts capitalized) $ 748 $ 773 $ 61.8
Income taxes paid 108.6 84.2 92.8
Property, plant and equipment acquired through finance leases 1.8 2.1 1.9
Capital expenditures in accounts payable 7.1 6.8 6.7
Prepaid income taxes and taxes receivable (recovered) applied against the deemed repatriation tax liability 1.2 (.6) 28.4

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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LEGGETT & PLATT, INCORPORATED
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity

Common Stock Additional Accgltrll:l;lted Treasury Stock

(Amounts in millions, except Contributed Retained Comprehensive Noncontrolling Total
per share data) Shares Amount Capital Earnings Income (Loss) Shares Amount Interest Equity
Balance, December 31, 2017 1988 $ 20 $ 5147 $ 25429 § (9.5) (66.9) $ (1,828.3) $ 6 $ 12224
Effect of accounting change on prior
years (See Note B) — — — (2.3) — — — — (2.3)

Adjusted beginning balance,

January 1, 2018 198.8 2.0 514.7 2,540.6 9.5) (66.9) (1,828.3) 6 1,220.1
Net earnings attributable to Leggett &
Platt, Inc. common shareholders — — — 323.5 — — — 2 323.7
Dividends declared — — 5.3 (201.1) — — — — (195.8)
Dividends paid to noncontrolling
interest — — — — — — — (-2) (.2)
Treasury stock purchased — — — — — (2.6) (113.6) — (113.6)
Treasury stock issued — — (16.6) — — 1.2 33.6 — 17.0
Other comprehensive (loss), net of tax
(See Note P) — — — — (68.1) — — — (68.1)
Stock-based compensation, net of tax — — 23.7 — — — — — 23.7
Balance, December 31, 2018 1988 § 20 § 5271 $ 2,663.0 $ (77.6) 683) $ (1,9083) $ 6 $ 1,206.8
Effect of accounting change on prior
years (See Note K) — — — 1 — — — — 1

Adjusted beginning balance,

January 1, 2019 198.8 2.0 527.1 2,663.1 (77.6) (68.3) (1,908.3) .6 1,206.9
Net earnings attributable to Leggett &
Platt, Inc. common shareholders — — — 314.0 — — — 1 314.1
Dividends declared — — 5.4 (213.2) — — — — (207.8)
Dividends paid to noncontrolling
interest — — — — — — — (.2) (.2)
Treasury stock purchased — — — — — (.7) (31.1) — (31.1)
Treasury stock issued — — (22.3) — — 2.0 55.6 — 33.3
Other comprehensive income, net of tax
(See Note P) — — — — .8 — — — .8
Stock-based compensation, net of tax — — 25.9 — — — — — 25.9
Balance, December 31, 2019 1988 $ 20 $ 536.1 $ 27639 $ (76.8) (67.0) $ (1,883.8) $ S5 0% 1,3419
Effect of accounting change on prior
years (See Note H) — — — (2.5) — — — — (2.5)

Adjusted beginning balance,

January 1, 2020 198.8 2.0 536.1 2,761.4 (76.8) (67.0) (1,883.8) 5 1,339.4
Net earnings attributable to Leggett &
Platt, Inc. common shareholders — — — 253.0 — — — d 253.1
Dividends declared — — 5.5 (217.2) — — — — (211.7)
Treasury stock purchased — — — — — (-2) (11.2) — (11.2)
Treasury stock issued — — (21.9) — — 1.0 29.6 — 7.7
Other comprehensive income, net of tax
(See Note P) — — — — 244 — — (1) 24.3
Stock-based compensation, net of tax — — 23.5 — — — — — 23.5
Balance, December 31, 2020 1988 $ 20 $ 5432 $ 2,7972 $ (52.4) (66.2) $ (1,865.4) $ S5 $  1,425.1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Leggett & Platt, Incorporated
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Dollar amounts in millions, except per share data)

December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018

A—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION: The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Leggett & Platt, Incorporated and its majority-
owned subsidiaries (“we” or “our”). Management does not expect foreign exchange restrictions to significantly impact the ultimate realization of amounts
consolidated in the accompanying financial statements for subsidiaries located outside the United States. All intercompany transactions and accounts have been
eliminated in consolidation.

ESTIMATES: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America
("GAAP") requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenses and the
accrual and disclosure of loss contingencies.

CASH EQUIVALENTS: Cash equivalents include cash in excess of daily requirements, which is invested in various financial instruments with original
maturities of three months or less.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS: Trade receivables are recorded at the invoiced amount
and generally do not bear interest. Credit is also occasionally extended in the form of a note receivable to facilitate our customers’ operating cycles. Other notes
receivable are established in special circumstances, such as in partial payment for the sale of a business or to support other business opportunities. Other notes
receivable generally bear interest at market rates commensurate with the corresponding credit risk on the date of origination.

We have participated in trade receivables sales programs with third-party banking institutions and trade receivables sales programs that have been
implemented by certain of our customers the last few years. Under each of these programs, we sell our entire interest in the trade receivable for 100% of face
value, less a discount. Because control of the sold receivable is transferred to the buyer at the time of sale, accounts receivable balances sold are removed from
the Consolidated Balance Sheets and the related proceeds are reported as cash provided by operating activities in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.
We had approximately $45.0 and $40.0 of trade receivables that were sold and removed from our Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2020 and 2019.

The allowance for doubtful accounts is an estimate of the amount of probable credit losses. On January 1, 2020, we adopted ASU 2016-13 "Financial
Instruments—Credit Losses" (Topic 326) as discussed in Note H. Prior to adoption, allowances and nonaccrual status designations were determined by
individual account reviews by management and were based on several factors, such as the length of time that receivables were past due, the financial health of
the companies involved, industry and macroeconomic considerations, and historical loss experience. To determine our allowance for doubtful accounts under
the new guidance, we also are utilizing a pool approach to group our receivables with similar risk characteristics. Our pools correspond with our business units,
which generally have similar terms, industry-specific conditions, and historical or expected loss patterns. Reserves are established for each pool based on their
level of risk exposure. When credit deterioration occurs on a specific customer within a pool, we evaluate the receivable separately to estimate the expected
credit loss, based on the specific risk characteristics. A qualitative reserve is also established for any current macroeconomic conditions or reasonable and
supportable forecasts that could impact the expected collectibility of all or a portion of our receivables portfolio.

Account balances are charged against the allowance when it is probable the receivable will not be recovered. Interest income is not recognized for
nonperforming accounts that are placed on nonaccrual status. For accounts on nonaccrual status, any interest payments received are applied against the balance
of the nonaccrual account.

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE: Accounts payable are recorded at the invoiced amount for services at the time they are rendered and for inventory based on the
delivery terms of the purchase. We sometimes utilize third-party programs that allow our suppliers to be paid earlier at a discount. While these programs assist
us in negotiating payment terms with our
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suppliers, we continue to make payments based on our customary terms. A vendor can elect to take payment from a third party earlier with a discount, and in
that case, we pay the third party on the original due date of the invoice. Contracts with our suppliers are negotiated independently of supplier participation in
the programs, and we cannot increase payment terms pursuant to the programs. The accounts payable, which remain on our Consolidated Balance Sheets,

settled through the third-party programs were approximately $105.0 and $55.0 at December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

INVENTORIES: As of January 1, 2021, we changed our method for valuing certain inventories (primarily domestic steel-related inventories, largely in
the Bedding Products and Furniture, Flooring & Textile Products segments) to the first-in, first-out (FIFO) cost method from the last-in, first-out (LIFO) cost
method. We believe that this change in accounting is preferable as it more closely resembles the physical flow of inventory, is a more consistent method to
value inventory across our businesses, and results in improved comparability with industry peers. After this change, we no longer utilize the LIFO cost method;
the majority of our inventories are now valued using the FIFO cost method, with the remainder valued using an average-cost method. Prior to this change, our

LIFO inventories represented about one-third of our total inventories as of December 31, 2020.

The effects of this change have been retrospectively applied to all years presented. This change resulted in an increase to retained earnings of $31.6 as of

January 1, 2018 in accordance with ASC 250, Accounting Changes and Error Corrections.

In addition, certain financial statement line items in our Consolidated Statements of Operations and our Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the
years ended December 31, 2020, 2019, and 2018, and our Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, were adjusted as follows:

As Originally Reported Effect of Change As Adjusted

Consolidated Statement of Operations for the year ended December 31, 2020
Cost of goods sold $ 3,385.7 9.6) $ 3,376.1
Other (income) expense, net (25.0) 2.6 (22.4)
Earnings before interest and income taxes 400.5 7.0 407.5
Income taxes 73.2 1.6 74.8
Net earnings 247.7 5.4 253.1
Net earnings per share attributable to Leggett & Platt, Inc. common shareholders:

Basic $ 1.82 .04 $ 1.86

Diluted $ 1.82 .04 % 1.86
Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2020
Inventories $ 645.5 46.0 $ 691.5
Deferred income taxes 194.2 11.2 205.4
Retained earnings 2,762.4 34.8 2,797.2
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended December 31, 2020
Net earnings $ 247.7 54 $ 253.1
Writedown of inventories 10.9 2.7 13.6
Net gain from sales of assets and businesses (2.5) 2.5 —
Deferred income tax (benefit) expense (22.5) 1.6 (20.9)
Inventories (19.7) (12.2) (31.9)

12



EXHIBIT 99.3

As Originally Reported Effect of Change As Adjusted

Consolidated Statement of Operations for the year ended December 31, 2019
Cost of goods sold $ 3,7019 $ 26.6 3,728.5
Earnings before interest and income taxes 513.4 (26.6) 486.8
Income taxes 96.2 (6.8) 89.4
Net earnings 3339 (19.8) 314.1
Net earnings per share attributable to Leggett & Platt, Inc. common shareholders:

Basic $ 248 $ (.15) 2.33

Diluted $ 247 $ (-15) 2.32
Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2019
Inventories $ 636.7 $ 39.0 675.7
Deferred income taxes 214.2 9.6 223.8
Retained earnings 2,734.5 29.4 2,763.9
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended December 31, 2019
Net earnings $ 3339 $ (19.8) 314.1
Writedown of inventories 9.0 6.1 15.1
Deferred income tax (benefit) expense 7.6 (6.8) .8
Inventories 53.3 20.5 73.8
Consolidated Statement of Operations for the year ended December 31, 2018
Cost of goods sold $ 3,380.8 $ (23.4) 3,357.4
Earnings before interest and income taxes 436.9 234 460.3
Income taxes 78.3 5.8 84.1
Net earnings 306.1 17.6 323.7
Net earnings per share attributable to Leggett & Platt, Inc. common shareholders:

Basic $ 228 $ 13 2.41

Diluted $ 226 $ 13 2.39
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended December 31, 2018
Net earnings $ 306.1 $ 17.6 323.7
Writedown of inventories 10.3 7.9 18.2
Deferred income tax (benefit) expense (3.2) 5.8 2.6
Inventories (54.3) (31.3) (85.6)
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The following table recaps the components of inventory for each period presented inclusive of the accounting method change discussed above:

December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019
Finished goods $ 3038 $ 304.8
Work in process 47.2 54.3
Raw materials and supplies 340.5 316.6
Inventories $ 6915 $ 675.7

All inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value. We generally use standard costs which include materials, labor, and production
overhead at normal production capacity.

Inventories are reviewed at least quarterly for slow-moving and potentially obsolete items using actual inventory turnover and, if necessary, are written
down to estimated net realizable value. Restructuring activity and decisions to narrow product offerings (as discussed in Note E) also impact the estimated net
realizable value of inventories. We have had no material changes in inventory writedowns or slow-moving and obsolete inventory reserves in any of the years
presented.

ACQUISITIONS: When acquisitions occur, we value the assets acquired, liabilities assumed, and any noncontrolling interest in acquired companies at
estimated acquisition date fair values. Goodwill is measured as the excess amount of consideration transferred, compared to fair value of the assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed. While we use our best estimates and assumptions to accurately value these items at the acquisition date (as well as contingent
consideration where applicable), our estimates are inherently uncertain and subject to refinement during the measurement period, which may be up to one year
from the acquisition date.

We utilize the following methodologies in determining fair value:

+ Inventory is valued at current replacement cost for raw materials, with a step-up for work in process and finished goods items that reflects the amount
of ultimate profit earned as of the valuation date.

*  Other working capital items are generally recorded at carrying value, unless there are known conditions that would impact the ultimate settlement
amount of the particular item.

*  Buildings and machinery are valued at an estimated replacement cost for an asset of comparable age and condition. Market pricing of comparable
assets is used to estimate replacement cost where available.

*  The most common identified intangible assets are customer relationships, technology, and tradenames. Discount rates discussed below are typically
derived from a weighted-average cost of capital analysis and adjusted to reflect inherent risks.

o Customer relationships are valued using an excess earnings method using various inputs, such as the estimated customer attrition rate,
revenue growth rate and cost of sales, the amount of contributory asset charges, and an appropriate discount rate. The economic useful life is
determined based on historical customer turnover rates.

o Technology and tradenames are valued using a relief-from-royalty method, with various inputs, such as comparable market royalty rates for
items of similar value, future earnings forecast, an appropriate discount rate, and a replacement rate for technology. The economic useful life
is determined based on the expected life of the technology and tradenames.

DIVESTITURES: Significant accounting policies associated with a decision to dispose of a business are discussed below:

Discontinued Operations—A business is classified as discontinued operations if the disposal represents a strategic shift that will have a major effect on
operations or financial results and meets the criteria to be classified as held for sale or is disposed of by sale or otherwise. Significant judgments are involved in
determining whether a business meets the criteria for discontinued operations reporting and the period in which these criteria are met.

If a business is reported as a discontinued operation, the results of operations through the date of sale, including any gain or loss recognized on the
disposition, are presented on a separate line of the income statement. Interest on debt directly attributable to the discontinued operation is allocated to
discontinued operations. Gains and losses related to the sale of
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businesses that do not meet the discontinued operation criteria are reported in continuing operations and separately disclosed if significant.

Assets Held for Sale—An asset or business is classified as held for sale when (i) management commits to a plan to sell and it is actively marketed; (ii) it
is available for immediate sale and the sale is expected to be completed within one year; and (iii) it is unlikely significant changes to the plan will be made or
that the plan will be withdrawn. In isolated instances, assets held for sale may exceed one year due to events or circumstances beyond our control. Upon being
classified as held for sale, the recoverability of the carrying value must be assessed. Evaluating the recoverability of the assets of a business classified as held
for sale follows a defined order in which property and intangible assets subject to amortization are considered only after the recoverability of goodwill and
other assets are assessed. After the valuation process is completed, the assets held for sale are reported at the lower of the carrying value or fair value less cost
to sell, and the assets are no longer depreciated or amortized. An impairment charge is recognized if the carrying value exceeds the fair value less cost to sell.
The assets and related liabilities are aggregated and reported on separate lines of the balance sheet.

Assets Held for Use—If a decision to dispose of an asset or a business is made and the held for sale criteria are not met, it is considered held for use.
Assets of the business are evaluated for recoverability in the following order: (i) assets other than goodwill, property and intangibles; (ii) property and
intangibles subject to amortization; and (iii) goodwill. In evaluating the recoverability of property and intangible assets subject to amortization, the carrying
value is first compared to the sum of the undiscounted cash flows expected to result from the use and eventual disposition. If the carrying value exceeds the
undiscounted expected cash flows, then a fair value analysis is performed. An impairment charge is recognized if the carrying value exceeds the fair value.

LOSS CONTINGENCIES: Loss contingencies are accrued when a loss is probable and reasonably estimable. If a range of outcomes are possible, the
most likely outcome is used to accrue these costs. If no outcome is more likely, we accrue at the minimum amount of the range. Any insurance recovery is
recorded separately if it is determined that a recovery is probable. Legal fees are accrued when incurred.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT: Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation. Assets are depreciated by the
straight-line method and salvage value, if any, is assumed to be minimal. The table below presents the depreciation periods of the estimated useful lives of our
property, plant and equipment. Accelerated methods are used for tax purposes.

Useful Life Range Weighted Average Life
Machinery and equipment 3-20 years 10 years
Buildings 5-40 years 27 years
Other items 3-15 years 10 years

Property is reviewed for recoverability at year end and whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that its carrying value may not be
recoverable as discussed above.

GOODWILL: Goodwill results from the acquisition of existing businesses. It is assessed for impairment annually and as triggering events may occur.
Our seven reporting units are the business groups one level below the operating segment level for which discrete financial information is available. We perform
our annual review in the second quarter of each year using a quantitative analysis.

Previous to 2020, the quantitative analysis utilized a two-step approach which involved a comparison of the fair value of a reporting unit with its
carrying value. If the carrying value of the reporting unit exceeded its fair value, the second step of the process was necessary and involved a comparison of the
implied fair value and the carrying value of the goodwill of that reporting unit. If the carrying value of the goodwill of a reporting unit exceeded the implied fair
value of that goodwill, an impairment loss was recognized in an amount equal to the excess.

Beginning in 2020, we implemented ASU 2017-04 "Intangibles—Goodwill and Other (Topic 350): Simplifying the Test for Goodwill Impairment," as
discussed in "New Accounting Guidance" below. The new process eliminated Step 2 from the goodwill impairment test. The test is now performed by
comparing the fair value of a reporting unit with its carrying amount. An impairment charge is recognized for the amount by which the carrying amount
exceeds the reporting unit's fair value, up to the total amount of goodwill for the reporting unit.
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Fair value of reporting units is determined using a combination of two valuation methods: a market approach and an income approach. Each method is
generally given equal weight in determining the fair value assigned to each reporting unit. Absent an indication of fair value from a potential buyer or similar
specific transaction, we believe that the use of these two methods provides a reasonable estimate of a reporting unit’s fair value. Assumptions common to both
methods are operating plans and economic projections, which are used to project future revenues, earnings, and after-tax cash flows for each reporting unit.
These assumptions are applied consistently for both methods.

The market approach estimates fair value by first determining price-to-earnings ratios for comparable publicly-traded companies with similar
characteristics of the reporting unit. The price-to-earnings ratio for comparable companies is based upon current enterprise value compared to the projected
earnings for the next two years. The enterprise value is based upon current market capitalization and includes a control premium. Projected earnings are based
upon market analysts’ projections. The earnings ratios are applied to the projected earnings of the comparable reporting unit to estimate fair value. Management
believes this approach is appropriate because it provides a fair value estimate using multiples from entities with operations and economic characteristics
comparable to our reporting units.

The income approach is based on projected future (debt-free) cash flow that is discounted to present value using factors that consider the timing and risk
of future cash flows. Management believes that this approach is appropriate because it provides a fair value estimate based upon the reporting unit’s expected
long-term operating cash flow performance. Discounted cash flow projections are based on 10-year financial forecasts developed from operating plans and
economic projections noted above, sales growth, estimates of future expected changes in operating margins, an appropriate discount rate, terminal value growth
rates, future capital expenditures, and changes in working capital requirements. There are inherent assumptions and judgments required in the analysis of
goodwill impairment. It is possible that assumptions underlying the impairment analysis will change in such a manner that impairment in value may occur in
the future.

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS: Substantially all other intangible assets are amortized using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives
and are evaluated for impairment using a process similar to that used in evaluating the recoverability of property, plant and equipment.
Useful Life Range Weighted Average Life
Other intangible assets 5-20 years 14 years

STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION: The cost of employee services received in exchange for all equity awards granted is based on the fair market value
of the award as of the grant date. Expense is recognized net of an estimated forfeiture rate using the straight-line method over the vesting period of the award.

REVENUE RECOGNITION: On January 1, 2018, we adopted ASU 2014-09 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers" (Topic 606) as discussed in Note
B. We recognize revenue when control of our products transfers to our customers, which is generally upon shipment from our facilities or upon delivery to our
customers’ facilities. We reduce revenue for estimated sales allowances, discounts, and rebates, which are our primary forms of variable consideration.

SHIPPING AND HANDLING FEES AND COSTS: Shipping and handling costs are included as a component of “Cost of goods sold.”

RESTRUCTURING COSTS: Restructuring costs are items such as employee termination, contract termination, plant closure, and asset relocation costs
related to exit activities or workforce reductions. Restructuring-related items are inventory writedowns and gains or losses from sales of assets recorded as the
result of exit activities. We recognize a liability for costs associated with an exit or disposal activity when the liability is incurred. Certain termination benefits
for which employees are required to render service are recognized ratably over the respective future service periods.

INCOME TAXES: The provision for income taxes is determined using the asset and liability approach of accounting for income taxes. Under this
approach, deferred taxes represent the future tax consequences expected to occur when the reported amounts of assets and liabilities are recovered or paid. The
provision for income taxes represents income taxes paid or payable for the current year plus the change in deferred taxes during the year. Deferred taxes result
from differences between the financial and tax basis of our assets and liabilities and are adjusted for changes in tax rates and laws, as appropriate. A valuation
allowance is provided to reduce deferred tax assets when management cannot conclude that it is more likely than not that a tax benefit will be realized. A
provision is also made for incremental withholding taxes on
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undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries and related companies to the extent that such earnings are not deemed to be indefinitely invested.

The calculation of our U.S., state, and foreign tax liabilities involves dealing with uncertainties in the application of complex global tax laws. We
recognize potential liabilities for anticipated tax issues which might arise in the U.S. and other tax jurisdictions based on management’s estimate of whether,
and the extent to which, additional taxes will be due. If payment of these amounts ultimately proves to be unnecessary, the reversal of the liabilities would
result in tax benefits being recognized in the period when we determine the liabilities are no longer necessary. Conversely, if the estimate of tax liabilities
proves to be less than the ultimate tax assessment, a further charge to tax expense would result.

CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISKS, EXPOSURES, AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS: We manufacture, market, and distribute products for the
various end markets described in Note F. Our operations are principally located in the United States, although we also have operations in Europe, China,
Canada, Mexico and other countries.

We maintain allowances for potential credit losses. We perform ongoing credit evaluations of our customers’ financial conditions and generally require
no collateral from our customers, some of which are highly leveraged. Management also monitors the financial condition and status of other notes receivable.
Other notes receivable have historically primarily consisted of notes accepted as partial payment for the divestiture of a business or to support other business
opportunities. Some of these companies are highly leveraged and the notes are not fully collateralized.

We have no material guarantees or liabilities for product warranties which require disclosure.

From time to time, we will enter into contracts to hedge foreign currency denominated transactions and interest rates related to our debt. To minimize the
risk of counterparty default, only highly-rated financial institutions that meet certain requirements are used. We do not anticipate that any of the financial
institution counterparties will default on their obligations.

The carrying value of cash and short-term financial instruments approximates fair value due to the short maturity of those instruments.

OTHER RISKS: Although we obtain insurance for workers’ compensation, automobile, product and general liability, property loss, and medical claims,
we have elected to retain a significant portion of expected losses through the use of deductibles. Accrued liabilities include estimates for unpaid reported claims
and for claims incurred but not yet reported. Provisions for losses are recorded based upon reasonable estimates of the aggregate liability for claims incurred
utilizing our prior experience and information provided by our third-party administrators and insurance carriers.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS: We utilize derivative financial instruments to manage market and financial risks related to foreign
currency and interest rates. We seek to use derivative contracts that qualify for hedge accounting treatment; however, some instruments that economically
manage currency risk may not qualify for hedge accounting treatment. It is our policy not to speculate using derivative instruments.

Under hedge accounting, we formally document our hedge relationships, including identification of the hedging instruments and the hedged items, as
well as our risk management objectives and strategies for entering into the hedge transaction. The process includes designating derivative instruments as hedges
of specific assets, liabilities, firm commitments, or forecasted transactions. We also formally assess both at inception and on a quarterly basis thereafter,
whether the underlying transactions are probable of occurring. If it is determined that an underlying transaction is probable of not occurring, deferred gains or
losses are recorded in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

On the date the contract is entered into, we designate the derivative as one of the following types of hedging instruments and account for it as follows:

Cash Flow Hedge—The hedge of a forecasted transaction or of the variability of cash flows to be received or paid, related to a recognized asset or
liability or anticipated transaction, is designated as a cash flow hedge. The change in fair value is recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income. When
the hedged item impacts the income statement, the gain or loss included in "Other comprehensive income (loss)" is reported on the same line of the
Consolidated Statements of Operations as the hedged item, to match the gain or loss on the derivative to the gain or loss on the hedged item. If it is determined
that an underlying transaction is probable of not occurring, the changes in the fair value is immediately reported in the Consolidated Statements of Operations
on the same line as the hedged item. Settlements associated with the sale or
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production of product are presented in operating cash flows, and settlements associated with debt issuance are presented in financing cash flows.

Fair Value Hedge—The hedge of a recognized asset or liability or an unrecognized firm commitment is designated as a fair value hedge. For fair value
hedges the changes in fair value of the derivative, along with the gain or loss on the hedged item that is attributable to the hedged risk, are recorded in earnings
and reported in the Consolidated Statements of Operations on the same line as the hedged item. Cash flows from settled contracts are presented in the category
consistent with the nature of the item being hedged.

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION: The functional currency for most foreign operations is the local currency. The translation of foreign
currencies into U.S. dollars is performed for balance sheet accounts using current exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date and for income and expense
accounts using monthly average exchange rates. The cumulative effects of translating the functional currencies into the U.S. dollar are included in
comprehensive income.

RECLASSIFICATIONS: Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior years’ information in the Consolidated Financial Statements and related
notes to conform to the 2020 presentation. These were primarily a result of changes in our management organizational structure and related internal reporting
presentation as discussed in Note F.

NEW ACCOUNTING GUIDANCE: The Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) regularly issues updates to the FASB Accounting Standards
Codification that are communicated through issuance of an Accounting Standards Update (ASU). Below is a summary of the ASUs, effective for current or
future periods, most relevant to our financial statements:

Adopted in 2020:
*  OnJanuary 1, 2020, we adopted ASU 2016-13 “Financial Instruments—Credit Losses” (Topic 326) as discussed in Note H.

*  ASU 2017-04 “Intangibles—Goodwill and Other (Topic 350): Simplifying the Test for Goodwill Impairment”. We adopted this ASU on January 1,
2020. This ASU simplifies the subsequent measurement of goodwill by eliminating Step 2 from the goodwill impairment test. The annual goodwill
impairment test is performed by comparing the fair value of a reporting unit with its carrying amount, and an impairment charge would be recognized
for the amount by which the carrying amount exceeds the reporting unit's fair value, up to the total amount of goodwill for the reporting unit. We
applied this guidance to our annual goodwill impairment testing completed in the second quarter of 2020, as discussed in Note C.

* ASU 2018-15 “Intangibles—Goodwill and Other—Internal-Use Software (Subtopic 350-40): Customer’s Accounting for Implementation Costs
Incurred in a Cloud Computing Arrangement That Is a Service Contract (a consensus of the FASB Emerging Issues Task Force)”. We adopted this
ASU on January 1, 2020. This ASU aligns the requirements for capitalizing implementation costs incurred in a hosting arrangement that is a service
contract with the requirements for capitalizing implementation costs incurred to develop or obtain internal-use software. The adoption of this ASU did
not materially impact our financial statements.
To be adopted in future years:

+  ASU 2019-12 “Income Taxes (Topic 740): Simplifying the Accounting for Income Taxes”: This ASU will be effective January 1, 2021 and is a part of
the FASB overall simplification initiative. We are currently evaluating this guidance.

The FASB has issued accounting guidance, in addition to the issuance discussed above, effective for current and future periods. This guidance did not
have a material impact on our current financial statements, and we do not believe it will have a material impact on our future financial statements.
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B—Revenue

Initial adoption of new ASU

On January 1, 2018, we adopted ASU 2014-09 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” (Topic 606) and all the related amendments using the modified
retrospective method. We recognized the cumulative effect of initially applying the new revenue standard as a $2.3 reduction to the opening balance of
“Retained earnings.”

We recognize revenue when performance obligations, under the terms of a contract with our customers, are satisfied. Substantially all of our revenue is
recognized upon transfer of control of our products to our customers, which is generally upon shipment from our facilities or upon delivery to our customers'
facilities, and is dependent on the terms of the specific contract. This conclusion considers the point at which our customers have the ability to direct the use of
and obtain substantially all of the remaining benefits of the products that were transferred. Substantially all unsatisfied performance obligations as of
December 31, 2020, will be satisfied within one year or less. Shipping and handling costs are included as a component of “Cost of goods sold.”

Sales, value added, and other taxes collected in connection with revenue-producing activities are excluded from revenue.
Sales Allowances and Returns

The amount of consideration we receive and revenue we recognize varies with changes in various sales allowances, discounts, and rebates (variable
consideration) that we offer to our customers. We reduce revenue by our estimates of variable consideration, based on contract terms and historical experience.
Changes in estimates of variable consideration for the periods presented were not material.

Some of our products transferred to customers can be returned, and we recognize the following for this right:

*  An estimated refund liability and a corresponding reduction to revenue, based on historical returns experience.
* Anasset and a corresponding reduction to cost of sales for our right to recover products from customers upon settling the refund liability. We
reduce the carrying amount of these assets by estimates of costs associated with the recovery and any additional expected reduction in value.

Our refund liability and the corresponding asset associated with our right to recover products from our customers were immaterial for the periods
presented.

Other

We expect that at contract inception, the time period between when we transfer a promised good to our customer and our receipt of payment from that
customer for that good will be one year or less (our typical trade terms are 30 to 60 days for U.S. customers and up to 90 days for our international customers).

We generally expense costs of obtaining a contract because the amortization period would be one year or less.
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Revenue by Product Family

We disaggregate revenue by customer group, which is the same as our product families for each of our segments, as we believe this best depicts how the
nature, amount, timing, and uncertainty of our revenue and cash flows are affected by economic factors. For information regarding our new segment structure,
see Note F.

Year Ended December 31
2020 2019 2018
Bedding Products
Bedding Group ! $ 2,039.3 $ 2,2543 $ 1,795.3
2,039.3 2,254.3 1,795.3
Specialized Products
Automotive Group 719.0 816.1 823.3
Aerospace Products Group 102.4 157.7 148.9
Hydraulic Cylinders Group 69.8 93.0 84.1
891.2 1,066.8 1,056.3
Furniture, Flooring & Textile Products
Home Furniture Group 320.9 357.4 390.3
Work Furniture Group 231.1 297.3 291.4
Flooring & Textile Products Group 797.7 776.7 736.2
1,349.7 1,431.4 1,417.9

$ 4,280.2 $ 47525 § 4,269.5

1 The ECS acquisition occurred in January 2019. See Note R.

C—Impairment Charges

Pretax impact of impairment charges is summarized in the following table:

Year Ended
2020 2019 | 2018
. Other Long-Lived . Other Long-Lived
Goodwill Asset Impairments Total Other Long-Lived,( Asset Impairments
Impairment Impairments Asset Impairments
Bedding Products $ — $ 3 $ 311% 44| ($ 1.5
Specialized Products 25.4 — 25.4 — —
Furniture, Flooring & Textile Products — 2 2 3.4 3.9
Unallocated — 3.5 3.5 — —
Total impairment charges $ 254 $ 40 $ 294 | ($ 78| [$ 5.4

! Thisisa charge to write off stock associated with a prior year divestiture that filed bankruptcy in 2020.
2 Except as noted above, other long-lived asset impairments are primarily associated with restructuring activities, as discussed in Note E.

Goodwill Impairment Testing

As discussed in Note A, we test goodwill for impairment at the reporting unit level (the business groups that are one level below the operating segments)
when triggering events occur, or at least annually. We perform our annual goodwill impairment testing in the second quarter.

The 2019 and 2018 annual goodwill impairment review indicated no goodwill impairments.
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The 2020 goodwill impairment testing resulted in a $25.4 non-cash goodwill impairment charge in the second quarter of 2020 with respect to our
Hydraulic Cylinders reporting unit, which is a part of the Specialized Products segment. Demand for hydraulic cylinders is dependent upon capital spending for
material handling equipment. We began seeing some market softness in the industries served by this reporting unit in 2019, and the fair value of this reporting
unit exceeded its carrying value by 29% at December 31, 2019.

The impairment charge reflects the complete write-off of the goodwill associated with the Hydraulic Cylinders reporting unit and will not result in future
cash expenditures. Although we do not believe that a triggering event related to the impairment of goodwill or other long-lived assets occurred in the first
quarter of 2020, the anticipated longer-term economic impacts of COVID-19 lowered expectations of future revenue and profitability, causing its fair value to
fall below its carrying value. We concluded on July 30, 2020, as part of our normal second quarter 2020 annual goodwill impairment testing, and in connection
with the preparation and review of the second quarter 2020 financial statements, that an impairment charge was required with respect to this reporting unit. We
also evaluated other long-lived assets associated with this unit for impairment; no impairments were indicated other than goodwill.

We tested goodwill for impairment in all reporting units for all years presented using a quantitative approach. The fair values of our reporting units in
relation to their respective carrying values and significant assumptions used are presented in the tables below. In general, 2020 fair values for our reporting
units decreased versus prior years due to COVID-19 impacts on future cash flows. If actual results differ materially from estimates used in these calculations,
we could incur future impairment charges.

The 2020 table below excludes Hydraulic Cylinders, as this unit had no goodwill remaining after the second quarter 2020 impairment.
2020
10-year Compound

Terminal Values Long-term

Fair Value over Carrying Value divided

December 31, 2020

Annual Growth Rate Growth Rate for Debt-Free

by Carrying Value Goodwill Value Range for Sales Cash Flow Discount Rate Ranges
Less than 50% ! $ 97.2 2.1% 3.0 % 9.0%
50% - 100% > 916.3 2.0-3.6 3.0 9.0-10.0
101% - 300% 247.7 1.6-1.7 3.0 8.5-9.5
301% - 600% 127.6 6.7 3.0 9.0
$ 1,388.8 1.6% - 6.7% 3.0% 8.5% - 10.0%

2019

Fair Value over Carrying Value divided
by Carrying Value

December 31, 2019
Goodwill Value

10-year Compound Annual ~ Terminal Values Long-term
Growth Rate Range for Growth Rate for Debt-Free
Sales Cash Flow

Discount Rate Ranges

[~

Less than 50% $ 26.0 5.8% 3.0 % 8.0%
50% - 100% > 855.9 3.8 3.0 8.5-95
101% - 300% 400.9 1.3-55 3.0 7.5-8.0
301% - 600% 123.5 1.1 3.0 8.5

$ 1,406.3 1.3% - 11.1% 3.0 % 7.5% - 9.5%

This category includes one reporting unit for 2020, Work Furniture, which had fair value exceeding its carrying value by 25% at December 31,

2020, as compared to 126% in 2019.

2 This category includes two reporting units for 2020 and the Bedding reporting unit for 2019.

* The fair value of our Bedding reporting unit exceeded its carrying value by 65% at December 31, 2020, as compared to 80% in 2019. This
unit had $856.8 of goodwill at December 31, 2020.
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* The fair value of our Aerospace reporting unit exceeded its carrying value by 51% at December 31, 2020, as compared to 139% in 2019. This

unit had $59.5 of goodwill at December 31, 2020.

3 This category includes one reporting unit for 2019, Hydraulic Cylinders (acquired in 2018), which had fair value exceeding its carrying value by

29% at December 31, 2019.

Other long-lived assets

As discussed in Note A, we test other long-lived assets for recoverability at year end and whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may not be recoverable. Fair value, and the resulting impairment charges noted above, was based primarily upon offers from potential buyers or

third party estimates of fair value less selling costs.

D—Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

The changes in the carrying amounts of goodwill are as follows:

Net goodwill as of January 1, 2019
Additions for current year acquisitions
Adjustments to prior year acquisitions
Foreign currency translation adjustment
Net goodwill as of December 31, 2019
Adjustments to prior year acquisitions
Reductions for sale of business
Impairment charge
Foreign currency translation adjustment/other
Net goodwill as of December 31, 2020

Net goodwill as of December 31, 2020 is comprised of:
Gross goodwill
Accumulated impairment losses

Net goodwill as of December 31, 2020
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Furniture,
Flooring &
Bedding Specialized Textile
Products Products Products Total
$ 2945 $ 206.5 $ 3328 $ 833.8
558.4 — 7.9 566.3
9 2 — 1.1
2.1 2.1 9 5.1
855.9 208.8 341.6 1,406.3
— — .6 .6
(2.5) — — (2.5)
— (25.4) — (25.4)
3.5 3.6 2.7 9.8
$ 856.9 $ 187.0 $ 3449 $ 1,388.8
$ 862.3 $ 279.1 $ 5955 $ 1,736.9
(5.4) (92.1) (250.6) (348.1)
$ 856.9 $ 187.0 $ 3449 $ 1,388.8
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The gross carrying amount and accumulated amortization by intangible asset class and intangible assets acquired during the periods presented, included

in "Other intangibles, net" on the Consolidated Balance Sheets, are as follows:

2020

Gross carrying amount

Accumulated amortization

Net other intangibles as of December 31, 2020

Acquired during 2020:
Acquired related to business acquisitions
Acquired outside business acquisitions
Total acquired in 2020

Weighted average amortization period in years for items
acquired in 2020

2019

Gross carrying amount

Accumulated amortization

Net other intangibles as of December 31, 2019

Acquired during 2019:
Acquired related to business acquisitions
Acquired outside business acquisitions
Total acquired in 2019

Weighted average amortization period in years for items
acquired in 2019

Patents Customer- Supply
and Non-compete Related Agreements
d ks logy Agreements Intangibles and Other Total
1346 $ 178.2 39.9 572.6 399 $ 965.2
42.8 25.5 17.5 156.1 21.7 263.6
91.8 $ 152.7 22.4 416.5 18.2 $ 701.6
1.0 — 1.7 2 4.5 7.4
1.0 $ — 1.7 2 45 $ 7.4
19.3 0.0 4.0 15.0 7.0 8.2
1339 §$ 178.1 42.1 591.1 411 $ 986.3
36.7 12.9 14.2 136.3 22.2 222.3
97.2 $ 165.2 27.9 454.8 189 § 764.0
671 $ 173.3 28.7 378.9 — $ 648.0
1.6 — — — 5.9 7.5
68.7 $ 173.3 28.7 378.9 59 $ 655.5
15.1 15.0 5.2 15.0 7.6 14.5

Estimated amortization expense for the items above included in our December 31, 2020 Consolidated Balance Sheets in each of the next five years is as

follows:

Year ended December 31

2021
2022
2023
2024
2025

E—Restructuring and Restructuring-Related Charges

66.0
65.0
62.0
55.0
54.0

We implemented various cost reduction initiatives to improve our operating cost structures in the periods presented. These cost initiatives have, among
other actions, included workforce reductions and the closure or consolidation of certain operations. Except as discussed below, none of these initiatives has

individually resulted in a material charge to earnings.
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As of January 1, 2021, we changed our method for valuing certain inventories (primarily domestic steel-related inventories) to the FIFO cost method
from the LIFO cost method. The effects of this change have been retrospectively applied to all periods presented. See Note A for additional information.

In response to the effect the COVID-19 pandemic has had on the nature and focus of our operations during 2020, we incurred $6.5 severance expense,
primarily for permanent workforce reductions associated with changes in management and organizational structure. See Note U for additional information.
Based upon current trends, we do not expect additional permanent workforce reductions associated with COVID-19 resulting in material expense.

In December 2018, we committed to the 2018 Restructuring Plan (Plan) primarily associated with our Furniture, Flooring & Textile Products and Bedding
Products segments, including the reorganization of the Home Furniture Group (which produces furniture components for the upholstered furniture industry) and
the closure of the Fashion Bed business (which supplied ornamental beds, bed frames and other sleep accessories sold to retailers). Both of these businesses had
underperformed expectations, primarily from weaker demand and higher raw material costs. In 2019, we modified the Plan to include four small facilities in the
Bedding Products segment. All of these activities were substantially complete by the end of December 31, 2019. The following table presents information

associated with this Plan:

Total Amount Incurred to

Total Incurred Full Year
2020

Total Incurred Full Year
2019

Total Incurred Full Year
2018

Date
2018 Restructuring Plan
Restructuring and restructuring-related $ 21.7 14 $ 26 $ 17.7
Impairment costs associated with this plan 13.2 .5 7.6 5.1
$ 34.9 1.9 $ 102 $ 22.8
Amount of total that represents cash charges $ 15.9 10 $ 80 $ 6.9
The table below presents all restructuring and restructuring-related activity for the periods presented:
Year Ended December 31
2020 2019 2018
Charged to other (income) expense, net:
Severance and other restructuring costs 76 $ 81 $ 7.8
Charged to cost of goods sold:
Inventory obsolescence (recovery) and other 3 (5.3) 11.0
Total restructuring and restructuring-related costs 79 $ 28 $ 18.8
Amount of total that represents cash charges 76 $ 81 $ 7.8
Restructuring and restructuring-related charges by segment were as follows:
Year Ended December 31
2020 2019 2018
Bedding Products $ 26 $ 1.2 3 12.6
Specialized Products 3.9 — —
Furniture, Flooring & Textile Products 1.4 1.6 6.2
Total $ 79 $ 28 $ 18.8
The accrued liability associated with our total restructuring initiatives consisted of the following:
Balance at Add: 2019 Less: 2019 Balance at Add: 2020 Less: 2020 Balance at
December 31, 2018 Charges Payments December 31, 2019 Charges Payments December 31, 2020
Termination benefits $ 6.6 $ 47 $ 78 $ 35 $ 70 $ 71 $ 3.4
Contract termination costs — 4 4 — 2 — 2
Other restructuring costs .6 3.0 2.9 .7 4 .6 5
$ 72 $ 81 $ 1.1 3 42 3 76 $ 7.7 $ 4.1
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Divestitures

During 2020, we divested two small businesses in our Bedding Products segment: the final operation in our former Fashion Bed business and a specialty
wire operation in our Drawn Wire business.

« Annual external sales for these businesses were approximately $45.0, and EBIT was approximately $2.0.

+ The aggregate selling price was approximately $11.0, and there was no material gain or loss recognized on the sale of these businesses.

F—Segment Information

Our reportable segments are the same as our operating segments, which also correspond with our management organizational structure. To reflect how
we manage our businesses and in conjunction with the change in executive officer leadership, our management organizational structure and all related internal
reporting changed effective January 1, 2020. As a result, our segment reporting has changed to reflect the new structure. This segment change was
retrospectively applied to all prior periods presented.

The new Bedding Products segment consists of the former Residential Products and Industrial Products segments, plus the Consumer Products Group
(which is renamed the Adjustable Bed business unit), minus the Fabric & Flooring Products Group (which is renamed the Flooring & Textile Products Group).

The new Furniture, Flooring & Textile Products segment consists of the former Furniture Products segment, plus the Fabric & Flooring Products Group
(which is renamed the Flooring & Textile Products Group) minus the Consumer Products Group (which is renamed the Adjustable Bed business unit).

Our Specialized Products segment was not changed.
We have three operating segments that supply a wide range of products:

*  Bedding Products: This segment supplies a variety of components and machinery used by bedding manufacturers in the production and assembly of
their finished products, as well as produces private label finished mattresses for bedding brands and adjustable bed bases. This segment is also
backwardly integrated into the production and supply of specialty foam chemicals, steel rod, and drawn steel wire to our own operations and to
external customers. Our trade customers for wire make mechanical springs and many other end products.

»  Specialized Products: From this segment, we supply lumbar support systems, seat suspension systems, motors and actuators, and control cables used
by automotive manufacturers. We also produce and distribute tubing and tube assemblies for the aerospace industry and engineered hydraulic
cylinders used in the material-handling and construction industries.

»  Furniture, Flooring & Textile Products: Operations in this segment supply a wide range of components for residential and work furniture
manufacturers, as well as select lines of private label finished furniture. We also produce or distribute carpet cushion, hard surface flooring
underlayment, and textile and geo components.

Each reportable segment has an executive vice president who has accountability to, and maintains regular contact with, our chief executive officer, who
is the chief operating decision maker (CODM). The operating results and financial information reported through the segment structure are regularly reviewed
and used by the CODM to evaluate segment performance, allocate overall resources, and determine management incentive compensation.
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The accounting principles used in the preparation of the segment information are the same as those used for the consolidated financial statements. We
evaluate performance based on Earnings Before Interest and Taxes (EBIT). Intersegment sales are made primarily at prices that approximate market-based
selling prices. Centrally incurred costs are allocated to the segments based on estimates of services used by the segment. Certain of our general and
administrative costs and miscellaneous corporate income and expenses are allocated to the segments based on sales or other appropriate metrics. These
allocated corporate costs include depreciation and other costs and income related to assets that are not allocated or otherwise included in the segment assets.

As of January 1, 2021, we changed our method for valuing certain inventories (primarily domestic steel-related inventories) to the FIFO cost method
from the LIFO cost method. The effects of this change have been retrospectively applied to all periods presented. See Note A for additional information.

A summary of segment results for the periods presented are as follows:

Year Ended December 31
Inter-
Trade ! Segment Total Segment Depreciation and
Sales Sales Sales EBIT Amortization

2020
Bedding Products $ 20393 322 $ 2,071.5 1924 $ 106.7
Specialized Products 2 891.2 2.8 894.0 92.0 44.3
Furniture, Flooring & Textile Products 1,349.7 13.8 1,363.5 126.5 25.5
Intersegment eliminations and other she 3.4) 12.9
$  4,280.2 488 $  4,329.0 4075 $ 189.4

2019
Bedding Products $ 2,254.3 413 $ 2,295.6 2149 $ 107.3
Specialized Products 1,066.8 3.2 1,070.0 169.9 41.8
Furniture, Flooring & Textile Products 1,431.4 16.0 1,447.4 102.3 25.7
Intersegment eliminations and other & (.3) 17.1
$ 47525 60.5 $ 4,813.0 486.8 $ 191.9

2018
Bedding Products $ 1,795.3 466 $ 1,841.9 1714  $ 47.3
Specialized Products 1,056.3 2.7 1,059.0 189.5 39.0
Furniture, Flooring & Textile Products 1,417.9 18.1 1,436.0 99.9 27.0
Intersegment eliminations and other & (.5) 22.8
$ 4,269.5 674 $ 4,336.9 4603 $ 136.1

! See Note B for revenue by product family.

22020 EBIT: Includes $25.4 of goodwill impairment for the Hydraulic Cylinders unit as discussed in Note C.

3 Depreciation and amortization: Other relates to non-operating assets (assets not included in segment assets) and is allocated to segment EBIT as

discussed above.

42020 EBIT: Other includes a $3.5 charge to write off stock associated with a prior year divestiture that filed bankruptcy in 2020.
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Average assets for our segments are shown in the table below and reflect the basis for return measures used by management to evaluate segment
performance. These segment totals include working capital (all current assets and current liabilities) plus net property, plant and equipment. Segment assets for
all years are reflected at their estimated average for the year. Acquired companies’ long-lived assets as disclosed below include property, plant and equipment
and other long-term assets.

Year Ended December 31
Additions
to Acquired
Property, Companies’
Plant and Long-Lived
Assets Equipment Assets
2020
Bedding Products $ 739.0 $ 271 $ —
Specialized Products 299.5 13.2 —
Furniture, Flooring & Textile Products 348.6 7.9 —
Average current liabilities included in segment numbers above 665.0 — —
Unallocated assets and other 2,759.1 18.0 —
Difference between average assets and year-end balance sheet (11.2) — —
$ 4,800.0 $ 66.2 $ —
2019
Bedding Products $ 8296 $ 654 $ 1,279.8
Specialized Products 346.4 29.3 2
Furniture, Flooring & Textile Products 383.2 13.7 17.4
Average current liabilities included in segment numbers above 735.3 — —
Unallocated assets and other 2,689.7 34.7 —
Difference between average assets and year-end balance sheet (128.8) — —
$ 48554 $ 1431  $ 1,297.4
2018
Bedding Products $ 696.4 $ 582 $ —
Specialized Products 342.5 45.0 79.4
Furniture, Flooring & Textile Products 366.5 19.1 6.0
Average current liabilities included in segment numbers above 651.9 — —
Unallocated assets and other 1,343.6 37.3 —
Difference between average assets and year-end balance sheet 46.7 — —
$ 3,4476 $ 159.6 $ 85.4
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Trade sales and tangible long-lived assets are presented below, based on the geography of manufacture.

Year Ended December 31
2020 2019 2018
Trade sales
Foreign sales
Europe $ 4209 $ 508.5 $ 525.6
China 441.7 449.9 494.7
Canada 261.5 312.8 286.8
Mexico 2154 256.0 186.1
Other 94.7 92.6 94.8
Total foreign sales 1,434.2 1,619.8 1,588.0
United States 2,846.0 3,132.7 2,681.5
Total trade sales $ 4,280.2 $ 47525 % 4,269.5
Tangible long-lived assets
Foreign tangible long-lived assets

Europe $ 155.0 $ 160.2 $ 167.6
China 454 51.6 55.5
Canada 30.2 36.4 38.0
Mexico 8.8 10.1 10.1
Other 11.1 14.7 16.0
Total foreign tangible long-lived assets 250.5 273.0 287.2
United States 534.3 557.8 441.3
Total tangible long-lived assets $ 784.8 $ 830.8 $ 728.5
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G—Earnings Per Share

Basic and diluted earnings per share were calculated as follows:

Year Ended December 31
2020 2019 2018

Earnings:
Net earnings $ 2531 $ 3141 % 323.7
(Earnings) attributable to noncontrolling interest, net of tax (-1) (.1) (:2)

Net earnings attributable to Leggett & Platt, Inc. common shareholders $ 253.0 $ 3140 $ 323.5
Weighted average number of shares (in millions):
Weighted average number of common shares used in basic EPS 135.7 134.8 134.3
Dilutive effect of stock-based compensation 2 .6 9
Weighted average number of common shares and dilutive potential common shares used in diluted
EPS 135.9 135.4 135.2
Basic and Diluted EPS:
Basic EPS attributable to Leggett & Platt, Inc. common shareholders $ 1.86 $ 233 $ 2.41
Diluted EPS attributable to Leggett & Platt, Inc. common shareholders $ 1.86 $ 232 % 2.39
Other information:
Anti-dilutive shares excluded from diluted EPS computation 2 2 |
Cash dividends declared per share $ 1.60 $ 1.58 $ 1.50

H—Accounts and Other Receivables

Initial adoption of new ASU

Effective January 1, 2020, we adopted ASU 2016-13 “Financial Instruments—Credit Losses” (Topic 326), which amended the impairment model to
require a forward-looking approach based on expected losses rather than incurred losses to estimate credit losses on certain types of financial instruments,
including trade receivables. In accordance with guidance, the new standard was adopted using the modified retrospective approach as of the effective date; prior
periods were not restated. The increase to the allowance for doubtful accounts, net of the deferred tax impact, was recorded as an adjustment to opening
retained earnings.
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The cumulative effect of applying Topic 326 to our Consolidated Balance Sheet was as follows:

Balance at December 31, 2019 as Balance at January 1,
Previously Reported Topic 326 Adjustments

Trade receivables, net ! $ 564.4 $ 33 % 561.1
Other current assets 1,012.7 — 1,012.7
Net property, plant and equipment 830.8 — 830.8
Total other assets 2,447.5 — 2,447.5
Total assets $ 4,855.4 $ 33 $ 4,852.1
Total current liabilities $ 928.1 $ — % 928.1
Total long-term liabilities 2 2,585.4 (.8) 2,584.6
Retained earnings 2,763.9 (2.5) 2,761.4
Other equity (1,422.0) — (1,422.0)
Total liabilities and equity $ 4,855.4 $ B3) $ 4,852.1

1 This adjustment is to increase our allowance for doubtful accounts for estimated expected credit losses on trade receivables over their
contractual life.

2 This adjustment is to reflect a decrease in deferred income tax liability as a result of the change in the allowance for doubtful accounts.

Trade receivables are recorded at the invoiced amount and generally do not bear interest. Credit is also occasionally extended in the form of a note
receivable to facilitate our customers' operating cycles. Other notes receivable are established in special circumstances, such as in partial payment for the sale of

a business or to support other business opportunities. Other notes receivable generally bear interest at market rates commensurate with the corresponding credit
risk on the date of the origination.

To determine our allowance for doubtful accounts under the new guidance, we are utilizing a pool approach to group our receivables with similar risk
characteristics. Our pools correspond with our business units, which generally have similar terms, industry-specific conditions, and historical or expected loss
patterns. Reserves are established for each pool based on their level of risk exposure. When credit deterioration occurs on a specific customer within a pool, we
evaluate the receivable separately to estimate the expected credit loss based on the specific risk characteristics. Management reviews individual accounts and
pools for factors such as the length of time that receivables are past due, the financial health of the companies involved, industry and macroeconomic
considerations, and historical loss experience. A qualitative reserve is also established for any current macroeconomic conditions or reasonable and supportable
forecasts that could impact the expected collectibility of all or a portion of our receivables portfolio.

Account balances are charged against the allowance when it is probable the receivable will not be recovered. Interest income is not recognized for

nonperforming accounts that are placed on nonaccrual status. For accounts on nonaccrual status, any interest payments received are applied against the balance
of the nonaccrual account.
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Accounts and other receivables at December 31 consisted of the following:

2020 2019
Current Long-term Current Long-term

Trade accounts receivable $ 5535 $ — 3 571.8 $ —
Trade notes receivable 9 3 1.1 .6
Total trade receivables 554.4 3 572.9 .6
Other notes receivable ! — 22.8 — 23.4

Taxes receivable, including income taxes 14.8 — 15.8
Other receivables 13.6 — 11.7 —
Subtotal other receivables 28.4 22.8 27.5 23.4
Total trade and other receivables 582.8 23.1 600.4 24.0

Allowance for doubtful accounts:

Trade accounts receivable 2 (19.2) — (8.4) —
Trade notes receivable — — (.1) —
Total trade receivables (19.2) — (8.5) —
Other notes receivable ! — (22.8) — (15.0)
Total allowance for doubtful accounts (19.2) (22.8) (8.5) (15.0)
Total net receivables $ 563.6 $ 3 3 5919 $ 9.0

1 The “Trade accounts receivable” and “Other notes receivable” line items above include $24.6 and $26.0 as of December 31, 2020 and

December 31, 2019, respectively, from a customer in our Bedding Products segment who is experiencing financial difficulty and liquidity problems.
This customer was placed on nonaccrual status in 2018, and became delinquent in quarterly interest payments in the first quarter of 2020. As a
result, we first established a partial reserve for this customer in 2018 and fully reserved the balances for this customer in the first quarter of 2020.
The reserve for this customer was $24.6 ($22.8 for the note and $1.8 for the trade receivable) at December 31, 2020, and $16.0 ($15.0 for the note
and $1.0 for the trade receivable) at December 31, 2019.

In addition to the customer reserve discussed above, bad debt expense in 2020 was also impacted by pandemic-related economic declines.
Although we have not experienced significant issues with customer payment performance during this time, the effects of the pandemic have
adversely impacted the operations of many of our customers, which have and could further impact their ability to pay their debts to us. As a result,
we increased the reserves on "Trade accounts receivable" to reflect this increased risk.

Activity related to the allowance for doubtful accounts is reflected below:
Less: Net Less: Net

Balance at Charge- Balance at Balance at Charge- Balance at
December 31, Add: offs/(Recoveries) December 31, Topic 326 January 1, Add: offs/(Recoveries) December 31,
2018 Charges and Other 2019 Adjustment 2020 Charges and Other 2020

Trade accounts
receivable $ 52 $ 27 $ (.5 $ 84 $ 33 $ 11.7 $ 94 $ 19 $ 19.2
Trade notes
receivable — 1 — 1 — 1 (.1) — —

Total trade

receivables 5.2 2.8 (.5) 8.5 3.3 11.8 9.3 1.9 19.2
Other notes
receivable 15.0 — — 15.0 — 15.0 7.8 — 22.8
Total allowance for
doubtful accounts  $ 202 $ 28 $ (.5 $ 235 $ 33 $ 268 $ 171 $ 1.9 $ 42.0
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I—Supplemental Balance Sheet Information

Additional supplemental balance sheet details at December 31 consisted of the following:

2020 2019
Sundry
Deferred taxes (see Note N) $ 110 $ 11.5
Diversified investments associated with stock-based compensation plans (see Note L) 42.7 38.2
Investment in associated companies — 4.3
Pension plan assets (see Note M) 52) 1.4
Brazilian VAT deposits (see Note T) 8.2 10.5
Net long-term notes receivable (see Note H) 3 9.0
Finance leases (see Note K) 3.6 4.3
Other 38.4 39.2
$ 105.1 $ 118.4
Accrued expenses
Litigation contingency accruals (see Note T) $ S5 $ 7
Wages and commissions payable 77.5 80.9
Workers’ compensation, vehicle-related and product liability, medical/disability 45.1 42.9
Sales promotions 49.9 51.1
Liabilities associated with stock-based compensation plans (see Note L) 8.2 11.8
Accrued interest 14.6 14.4
General taxes, excluding income taxes 1 26.3 17.0
Environmental reserves 4.0 3.8
Other 49.1 58.4
$ 2752 $ 281.0
Other current liabilities
Dividends payable $ 53.0 $ 52.7
Customer deposits 194 11.9
Sales tax payable 5.4 5.0
Derivative financial instruments (see Note S) 2.2 9
Liabilities associated with stock-based compensation plans (see Note L) 3.2 2.8
Outstanding checks in excess of book balances 1.6 10.4
Other 5 9.6
$ 853 $ 93.3
Other long-term liabilities
Liability for pension benefits (see Note M) $ 71.7 $ 58.6
Liabilities associated with stock-based compensation plans (see Note L) 45.7 46.5
Deemed repatriation tax payable 31.6 32.8
Net reserves for tax contingencies 6.4 8.1
Deferred compensation 14.6 14.6
Other ! 22.1 12.9
$ 1921 $ 173.5

1 In the U.S., we are deferring our payment of employer's Social Security match into 2021 and 2022 as provided by the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and
Economic Security (CARES) Act. Through December 31, 2020, we have deferred $19.0. Half of the amount will be paid in 2021 and half in 2022.
In August 2020, an executive order was issued, which also allowed for the deferral of employee social security withholding and payment during
September — December 2020. We did not elect to participate in the employee deferral program.
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J—Long-Term Debt

In light of the potential impacts of COVID-19 on our businesses and the uncertainties associated with the duration of the pandemic at that time, we
reviewed our debt covenants early in the second quarter 2020. On May 6, 2020, we amended our credit facility to, among other things, change the restrictive
borrowing covenants. The prior leverage ratio covenant required us to maintain, as of the last day of each quarter, a leverage ratio of consolidated funded
indebtedness to trailing 12-month consolidated EBITDA (each as defined in the credit facility) of not greater than 3.50 to 1.00.

The leverage ratio covenant was changed in two ways: (i) the calculation of the ratio now subtracts unrestricted cash (as defined in the credit facility)
from consolidated funded indebtedness; and (ii) the ratio levels, calculated as of the last day of the applicable fiscal quarter, were changed to 4.75 to 1.00 for
each fiscal quarter-end date through March 31, 2021; 4.25 to 1.00 at June 30, 2021; 3.75 to 1.00 at September 30, 2021; and 3.25 to 1.00 at December 31, 2021
and thereafter.

In addition, the amount of total secured debt limit was changed from 15% to 5% of our total consolidated assets until December 31, 2021, at which time it
will revert back to 15%. Various interest rate terms were also changed. The credit facility also contains an anti-cash hoarding provision that limits borrowing if
the Company has a consolidated cash balance (as defined in the credit facility) in excess of $300.0 without planned expenditures. The maturity date of January
2024 remains unchanged. At December 31, 2020, the Company is in compliance with all of its debt covenants and expects to be able to maintain compliance
with the amended debt covenant requirements.

33



EXHIBIT 99.3

Long-term debt, interest rates and due dates at December 31 are as follows:

2020 2019
Year-end Interest Due Date Year-end Interest Due Date
Rate Through Balance Rate Through Balance

Senior Notes ! 3.4 % 2022 $ 300.0 3.4 % 2022 $ 300.0
Senior Notes ! 3.8 % 2024 300.0 3.8 % 2024 300.0
Senior Notes ! 3.5 % 2027 500.0 3.5 % 2027 500.0
Senior Notes ! 44 % 2029 500.0 4.4 % 2029 500.0
Term Loan 2 3.0 % 2024 305.0 29 % 2024 462.5
Industrial development bonds, principally variable
interest rates 3 % 2030 3.8 1.6 % 2030 3.8
Commercial paper 3 — % 2024 — 2.0 % 2024 61.5
Finance leases (primarily vehicles) 3.6 4.2
Other, partially secured S5 .5
Unamortized discounts and deferred loan cost (12.7) (14.9)

Total debt 1,900.2 2,117.6
Less: current maturities 50.9 51.1

Total long-term debt $ 1,849.3 $ 2,066.5

! Senior Notes are unsecured and unsubordinated obligations. For each of the Senior Notes: (i) interest is paid semi-annually in arrears; (ii) principal is due at
maturity with no sinking fund; and (iii) we may, at our option, at any time, redeem all or a portion of any of the debt at a make-whole redemption price
equal to the greater of: (a) 100% of the principal amount of the notes being redeemed; and (b) the sum of the present values of the remaining scheduled
payments of principal and interest thereon, discounted to the date of redemption on a semi-annual basis (assuming a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-
day months) at a specified discount rate, determined by the terms of each respective note. The Senior Notes may also be redeemed by us within 90 days of
maturity at 100% of the principal amount plus accrued and unpaid interest, and we are required to offer to purchase such notes at 101% of the principal
amount, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if we experience a Change of Control Repurchase Event, as defined in the Senior Notes. Also, each respective
Senior Note contains restrictive covenants, including a limitation on secured debt of 15% of our consolidated assets, a limitation on sale and leaseback
transactions, and a limitation on certain consolidations, mergers, and sales of assets.

21n January 2019, we issued a $500.0 five-year Term Loan A with our current bank group. We pay quarterly principal installments of $12.5 through the
maturity date of January 2024, at which time we will pay the remaining principal. Additional principal payments, including a complete early payoff, are
allowed without penalty. As of December 31, 2020, we had repaid $195.0, including prepayments on a portion of Term Loan A of $60.0 in the third quarter
and $47.5 in the fourth quarter of 2020. The Term Loan A bears a variable interest rate as defined in the agreement and was 3.0% at December 31, 2020.
Interest is payable based upon a time interval that depends on the selection of interest rate period.

3 The weighted average interest rate for the net commercial paper activity during the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 was 2.0% and 2.6%,
respectively.

Maturities are as follows:

Year ended December 31
2021 $ 50.9
2022 350.4
2023 50.9
2024 454.3
2025 —
Thereafter 993.7

$ 19002
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In January 2019, we increased the size of the revolving facility from $800.0 to $1,200.0 (and increased permitted borrowings, subject to covenant
restrictions, under our commercial paper program in a corresponding amount), added a five-year $500.0 term loan facility, and extended the term from 2022 to
2024.

Amounts outstanding at December 31 related to our commercial paper program were:

2020 2019
Total program authorized $ 1,200.0 $ 1,200.0
Commercial paper outstanding (classified as long-term debt) — (61.5)
Letters of credit issued under the credit facility — —
Total program usage — (61.5)
Total program available $ 1,200.0 $ 1,138.5

At December 31, 2019, subject to restrictive covenants, we could raise cash by issuing commercial paper through a program that is backed by a $1,200.0
revolving credit facility with a syndicate of 13 lenders. The credit facility allows us to issue total letters of credit up to $125.0. When we issue letters of credit
in this manner, our capacity under the revolving facility, and consequently, our ability to issue commercial paper, is reduced by a corresponding amount. We
had no outstanding letters of credit under the facility at year end for the periods presented.

Generally, we may elect one of four types of borrowing under the revolving credit facility, which determines the rate of interest to be paid on the
outstanding principal balance. The interest rate would typically be commensurate with the currency borrowed and the term of the borrowing, as well as either
(i) a competitive variable or fixed rate, or (ii) various published rates plus a pre-defined spread.

We are required to periodically pay accrued interest on any outstanding principal balance under the revolving credit facility at different time intervals
based upon the elected interest rate and the elected interest period. Any outstanding principal under this facility will be due upon the maturity date. We may
also terminate or reduce the lending commitments under this facility, in whole or in part, upon three business days’ notice.

K—Lease Obligations

Initial adoption of new ASU

Effective January 1, 2019, we adopted ASU 2016-02 “Leases” (Topic 842), which requires the recognition of lease assets and liabilities for items
classified as operating leases under previous guidance. As permitted under ASU 2018-11 “Targeted Improvements to ASC 842”, we elected to not restate
comparative periods in transition. Adoption of the new standard resulted in the recording of additional net operating lease assets and lease liabilities of $135.9
and $135.8, respectively, as of January 1, 2019. The difference between the additional lease assets and lease liabilities, net of the deferred tax impact, was
recorded as an adjustment to retained earnings.

Lease Details

Substantially all our operating lease right-of-use assets and operating lease liabilities represent leases for certain operating facilities, warehouses, office
space, trucking equipment, and various other assets. Finance lease balances represent substantially all our vehicle leases. We are not involved in any material
sale and leaseback transactions, and our sublease arrangements were not material for the periods presented.

At the inception of a contract, we assess whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. Our assessment is based on whether the contract involves the use of a
distinct identified asset, whether we obtain the right to substantially all the economic benefit of the asset, and whether we have the right to direct the use of the
asset.

Our leases have remaining lease terms that expire at various dates through 2035, some of which include options to extend or terminate the leases at our
discretion. Where renewal or termination options are reasonably likely to be exercised,
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we recognize the option as part of the right-of-use asset and lease liability. Leases with an initial term of 12 months or less are not recorded on the balance
sheet; we recognize lease expense for these leases on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Our lease agreements do not contain any material residual value
guarantees or material restrictive covenants.

Both lease and non-lease components are accounted for as a single lease component, as we have elected to group lease and non-lease components for all
leases.

As most of our leases do not provide an implicit rate, we use our incremental borrowing rate in determining the present value of the lease payments. We
apply a portfolio approach for determining the incremental borrowing rate based on the applicable lease terms and the economic environment in the various
regions where our operations are located.

At December 31, 2020, we had $2.1 of additional operating leases that had not yet commenced. These operating leases will commence in 2021 with
average lease terms of 6 years.

Supplemental balance sheet information related to leases was as follows:
December 31

2020 2019
Operating leases:
Operating lease right-of-use assets $ 1616 §$ 158.8
Current portion of operating lease liabilities 42.4 39.3
Operating lease liabilities 122.1 121.6
Total operating lease liabilities $ 1645 $ 160.9
Finance leases:
Sundry $ 36 $ 4.3
Current maturities of long-term debt 9 1.1
Long-term debt 2.7 3.1
Total finance lease liabilities $ 3.6 $ 4.2
The components of lease expense were as follows:
Year Ended December 31
2020 2019
Operating lease costs:
Lease costs $ 484 $ 45.0
Variable lease costs 12.1 12.9
Total operating lease costs $ 60.5 $ 57.9
Short-term lease costs $ 49 $ 5.0
Finance lease costs:
Amortization of right-of-use assets $ 24 % 2.7
Interest on lease liabilities 1 2
Total finance lease costs $ 25 § 2.9
Total lease costs $ 67.9 $ 65.8
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Variable lease costs consist primarily of taxes, insurance, and common-area or other maintenance costs for our leased facilities and equipment, which are
paid based on actual costs incurred by the lessor.

Supplemental cash flow information related to leases was as follows:

Year Ended December 31
2020 2019

Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of lease liabilities:

Operating cash flows from operating leases $ 473 $ 40.7

Operating cash flows from finance leases . 2

Financing cash flows from finance leases 2.4 2.7
Right-of-use assets obtained in exchange for new operating lease liabilities 43.6 40.7
Right-of-use assets obtained in exchange for new finance lease liabilities 1.8 2.1

In connection with the ECS transaction discussed in Note R, we acquired operating right-of-use assets in 2019 of approximately $24.0 (including a
favorable lease position of $2.4). The operating lease liability associated with these right-of-use assets was approximately $21.6. Finance right-of-use assets
acquired in the ECS transaction and the related finance lease liabilities were immaterial.

The following table reconciles the undiscounted cash flows for the operating and finance leases at December 31, 2020 to the operating and finance lease
liabilities recorded on the Consolidated Balance Sheets:

December 31, 2020

Operating Leases Finance Leases

2021 $ 47.0 $ 1.6

2022 40.7 1.3

2023 30.6 7

2024 22.2 2

2025 14.4 —

Thereafter 22.8 —

Total 177.7 3.8

Less: Interest 13.2 2

Lease Liability $ 164.5 $ 3.6

Weighted average remaining lease term (years) 5.0 2.6

Weighted average discount rate 32 % 3.7 %

L—Stock-Based Compensation

We use various forms of share-based compensation which are summarized below. One stock unit is equivalent to one common share for accounting and
earnings-per-share purposes. Shares are issued from treasury for the majority of our stock plans’ activity. All share information is presented in millions.

Stock options and stock units are granted pursuant to our Flexible Stock Plan (the "Plan"). Each option counts as one share against the shares available
under the Plan, but each share granted for any other awards will count as three shares against the Plan.
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At December 31, 2020, the following common shares were authorized for issuance under the Plan:

Shares Available for Maximum Number of
Issuance Authorized Shares
Unexercised options .5 5
Outstanding stock units—vested 3.5 8.4
Outstanding stock units—unvested 9 2.8
Available for grant 13.0 13.0
Authorized for issuance at December 31, 2020 17.9 24.7

The following table recaps the impact of stock-based compensation on the results of operations for each of the periods presented:

Year Ended December 31
2020 2019 2018
To Be Settled To Be Settled To Be Settled To Be Settled To Be Settled To Be Settled
With Stock In Cash With Stock In Cash With Stock In Cash

Stock-based retirement plans contributions z $ 35 $ 7 $ 37 $ 6 $ 56 $ 1.0
Discounts on various stock awards:

Deferred Stock Compensation Program 1 2.2 — 2.1 — 1.9 —

Stock-based retirement plans 2 1.4 — 1.3 — 1.3 —

Discount Stock Plan © 9 — 1.0 — 1.1 —
Performance Stock Unit (PSU) awards: 3

2018 and later PSU - TSR based 34 3.2 .7 2.8 4.1 1.2 8

2018 and later PSU - EBIT CAGR based 3B 1.9) (2.0) 3.8 5.3 29 2.5

2017 and prior PSU awards € — — 1.8 1.0 3.6 (1.3)
Profitable Growth Incentive (PGI) awards 4 — — — — 9 9
Restricted Stock Units (RSU) awards > 6.8 — 2.0 — 2.1 —
Other, primarily non-employee directors restricted stock .9 — 1.4 — 9 —
Total stock-related compensation expense (income) 170 $ (2.0) 199 $ 11.0 215 $ 3.9
Employee contributions for above stock plans 12.2 13.1 14.0

Total stock-based compensation $ 29.2 $ 33.0 $ 35.5
Tax benefits on stock-based compensation expense $ 4.0 $ 4.7 $ 5.1
Tax benefits on stock-based compensation payments (As
discussed below, we elected to pay selected awards in cash during
2018.) 2.5 5.6 3.9
Total tax benefits associated with stock-based compensation $ 6.5 $ 10.3 $ 9.0
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The following table recaps the impact of stock-based compensation on assets and liabilities for each of the periods presented:

2020 2019
Current Long-term Total Current Long-term Total

Assets:

Diversified investmei‘lts associated with the Executive

Stock Unit Program 32  §$ 427 $ 45.9 $ 28 § 382 § 41.0
Liabilities:

Executive Stock Unit Program 2 $ 32 $ 422 $ 45.4 $ 28 $ 378  $ 40.6

Performance Stock Unit (TSR) award > 1.9 2.2 4.1 15 5.0 6.5

Performance Stock Unit (EBIT) award 3B 4 1.3 1.7 4.1 3.7 7.8

Other - primarily timing differences between employee
withholdings and related employer contributions to be
submitted to various plans' trust accounts 5.9 — 5.9 6.2 — 6.2

Total liabilities associated with stock-based

compensation

$ 114 $ 45.7 $ 57.1 $ 146 % 465 § 61.1

! Stock Option Grants

We have granted stock options in conjunction with our Deferred Compensation Program to senior executives on a discretionary basis, and

historically to a broad group of employees.

Deferred Compensation Program

We offer a Deferred Compensation Program under which key managers and outside directors may elect to receive stock options, stock units, or

interest-bearing cash deferrals in lieu of cash compensation:

Stock options under this program are granted in the last month of the year prior to the year the compensation is earned. The number of
options granted equals the deferred compensation times five, divided by the stock’s market price on the date of grant. The option has a 10-
year term. It vests as the associated compensation is earned and becomes exercisable beginning 15 months after the grant date. Stock is issued
when the option is exercised.

Deferred stock units (DSU) under this program are acquired every two weeks (when the compensation would have otherwise been paid) at a
20% discount to the market price of our common stock on each acquisition date, and they vest immediately. Expense is recorded as the
compensation is earned. Stock units earn dividends at the same rate as cash dividends paid on our common stock. These dividends are used to
acquire stock units at a 20% discount. Stock units are converted to common stock and distributed in accordance with the participant’s pre-set
election. However, stock units may be settled in cash, but only if there is not a sufficient amount of shares reserved for future issuance under
the Flexible Stock Plan. Participants must begin receiving distributions no later than 10 years after the effective date of the deferral, and
installment distributions cannot exceed 10 years.

Interest-bearing cash deferrals under this program are reported in "Other long-term liabilities" on the Consolidated Balance Sheets and are
disclosed in Note I.

Options Units Cash

Aggregate amount of compensation deferred during 2020 $ 8 $ 69 $ 89
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Options granted to a broad group of employees on a discretionary basis

Options are generally offered only in conjunction with the Deferred Compensation Program discussed above. We occasionally grant options to
senior executives in connection with promotions or retention purposes, and prior to 2013, we granted stock options annually on a discretionary basis to
a broad group of employees. Those options have a maximum term of 10 years and exercise prices equal to Leggett’s closing stock price on the grant
date.

Grant date fair values are calculated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model and are amortized by the straight-line method over the
options’ total vesting period (typically three years), except for employees who are retirement eligible. Expense for employees who are retirement
eligible is recognized immediately.

Stock Option Summary,

Stock option information for the plans discussed above is as follows:

Weighted Weighted
Average Average
Exercise Remaining Aggregate
Total Stock Price per Contractual Intrinsic
Options Share Life in Years Value
Outstanding at December 31, 2019 6 $ 33.03
Granted — 42.44
Exercised (.1) 22.82
Outstanding at December 31, 2020 5 % 35.72 47 $ 4.6
Vested or expected to vest 5 $ 35.72 47 $ 4.6
Exercisable (vested) at December 31, 2020 5 $ 35.33 46 $ 4.6

Additional information related to stock option activity for the periods presented is as follows:

Year Ended December 31
2020 2019 2018
Total intrinsic value of stock options exercised $ 23 $ 236 $ 8.8
Cash received from stock options exercised 1.5 9.3 4.8
Total fair value of stock options vested 9 3 .8

The following table summarizes fair values calculated (and assumptions utilized) using the Black-Scholes option pricing model.

Year Ended December 31

2020 2019 2018
Aggregate grant date fair value $ 2 $.5 $<1
Weighted-average per share grant date fair value 6.39 5.36 6.47
Risk-free interest rate 24 % 2.8 % 2.3 %
Expected life in years 7.4 7.8 6.0
Expected volatility (over expected life) 22.1 % 22.3 % 19.4 %
Expected dividend yield (over expected life) 3.7 % 4.2 % 31%

The risk-free rate is determined based on U.S. Treasury yields in effect at the time of grant for maturities equivalent to the expected life of the
option. The expected life of the option (estimated average period of time the option will be outstanding) is estimated based on the historical exercise
behavior of employees, with executives displaying somewhat longer holding periods than other employees. Expected volatility is based on historical
volatility through the grant date, measured daily for a time period equal to the option’s expected life. The expected dividend yield is estimated based
on the dividend yield at the time of grant.

40



EXHIBIT 99.3

2 Stock-Based Retirement Plans

Prior to 2019, we had two stock-based retirement plans: the tax-qualified Stock Bonus Plan (SBP) for non-highly compensated employees, and
the non-qualified Executive Stock Unit Program (ESUP) for highly compensated employees. We made matching contributions to both plans. In
addition to the automatic 50% match, we would make another matching contribution of up to 50% of the employee’s contributions for the year if
certain profitability levels, as defined in the SBP and the ESUP, were obtained.

For 2019 and thereafter, the provisions of the ESUP are unchanged. We merged the SBP with the Leggett & Platt, Incorporated 401(k) Plan and
Trust Agreement (401(k) Plan) on December 31, 2018 (see Note M). After the merger, our common stock was added to the 401(k) Plan as an
investment option, and participants may elect up to 20% of their contributions into our common stock beginning on January 1, 2019. Previously,
participants could contribute up to 100% of their contributions into our common stock.

Participants in the ESUP may contribute up to 10% (depending upon certain qualifications) of their compensation above the threshold.
Participant contributions are credited to a diversified investment account established for the participant, and we make premium contributions to the
diversified investment accounts equal to 17.65% of the participant’s contribution. A participant’s diversified investment account balance is adjusted to
mirror the investment experience, whether positive or negative, of the diversified investments selected by the participant. Participants may change
investment elections in the diversified investment accounts, but cannot purchase Company common stock or stock units. The diversified investment
accounts consist of various mutual funds and retirement target funds and are unfunded, unsecured obligations of the Company that will be settled in
cash. Both the assets and liabilities associated with this program are presented in the table above and are adjusted to fair value at each reporting period.

Company matching contributions to the ESUP, including dividend equivalents, are used to acquire stock units at 85% of the common stock
market price on the acquisition date. Stock units are converted to common stock at a 1-to-1 ratio upon distribution from the program and may be
settled in cash but only if there is not a sufficient amount of shares reserved for future issuance under the Flexible Stock Plan.

Company matches in the ESUP fully vest upon five years of cumulative service, subject to certain participation requirements. Distributions are
triggered by an employee’s retirement, death, disability, or separation from Leggett.

In 2020, employee contributions were $3.9, and employer premium contributions to diversified investment accounts were $.7. See the stock-
based compensation table above for information regarding employer contributions.

Details regarding stock unit activity for the ESUP plan are reflected in the stock units summary table below.

3 pSU Awards

Starting in 2020 the long-term incentive awards were split between PSUs and RSUs. For executive officers, the split was two thirds PSUs and
one third RSUs. For other selected participants, the award was granted at either half PSUs and half RSUs or 100% RSUs.

PSU awards have a component based on relative Total Shareholder Return (TSR = (Change in Stock Price + Dividends) / Beginning Stock Price)
and another component based on EBIT Compound Annual Growth Rate (CAGR). These components are discussed below.

We intend to pay 50% in shares of our common stock and 50% in cash; although, we reserve the right, subject to Compensation Committee
approval, to pay up to 100% in cash.

Cash settlements are recorded as a liability and adjusted to fair value at each reporting period. We elected to pay 100% of the 2015 award (paid
in the first quarter 2018) in cash.
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342018 and Later PSU - TSR Based

Most of the PSU awards are based 50% upon our TSR compared to a peer group. A small number of PSU awards are based 100% upon
relative TSR for certain business unit employees to complement their particular mix of incentive compensation. Grant date fair values are
calculated using a Monte Carlo simulation of stock and volatility data for Leggett and each of the peer companies. Grant date fair values are
amortized using the straight-line method over the three-year vesting period.

The relative TSR vesting condition of the 2018 and later PSU award contains the following conditions:

* A service requirement—Awards generally “cliff” vest three years following the grant date; and

* A market condition—Awards are based on our TSR as compared to the TSR of a group of peer companies. The peer group consists of all
the companies in the Industrial, Materials and Consumer Discretionary sectors of the S&P 500 and S&P Midcap 400 (approximately 300
companies). Participants will earn from 0% to 200% of the base award depending upon how our TSR ranks within the peer group at the
end of the three-year performance period.

3B 2018 and Later PSU - EBIT CAGR Based

Most of the PSU awards are based 50% upon our or the applicable segment's EBIT CAGR. Grant date fair values are calculated using the
grant date stock price discounted for dividends over the vesting period. Expense is adjusted every quarter over the three-year vesting period based
on the number of shares expected to vest.

The EBIT CAGR portion of this award contains the following conditions:

* A service requirement—Awards generally “cliff” vest three years following the grant date; and

+ A performance condition—Awards are based on achieving specified EBIT CAGR performance targets for our or the applicable
segment's EBIT during the third year of the performance period compared to EBIT during the fiscal year immediately preceding the
performance period. Participants will earn from 0% to 200% of the base award.

In connection with the decision to move a significant portion of the long-term incentive opportunity from a two-year to a three-year
performance period by eliminating PGI awards, in February 2018, we also granted participants a one-time transition PSU award, based upon
EBIT CAGR over a two-year performance period. This award was paid in the first quarter 2020. Average payout percentage of base award was
114%, and the number of shares paid was .1. The cash portion payout was $4.1.

3€ 2017 and Prior PSU Awards

The 2017 award was paid out in 2020. The 2017 and prior PSU awards were based solely on relative TSR. Vesting conditions were the same
as (3A) above, other than a maximum payout of 175% of the base award.
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Below is a summary of shares and grant date fair value related to PSU awards for the periods presented:

Year Ended December 31
2020 2019 2018

TSR Based

Total shares base award A 1 Nl

Grant date per share fair value $ 38.23 $ 57.86 $ 42.60

Risk-free interest rate 1.4 % 24 % 24 %

Expected life in years 3.0 3.0 3.0

Expected volatility (over expected life) 24.0 % 21.5 % 19.9 %

Expected dividend yield (over expected life) 3.6 % 34 % 3.3 %

EBIT CAGR Based

Total shares base award 1 Nl Nl

Grant date per share fair value $ 40.52 $ 39.98 $ 40.92

Vesting period in years 3.0 3.0 3.0

Three-Year Performance Cycle for PSU - TSR Based
TSR Performance Payout as a
Relative to the Peer Group Percent of the Number of Shares
Award Year Completion Date (1%=Best) Base Award Distributed Cash Portion Distribution Date
2016 December 31, 2018 78 th percentile —% — $ — First quarter 2019
2017 December 31, 2019 63 rd percentile 49.0% .1 million $ 1.6 First quarter 2020
2018 December 31, 2020 60 th percentile 56.0% < .1 million $ 2.0 First quarter 2021
Three-Year Performance Cycle for PSU - EBIT CAGR Based
Payout as a
Percent of the Number of Shares
Award Year Completion Date Base Award Distributed Cash Portion Distribution Date
2018 December 31, 2020 16.0% <.1 million $ 4 First quarter 2021
4 PGI Awards

In 2017 and prior years, certain key management employees participated in a PGI program, which was replaced in 2018 with the PSU-EBIT
CAGR award discussed above. As of the first quarter 2019, all PGI awards have been paid out. The PGI awards vested (0% to 250%) at the end of a
two-year performance period based on our, or the applicable profit center's, revenue growth (adjusted by a GDP factor when applicable) and EBITDA
margin at the end of a two-year performance period. We paid the 2017 award half in shares of our common stock and half in cash. We elected to pay
the 2016 award (paid in the first quarter of 2018) in cash. Both components were adjusted to fair value at each reporting period.

Two-Year Performance Cycle

Average Payout as a
Percent of the Base

Award Year Completion Date Award Estimated Number of Shares  Cash Portion Distribution Date
2016 December 31, 2017 44.0% — $ 2.0 First quarter 2018
2017 December 31, 2018 155.0% <.1 million $ 2.2 First quarter 2019
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5 Restricted Stock Unit Awards

Starting in 2020, the RSU award was amended so that those who retire (1) after age 65 or (2) after the date where the participant’s age plus years
of service are greater than or equal to 70 years, will continue to receive shares that will vest after the retirement date. Expense associated with these
retirement-eligible employees is recognized immediately at the RSU grant date. For those employees who become retirement eligible after the grant
date, any remaining RSU expense is recognized at the date the employee meets the retirement-eligible criteria.

RSU awards are generally granted as follows:

*  Annual awards to selected managers;
*  On a discretionary basis to selected employees; and
* As compensation for outside directors

Starting in 2020 RSUs are granted as part of the long-term incentive awards, along with PSUs, to executive officers and other selected
participants as discussed in the PSU Awards section above.

The value of these awards is determined by the stock price on the day of the award, and expense is recognized over the vesting period, except
for retirement-eligible employees that are expensed as they become retirement eligible.

Stock Units Summary

As of December 31, 2020, the unrecognized cost of non-vested stock units that is not adjusted to fair value was $5.1 with a weighted-average
remaining contractual life of one year.

Stock unit information for the plans discussed above is presented in the table below:

Weighted
Average
Grant Dat A t
Total Fair Value Tottinsic
DSU ESUP PSU* RSU Units per Unit Value
Unvested at December 31, 2019 — — 1.0 1 1.1 $ 33.30
Granted based on current service 3 2 — 2 7 39.21
Granted based on future conditions — — 2 — 2 19.66
Vested (.3) (.2) (1) (.2) (.8) 55.82
Forfeited — — (.3) — (-3) 25.92
Unvested at December 31, 2020 — — .8 1 9 3 24.07 $ 42.3
Fully vested shares available for issuance at
December 31, 2020 3.5 $ 153.6
*PSU awards are presented at maximum payout of 200%
Year Ended December 31
2020 2019 2018
Total intrinsic value of vested stock units converted to common stock $ 11.7 $ 8.0 $ 12.1

% Discount Stock Plan
Under the Discount Stock Plan (DSP), a tax-qualified §423 stock purchase plan, eligible employees may purchase shares of Leggett common

stock at 85% of the closing market price on the last business day of each month. Shares are purchased and issued on the last business day of each
month and generally cannot be sold or transferred for one year.
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Average 2020 purchase price per share (net of discount)
2020 number of shares purchased by employees

Shares purchased since inception in 1982

Maximum shares under the plan

M—Employee Benefit Plans

EXHIBIT 99.3

The Consolidated Balance Sheets reflect a net liability for the funded status of our domestic and foreign defined benefit pension plans as of all periods
presented. Our U.S. plans (comprised primarily of three significant plans) represent approximately 84% of our pension benefit obligation in each of the periods
presented. Participants in one of the significant domestic plans have stopped earning benefits; this plan is referred to as our Frozen Plan in the following

narrative.

A summary of our pension obligations and funded status as of December 31 is as follows:

2020 2019 2018
Change in benefit obligation
Benefit obligation, beginning of period $ 259.1 $ 2198 % 241.5
Service cost 5.1 4.0 3.9
Interest cost 7.2 8.5 8.0
Plan participants’ contributions 5 .5 .5
Actuarial loss (gain)! 27.7 36.7 (20.3)
Benefits paid (14.2) (13.8) (13.4)
Plan amendments (.4) 1.9 1.9
Foreign currency exchange rate changes 1.5 1.5 (2.3)
Benefit obligation, end of period 286.5 259.1 219.8
Change in plan assets
Fair value of plan assets, beginning of period 201.5 181.8 185.7
Actual return (loss) on plan assets 24.1 30.0 (10.6)
Employer contributions 2.2 1.5 21.8
Plan participants’ contributions 5 5 5
Benefits paid (14.2) (13.8) (13.4)
Foreign currency exchange rate changes 1.2 1.5 2.2)
Fair value of plan assets, end of period 215.3 201.5 181.8
Net funded status $ (71.2) $ (57.6) $ (38.0)
Funded status recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheets
Other assets—sundry $ 9 3 14 $ 1.6
Other current liabilities (.4) (4 (4)
Other long-term liabilities (71.7) (58.6) (39.2)
Net funded status $ (71.2) $ (57.6) $ (38.0)

1 Year-over-year fluctuations in "Actuarial loss (gain)" are primarily driven by changes in the weighted average discount rate assumptions.

Our accumulated benefit obligation was not materially different from our projected benefit obligation for the periods presented.

Included in the above plans is a subsidiary’s unfunded supplemental executive retirement plan. This is a non-qualified plan, and these benefits are secured
by insurance policies that are not included in the plan’s assets. Cash surrender values associated with these policies were approximately $2.6 at December 31,

2020, 2019, and 2018.
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Comprehensive Income

Amounts and activity included in accumulated other comprehensive income associated with pensions are reflected below:

2020
Foreign
2020 Currency 2020
Net Exchange Income
2020 Actuarial Rates Tax
December 31, 2019 Amortization Loss Change Change December 31, 2020

Net loss (gain) (before tax) $ 702 $ “4.0) $ 155 $ 3 % — $ 82.0
Deferred income taxes (19.0) — — — (2.8) (21.8)
Accumulated other comprehensive (income)
loss (net of tax) $ 51.2 §$ 4.0) $ 155 $ 3 $ .8) $ 60.2

Net Pension (Expense) Income

Components of net pension (expense) income for the years ended December 31 were as follows:

2020 2019 2018

Service cost $ (5.1) $ 4.0 $ 3.9)
Interest cost (7.2) (8.5) (8.0)
Expected return on plan assets 11.9 11.3 11.9
Recognized net actuarial loss (4.0) (2.9) (2.6)
Prior service cost 4 (1.7) —

Net pension expense $ (4.0) $ 58 $ (2.6)
Weighted average assumptions for pension costs:

Discount rate used in net pension costs 2.8 % 3.9% 34 %

Rate of compensation increase used in pension costs 3.4 % 3.0 % 3.0 %

Expected return on plan assets 6.1 % 6.4 % 6.4 %
Weighted average assumptions for benefit obligation:

Discount rate used in benefit obligation 2.1 % 2.8 % 3.9 %

Rate of compensation increase used in benefit obligation 3.5 % 3.4 % 3.0 %

Assumptions used for U.S. and international plans were not significantly different.

The components of net pension expense other than the service cost component are included in the line item "Other (income) expense, net" in the
Consolidated Statements of Operations.

We use the average of a Pension Liability Index rate and a 10+ year AAA-AA US Corporate Index rate to determine the discount rate used for our
significant pension plans (rounded to the nearest 25 basis points). The Pension Liability Index rate is a calculated rate using yearly spot rates matched against
expected future benefit payments. The 10+ year AAA-AA US Corporate Index rate is based on the weighted average yield of a portfolio of high-grade
Corporate Bonds with an average duration approximating the plans’ projected benefit payments. The discount rates used for our other, primarily foreign, plans
are based on rates appropriate for the respective country and the plan obligations.

The overall, expected long-term rate of return is based on each plan’s historical experience and our expectations of future returns based upon each plan’s
investment holdings, as discussed below.
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Pension Plan Assets

The fair value of our major categories of pension plan assets is disclosed below using a three-level valuation hierarchy that separates fair value valuation
techniques into the following categories:
+  Level 1: Quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets.

*  Level 2: Other significant inputs observable either directly or indirectly (including quoted prices for similar securities, interest rates, yield curves,
credit risk, etc.).

*  Level 3: Unobservable inputs that are not corroborated by market data.

Presented below are our major categories of investments for the periods presented:

Year Ended December 31, 2020 Year Ended December 31, 2019
Assets Assets
Measured at Measured at
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 NAV! Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 NAV! Total

Mutual and pooled
funds

Fixed income $ 353 $ 165 $ — $ — 3 51.8 $ 40.7 $ — $ — $ — % 40.7

Equities 114.0 10.4 — — 124.4 121.7 — — — 121.7
Stable value funds — 30.9 — — 30.9 — 30.2 — — 30.2
Money market funds,
cash and other — — — 8.2 8.2 — — — 8.9 8.9

Total

investments at

fair value $ 1493 $ 578 $ — 3 82 $ 2153 $ 1624 $ 302 $ — 3 89 $ 201.5

LCertain investments that are measured at fair value using the net asset value (NAV) per share (or its equivalent) practical expedient have not been classified in the
fair value hierarchy.

Plan assets are invested in diversified portfolios of equity, debt and government securities, as well as a stable value fund. The aggregate allocation of
these investments is as follows:

2020 2019
Asset Category
Equity securities 58 % 60 %
Debt securities 24 20
Stable value funds 14 15
Other, including cash 4 5
Total 100 % 100 %

Our investment policy and strategies are established with a long-term view in mind. We strive for a sufficiently diversified asset mix to minimize the risk
of a material loss to the portfolio value due to the devaluation of any single investment. In determining the appropriate asset mix, our financial strength and
ability to fund potential shortfalls that might result from poor investment performance are considered. The assets in our Frozen Plan employ a liability-driven
investment strategy and have a target allocation of 60% fixed income and 40% equities. The remaining two significant plans have a target allocation of 75%
equities and 25% fixed income, as historical equity returns have tended to exceed bond returns over the long term.

Assets of our domestic plans represent the majority of plan assets and are allocated to seven different investments.
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Six are mutual funds, all of which are passively managed low-cost index funds, and include:

» U.S. Total Stock Market Index: Large-, mid-, and small-cap equity diversified across growth and value styles.

+ U.S. Large-Cap Index: Large-cap equity diversified across growth and value styles.

+ U.S. Small-Cap Index: Small-cap equity utilizing value style.

*  World ex US Index: International equity; broad exposure across developed and emerging non-U.S. equity markets.
* Long-term Bond Index: Diversified exposure to the long-term, investment-grade U.S. bond market.

*  Extended Duration Treasury Index: Diversified exposure to U.S. treasuries with maturities of 20-30 years.

The stable value fund consists of a fixed income portfolio offering consistent return and protection against interest rate volatility.

Future Contributions and Benefit Payments

We expect to contribute approximately $4.0 to our defined benefit pension plans in 2021.

Estimated benefit payments expected over the next 10 years are as follows:

2021 $ 13.0
2022 13.5
2023 14.1
2024 14.8
2025 15.0
2026-2030 73.5

Defined Contribution Plans

Total expense for defined contribution plans was as follows:

2020 2019 2018
401(k) Plan $ 68 $ 69 $ 2.2
Other defined contribution plans 4.9 5.3 4.1
$ 11.7 $ 122 $ 6.3

Expense for our 401(k) Plan increased in 2019, primarily due to the December 31, 2018 merger of the SBP and 401(k) Plan, as discussed in Note L, and
the implementation of automatic enrollment features (effective January 1, 2019).

Multi-employer Pension Plans

We have limited participation in two union-sponsored, defined benefit, multi-employer pension plans. These plans are not administered by us, and
contributions are determined in accordance with provisions of negotiated labor contracts. Aggregate contributions to these plans were immaterial for each of
the years presented. In addition to regular contributions, we could be obligated to pay additional contributions (known as complete or partial withdrawal
liabilities) if a plan has unfunded vested benefits. Factors that could impact the funded status of these plans include investment performance, changes in the
participant demographics, financial stability of contributing employers, and changes in actuarial assumptions. Withdrawal liability triggers could include a
plan's termination, a withdrawal of substantially all employers, or our voluntary withdrawal from the plan (such as decision to close a facility or the dissolution
of a collective bargaining unit). We have a very small share of the liability among the participants of these plans. Based upon the information available from
plan administrators, both of the multi-employer plans in which we participate are underfunded, and we estimate our aggregate share of potential withdrawal
liability for both plans to be $19.3. We have not recorded any material withdrawal liabilities for the years presented.
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As of January 1, 2021, we changed our method for valuing certain inventories (primarily domestic steel-related inventories) to the FIFO cost method
from the LIFO cost method. The effects of this change have been retrospectively applied to all periods presented. See Note A for additional information. This
change will result in approximately $21.0 of tax payments due over the next three years and is presented in the Deferred Income Taxes table on the line item

“Inventories” on page 51.

The components of earnings before income taxes are as follows:

Domestic
Foreign

Income tax expense is comprised of the following components:

Current
Federal
State and local
Foreign

Deferred
Federal
State and local
Foreign

Income tax expense, as a percentage of earnings before income taxes, differs from the statutory federal income tax rate as follows:

Statutory federal income tax rate

Increases (decreases) in rate resulting from:
State taxes, net of federal benefit
Tax effect of foreign operations
Global intangible low-taxed income
Current and deferred foreign withholding taxes
Stock-based compensation
Change in valuation allowance
Change in uncertain tax positions, net
Goodwill impairment
Other permanent differences, net
Other, net

Effective tax rate

Year Ended December 31
2020 2019 2018
$ 1153 $ 1689 $ 172.5
212.6 234.6 235.3
$ 3279 $ 403.5 $ 407.8
Year Ended December 31
2020 2019 2018
$ 369 $ 346 $ 21.2
5.3 4.9
51.0 48.7 55.6
95.7 88.6 81.7
(15.0) 2.2 135
(2.6) 9 (10.9)
(3.3) (5 (2)
(20.9) 8 2.4
$ 748 $ 89.4 $ 84.1
Year Ended December 31
2020 2019 2018
21.0 % 21.0 % 21.0 %
.8 1.3 1.1
2.2) 1.7) (.7)
(3) 2.3 7
2.7 1.3 3.6
(.6) (1.1) (.8)
8 4 (1.9)
6 (3) (3)
1.6 — —
(1.3) (.3) (1.3)
(.3) (.7) (.8)
22.8 % 222 % 20.6 %

For all periods presented, the tax rate benefited from income earned in various foreign jurisdictions at rates lower than the U.S. federal statutory rate,

primarily related to China, Croatia, and Luxembourg.
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In 2020, we recognized tax expense of $13.1, related to foreign withholding taxes of $8.9, a non-deductible goodwill impairment associated with our
Hydraulic Cylinders reporting unit of $5.3, and a Korean audit settlement of $3.2. These expenses were partially offset by prior year tax benefits totaling $3.9
from the Global Intangible Low-Taxed Income (GILTI) high-tax exception final regulations issued in 2020, and other net benefits of $.4.

In 2019, we recognized tax expense of $11.7, primarily related to GILTI of $9.3 and other net tax expenses of $2.4.

In 2018, we recognized tax expense of $1.2, primarily related to expenses totaling $14.7 related to current and deferred foreign withholding taxes, offset
by the net reduction of valuation allowances of $7.7 and other net benefits totaling $5.8.

We file tax returns in each jurisdiction where we are required to do so. In these jurisdictions, a statute of limitations period exists. After a statute period
expires, the tax authorities can no longer assess additional income tax for the expired period. In addition, once the statute expires we are no longer eligible to
file claims for refund for any tax that we may have overpaid.

Unrecognized Tax Benefits

The total amount of our gross unrecognized tax benefits at December 31, 2020 was $6.9, of which $5.3 would impact our effective tax rate, if recognized.
A reconciliation of the beginning and ending balance of our gross unrecognized tax benefits for the periods presented is as follows:
2020 2019 2018
Gross unrecognized tax benefits, January 1 $ 64 $ 82 $ 10.1
Gross increases—tax positions in prior periods 1 2.9 — —
Gross decreases—tax positions in prior periods (-4) (.4) (.5

Gross increases—current period tax positions .6 7 1.3
Change due to exchange rate fluctuations Nl — (-2)
Settlements ! 3.2) — —
Lapse of statute of limitations (1.1) (2.1) (2.5)
Gross unrecognized tax benefits, December 31 5.3 6.4 8.2
Interest 1.4 1.9 24
Penalties 2 3 4
Total gross unrecognized tax benefits, December 31 $ 69 $ 86 $ 11.0

11n 2020, we effectively settled a tax matter in Korea totaling $2.9 plus $.3 in interest.

We recognize interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits as part of income tax expense in the Consolidated Statements of Operations,
which is consistent with prior reporting periods.

We are currently in various stages of audit by certain governmental tax authorities. We have established liabilities for unrecognized tax benefits as
appropriate, with such amounts representing a reasonable provision for taxes we ultimately might be required to pay. However, these liabilities could be
adjusted over time as more information becomes known and management continues to evaluate the progress of these examinations. We are no longer subject to
significant U.S. federal tax examinations for years prior to 2016, or significant U.S. state or foreign income tax examinations for years prior to 2013.

It is reasonably possible that the resolution of certain tax audits could reduce our unrecognized tax benefits within the next 12 months, as certain tax

positions may either be sustained on audit or we may agree to certain adjustments, or resulting from the expiration of statutes of limitations in various
jurisdictions. It is not expected that any change would have a material impact on our Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Deferred Income Taxes

Deferred income taxes are provided for the temporary differences between the financial reporting basis and the tax basis of our assets and liabilities. The
major temporary differences and their associated deferred tax assets or liabilities are as follows:

December 31

2020 2019
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
Property, plant and equipment $ 174 $ 817) $ 191 $ (84.8)
Inventories 2.6 (21.4) 2.3 (22.8)
Accrued expenses 68.1 (6.3) 59.9 4.2)
Net operating losses and other tax carryforwards 32.3 — 31.9 —
Pension cost and other post-retirement benefits 22.3 (.7) 18.2 (.7)
Intangible assets 2 (194.7) 3 (199.5)
Derivative financial instruments 2.4 (2.4) 3.0 1.7)
Tax on undistributed earnings (primarily from Canada and China) — (14.8) — (16.8)
Uncertain tax positions 1.1 — 1.4 —
Other 5.7 (6.4) 5.2 (6.3)
Gross deferred tax assets (liabilities) 152.1 (328.4) 141.3 (336.8)
Valuation allowance (18.1) — (16.8) —
Total deferred taxes $ 1340 $ (328.4) $ 1245 $ (336.8)
Net deferred tax liability $ (194.4) $ (212.3)
Deferred tax assets (liabilities) included in the Consolidated Balance Sheets are as follows:
December 31
2020 2019

Sundry $ 1.0 $ 11.5

Deferred income taxes (205.4) (223.8)

$ (194.4) $ (212.3)

Significant fluctuations in our deferred taxes from 2019 to 2020 relate to the following:

»  The increase of $8.2 in our deferred tax asset associated with accrued expenses relates primarily to changes in our bad debt reserve and accrued
employee benefits; and

»  The decrease of $4.8 in our deferred tax liability associated with intangible assets relates primarily to the amortization of various intangibles, including
those related to the acquisition of ECS in 2019.

The valuation allowance recorded primarily relates to net operating loss, tax credit, and capital loss carryforwards for which utilization is uncertain.
Cumulative tax losses in certain state and foreign jurisdictions during recent years, limited carryforward periods in certain jurisdictions, future reversals of
existing taxable temporary differences, and reasonable tax planning strategies were among the factors considered in determining the valuation allowance.
Individually, none of these tax carryforwards presents a material exposure.

Most of our tax carryforwards have expiration dates that vary generally over the next 20 years, with no amount greater than $10.0 expiring in any one
year.

Deferred withholding taxes (tax on undistributed earnings) have been provided on the earnings of our foreign subsidiaries to the extent it is anticipated
that the earnings will be remitted in the future as dividends. We are not asserting permanent reinvestment on $686.3 of our earnings, and have accrued tax on
these undistributed earnings as presented in the table above.
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Foreign withholding taxes have not been provided on certain foreign earnings which are indefinitely reinvested outside the U.S. The cumulative
undistributed earnings which are indefinitely reinvested as of December 31, 2020, are $335.3. If such earnings were repatriated to the U.S. through dividends,
the resulting incremental tax expense would approximate $16.8, based on present income tax laws.

O—Other (Income) Expense

The components of other (income) expense were as follows:

Year Ended December 31
2020 2019 2018
Loss (gain) on sales of assets and businesses $ — 3 (5.0) $ (1.9
Restructuring charges (See Note E) 7.6 8.1 7.8
Currency loss 24 3.0 .8
(Gain) loss from diversified investments associated with Executive Stock Unit Program (See Note L) (6.0) (7.2) 1.9
COVID-19 government subsidies L (21.4) — —
Non-service pension (income) expense (See Note M) (1.1) 1.8 (1.3)
Other income (3.9) (4.3) (6.5)
$ (22.4) $ (36) $ .8

! This represents government subsidies primarily from our international locations, which do not contain material restrictions on our operations, sources
of funding or otherwise. In the U.S., we are deferring our payment of employer's Social Security match into 2021 and 2022 as discussed in Note I.
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P—Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

The following table sets forth the changes in each component of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss):

Balance at January 1, 2018
Other comprehensive (loss)
Reclassifications, pretax L
Income tax effect
Balance at December 31, 2018
Other comprehensive income (loss)
Reclassifications, pretax Z
Income tax effect
Balance at December 31, 2019
Other comprehensive income (loss)
Reclassifications, pretax B
Income tax effect
Attributable to noncontrolling interest
Balance at December 31, 2020

12018 pretax reclassifications are comprised of:
Net trade sales
Cost of goods sold; selling and administrative expenses
Interest expense
Other (income) expense, net
Total 2018 reclassifications, pretax

22019 pretax reclassifications are comprised of:
Net trade sales
Cost of goods sold; selling and administrative expenses
Interest expense
Other (income) expense, net
Total 2019 reclassifications, pretax

32020 pretax reclassifications are comprised of:
Net trade sales
Cost of goods sold; selling and administrative expenses
Interest expense
Other (income) expense, net
Total 2020 reclassifications, pretax

EXHIBIT 99.3

Foreign Defined Accumulated
Currency Cash Benefit

Translation Flow Pension Comprehensive
Adjustments Hedges Plans Income (Loss)

$ 405 $ (11.5) $ (385) $ (9.5)

(67.0) (3.1) (3.7) (73.8)

— 2.8 2.6 5.4

—_ —_ 3 3

(26.5) (11.8) (39.3) (77.6)

5.0 2.5 (18.6) (11.1)

— 7.4 2.9 10.3

— (2.2) 3.8 1.6

(21.5) 4.1) (51.2) (76.8)

27.8 4.5 (15.8) 16.5

— 24 4.0 6.4

— (1.4) 2.8 14

1 = = 1

$ 64 $ 14 $ 60.2) $ (52.4)

$ — 3 26) $ — S (2.6)

— 1.1 — 1.1

— 4.3 — 4.3

— — 2.6 2.6

$ — $ 28 $ 26 $ 5.4

$ — 3 36 $ — S 36

— (-6) — (-6)

_ 4.4 — 4.4

— — 2.9 2.9

$ — 74 % 29 $ 10.3

$ — 3 (14) $ — % (1.4)

— (7) — (7)

— 45 — 45

— — 4.0 4.0

$ — § 24 % 40 $ 6.4
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Q—Fair Value
We utilize fair value measures for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

Items measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Fair value measurements are established using a three-level valuation hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair
value into the following categories:

*  Level 1: Quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets.

* Level 2: Inputs, other than quoted prices included in Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability either directly or indirectly. Short-term
investments in this category are valued using discounted cash flow techniques with all significant inputs derived from or corroborated by observable
market data. Derivative assets and liabilities in this category are valued using models that consider various assumptions and information from market-
corroborated sources. The models used are primarily industry-standard models that consider items such as quoted prices, market interest rate curves
applicable to the instruments being valued as of the end of each period, discounted cash flows, volatility factors, current market, and contractual prices
for the underlying instruments, as well as other relevant economic measures. Substantially all of these assumptions are observable in the marketplace,
can be derived from observable data, or are supported by observable levels at which transactions are executed in the marketplace.

*  Level 3: Unobservable inputs that are not corroborated by market data.

The areas in which we utilize fair value measures of financial assets and liabilities are presented in the table below:

As of December 31, 2020
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets:
Cash equivalents:
Bank time deposits with original maturities of three months or less $ — $ 156.5 $ — $ 156.5
Derivative assets ! (see Note S) — 7.9 — 7.9
Diversified investments associated with the ESUP (see Note L) 45.9 — — 45.9
Total assets $ 459 $ 1644 $ — $ 210.3
Liabilities:

Derivative liabilities ! (see Note S) $ — 3 25 % — 5 2.5

Liabilities associated with the ESUP ! (see Note L) 45.4 — — 45.4
Total liabilities $ 454 $ 25 §$ — $ 47.9

As of December 31, 2019
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets:

Cash equivalents:

Bank time deposits with original maturities of three months or less $ — 5 153.7 $ — 5 153.7
Derivative assets * (see Note S) — 4.0 — 4.0
Diversified investments associated with the ESUP ! (see Note L) 41.0 — — 41.0

Total assets $ 41.0 $ 157.7  $ — $ 198.7
Liabilities:
Derivative liabilities ! (see Note S) $ — 5 9 3 — 5 .9
Liabilities associated with the ESUP ! (see Note L) 40.6 — — 40.6
Total liabilities $ 40.6 $ 9 $ — 3 41.5

! Includes both current and long-term amounts.
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There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 for any of the periods presented.

The fair value for fixed rate debt (Level 1) was approximately $170.0 greater than carrying value of $1,587.6 at December 31, 2020 and was
approximately $100.0 greater than carrying value of $1,585.6 at December 31, 2019.

Items measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis

The primary areas in which we utilize fair value measures of non-financial assets and liabilities are allocating purchase price to the assets and liabilities
of acquired companies (Note R) and evaluating long-term assets (including goodwill) for potential impairment (Note C). Determining fair values for these
items requires significant judgment and includes a variety of methods and models that utilize significant Level 3 inputs (Note A).

R—Acquisitions

The following table contains the estimated fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition for all acquisitions during

the periods presented (using inputs discussed in Note A). Of the goodwill included in the table below, approximately $135.0 is expected to be deductible for tax
purposes.

2019 2018

Accounts receivable $ 752 $ 19.6
Inventory 63.2 26.2
Property, plant and equipment 82.3 28.2
Goodwill (see Note D) 566.3 28.1
Other intangible assets (see Note D)

Customer relationships (5 to 15-year life) 378.9 19.4

Technology (5 to 15-year life) 173.3 4.9

Trademarks and trade names (15-year life) 67.1 2.7

Non-compete agreements and other (5 to 15-year life) 28.7 1.9
Other current and long-term assets 29.4 .8
Current liabilities (48.2) (11.9)
Deferred income taxes (127.4) 9.9)
Long-term liabilities (23.7) (.8)
Net cash consideration $ 1,265.1 $ 109.2

The following table summarizes acquisitions for the periods presented.
Number of
Year Ended Acquisitions Segment Product/Service
December 31, 2020 None
December 31, 2019 2 Bedding Products A leader in proprietary specialized foam technology, primarily for the
bedding and furniture industries;
Furniture, Flooring & Textile Manufacturer and distributor of geosynthetic and mine ventilation
Products products
December 31, 2018 3 Furniture, Flooring & Textile Manufacturer and distributor of home and garden products; Manufacturer
Products; and distributor of silt fence;
Specialized Products Engineered hydraulic cylinders

Certain of our prior years' acquisition agreements provide for additional consideration to be paid in cash at a later date and are recorded as a liability at
the acquisition date. At December 31, 2020, we have no liability for future payments. At December 31, 2019, our liability for these future payments was $9.2.
Additional consideration, including interest, paid on prior year acquisitions was $8.4, $1.1, and $9.3 for the years ended 2020, 2019, and 2018, respectively.
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A brief description of our acquisition activity by year is included below.

N

02

(w)

No businesses were acquired during 2020.

N

01

o

We acquired two businesses:

ECS, a leader in proprietary specialized foam technology, primarily for the bedding and furniture industries. Through this acquisition, we gained
critical capabilities in proprietary foam technology, along with scale in the production of private label finished mattresses. The acquisition date was
January 16. The purchase price was $1,244.3 and, upon finalization of the purchase price allocation, added $559.3 of goodwill. The most significant
other intangibles added were customer relationships and technology, whose finalized values were $372.3 and $173.3, respectively. There was no
contingent consideration associated with this acquisition.

A manufacturer and distributor of geosynthetic and mine ventilation products, expanding the geographic scope and capabilities of our Geo
Components business unit. The acquisition date was December 9. The purchase price was $20.6 and added $7.6 of goodwill.

2018

We acquired three businesses:

A manufacturer and distributor of innovative home and garden products found at most major retailers for $19.1. This acquisition provides a solid
foundation on which to continue growing our retail market presence in our Geo Components business unit.

A manufacturer and distributor of silt fence, a core product for our Geo Components business unit, for $2.6.

Precision Hydraulic Cylinders (PHC), a leading global manufacturer of engineered hydraulic cylinders primarily for the materials handling market.
The purchase price was $87.4 and added $26.9 of goodwill. PHC serves a market of mainly large OEM customers utilizing highly engineered
components with long product life-cycles that represent a small part of the end product’s cost. PHC operates within the Specialized Products segment.
As discussed in Note C, we began seeing some market softness in the industries served by this reporting unit in 2019. In the second quarter of 2020,
anticipated longer-term economic impacts of COVID-19 lowered expectations of future revenue and profitability causing its fair value to fall below its
carrying value, and its goodwill was fully impaired.
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Pro forma Results

The following table summarizes, on an unaudited pro forma basis, our combined results of operations, including ECS, as though the acquisition had
occurred as of January 1, 2018. We have not provided pro forma results of operations related to other acquisitions, as these results were not material.

The unaudited proforma financial information below is not necessarily indicative of the results of operations that would have been realized had the ECS
acquisition occurred as of January 1, 2018, nor is it meant to be indicative of any future results of operations. It does not include benefits expected from
revenue or product mix enhancements, operating synergies or cost savings that may be realized, or any estimated future costs that may be incurred to integrate
the ECS business.

Year Ended December 31
2019 2018
Net trade sales $ 47741 $ 4,870.8
Net earnings 315.7 301.5
EPS basic 2.34 2.24
EPS diluted 2.34 2.23

The information above reflects pro forma adjustments based on available information and certain assumptions that we believe are reasonable, including:

*  Amortization and depreciation adjustments relating to fair value estimates of intangible and tangible assets;

» Incremental interest expense on debt incurred in connection with the ECS acquisition;

*  Amortization of the fair value adjustment to inventory as though the transaction occurred on January 1, 2018;
*  Recognition of transaction costs as though the transaction occurred on January 1, 2018; and

»  Estimated tax impacts of the pro forma adjustments.

S—Derivative Financial Instruments

Cash Flow Hedges

Derivative financial instruments that we use to hedge forecasted transactions and anticipated cash flows are as follows:
Currency Cash Flow Hedges—The foreign currency hedges manage risk associated with exchange rate volatility of various currencies.

Interest Rate Cash Flow Hedges—We have also occasionally used interest rate cash flow hedges to manage interest rate risks.

The effective changes in fair value of unexpired contracts are recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income and reclassified to income or
expense in the period in which earnings are impacted. Cash flows from settled contracts are presented in the category consistent with the nature of the item
being hedged. (Settlements associated with the sale or production of product are presented in operating cash flows, and settlements associated with debt
issuance are presented in financing cash flows.)

Fair Value Hedges and Derivatives not Designated as Hedging Instruments

These derivatives typically manage foreign currency risk associated with subsidiaries’ assets and liabilities, and gains or losses are recognized currently
in earnings. Cash flows from settled contracts are presented in the category consistent with the nature of the item being hedged.

57



EXHIBIT 99.3

The following table presents assets and liabilities representing the fair value of our most significant derivative financial instruments. The fair values of
the derivatives reflect the change in the market value of the derivative from the date of the trade execution and do not consider the offsetting underlying hedged
item.

As of December 31, 2020

Assets Liabilities
Total USD
Expiring at Equivalent
various dates Notional Other Current Other Current Other Long-Term
Derivatives Desig d as Hedging Instr through: Amount Assets Sundry Liabilities Liabilities
Cash flow hedges:
Currency hedges:
Future USD sales/purchases of Canadian, Chinese,
European, South Korean, Swiss and UK
subsidiaries Jun2022 $ 1493 $ 63 $ 1 $ 1.2 $ 1
Future MXN purchases of a USD subsidiary Jun 2022 9.3 7 1 — —
Future DKK sales of Polish subsidiary Jun 2022 18.5 — — .5 1
Future EUR sales of Chinese and UK subsidiaries Jun 2022 46.7 — — 2 A1
Total cash flow hedges 7.0 2 1.9 3
Fair value hedges:
Intercompany and third party receivables and
payables exposed to multiple currencies (DKK,
EUR, MXN, USD and ZAR) in various countries
(CAD, CNY, GBP, PLN and USD) Jun 2021 49.5 3 — Nl —
Total fair value hedges 3 — 1 —
Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments
Non-deliverable hedges (EUR and USD) exposed to the
CNY Dec 2021 14.4 4 — — —
Hedge of USD receivable on CAD subsidiary Jan 2021 18.5 — — 2 —
Total derivatives not designated as hedging
instruments 4 — 2 —
Total derivatives $ 77 $ 2 3 22 $ .3
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As of December 31, 2019
Assets Liabilities
Total USD
Expiring at Equivalent
various dates Notional Other Current Other Current
Derivatives Designated as Hedging Instruments through: Amount Assets Sundry Liabilities
Cash flow hedges:
Currency hedges:
Future USD sales/purchases of Canadian, Chinese,
European, South Korean, Swiss and UK subsidiaries Sep 2021 $ 1385 $ 13 $ 2 % 7
Future MXN purchases of a USD subsidiary Jun 2021 9.8 .5 1 —
Future DKK sales of Polish subsidiary Jun 2021 211 3 — —
Future EUR sales of Chinese and UK subsidiaries Jun 2021 29.9 .7 — —
Total cash flow hedges 2.8 3 7
Fair value hedges:
Intercompany and third party receivables and
payables exposed to multiple currencies (DKK, EUR,
MXN, USD and ZAR) in various countries (CAD,
CHF, CNY, GBP, PLN and USD) May 2020 112.0 .8 — Nl
Total fair value hedges .8 — 1
Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments
Non-deliverable hedges (EUR and USD) exposed to the
CNY Dec 2020 10.1 1 — —
Hedge of USD receivable on CAD subsidiary Jan 2020 5.0 — — 1
Total derivatives not designated as hedging
instruments N —
Total derivatives $ 3.7 $ 3 $

The following table sets forth the pretax (gains) losses for our hedging activities for the years presented. This schedule includes reclassifications from
accumulated other comprehensive income as well as derivative settlements recorded directly to income or expense.

Amount of (Gain) Loss
Recorded in Income

for the Year Ended
December 31

Derivatives Designated as Hedging Instruments Income Statement Caption 2020 2019 2018
Interest rate cash flow hedges Interest expense $ 45 $ 44 $ 4.3
Currency cash flow hedges Net trade sales 1.1 2.7 (2.0)
Currency cash flow hedges Cost of goods sold (.1) (1.6) 4
Currency cash flow hedges Other (income) expense, net — 1 —

Total cash flow hedges 5.5 5.6 2.7
Fair value hedges Other (income) expense, net (.2) .8 1.2
Derivatives Not Designated as Hedging Instruments Other (income) expense, net 2 1 (1.6)
Total derivative instruments $ 55 $ 65 $ 2.3
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T—Contingencies

We are a party to various proceedings and matters involving employment, intellectual property, environmental, taxation, vehicle-related personal injury,
antitrust, and other laws. When it is probable, in management's judgment, that we may incur monetary damages or other costs resulting from these proceedings
or other claims, and we can reasonably estimate the amounts, we record appropriate accruals in the financial statements and make charges against earnings. For
all periods presented, we have recorded no material charges against earnings. Also, when it is reasonably possible that we may incur additional loss in excess of
recorded accruals, and we can reasonably estimate the additional losses or range of losses, we disclose such additional reasonably possible losses in these notes.

Brazilian Value-Added Tax Matters
All dollar amounts presented in this section reflect the U.S. Dollar (USD) equivalent of Brazilian Real (BRL).

We deny all allegations in the below Brazilian tax actions. We believe that we have valid bases to contest such actions and are vigorously defending
ourselves. However, these contingencies are subject to uncertainties, and based on current known facts, we believe that it is reasonably possible (but not
probable) that we may incur losses of approximately $10.7, including interest and attorney fees, with respect to all of these assessments, except for the March
27, 2014 assessment of the $.5 from the State of Sdo Paulo, Brazil (SSP), which has been fully accrued and is discussed below. Therefore, because it is not
probable we will incur a loss, no accrual has been recorded for Brazilian value-added tax (VAT) matters (except for the aforementioned March 27, 2014 SSP
assessment). As of the date of this filing, we have $8.2 on deposit with the Brazilian government to partially mitigate interest and penalties that may accrue,
while we work through these matters. If we are successful in our defense of these assessments, the deposits are refundable with interest. These deposits are
recorded as a long-term asset on our balance sheet.

Brazilian Federal Cases. On December 22 and December 29, 2011, and December 17, 2012, the Brazilian Finance Ministry, Federal Revenue Office
(Finance Ministry) issued notices of violation against our wholly-owned subsidiary, Leggett & Platt do Brasil Ltda. (L&P Brazil) in the amount of $1.5 ($2.3
with updated interest), $.1, and $2.7 ($3.2 with updated interest), respectively. The Finance Ministry claimed that for November 2006 and continuing through
2011, L&P Brazil used an incorrect tariff code for the collection and payment of VAT primarily on the sale of mattress innerspring units in Brazil (VAT Rate
Dispute). L&P Brazil denied the violations. On December 4, 2015 and October 18, 2018, we filed actions related to the $3.2 assessment and the $2.3
assessment, respectively, in Sorocaba Federal Court. On August 17, 2020, the Sorocaba Federal Court ruled in our favor and annulled the $3.2 assessment. On
October 9, 2020, the Federal Treasury filed an appeal which is pending. The $.1 assessment remains pending at the second administrative level. The action
seeking to annul the $2.3 assessment also remains pending.

In addition, L&P Brazil received assessments on December 22, 2011, and June 26, July 2, and November 5, 2012, September 13, 2013, and September 4,
2014 from the Finance Ministry where it challenged L&P Brazil’s use of tax credits in years 2005 through 2012. Such credits are generated based upon the VAT
rate used by L&P Brazil on the sale of mattress innersprings. L&P Brazil filed its defenses denying the assessments. L&P Brazil received aggregate
assessments totaling $1.9 updated with interest on these denials of tax credit matters.

On February 1, 2013, the Finance Ministry filed a Tax Collection action against L&P Brazil in the Camanducaia Judicial District Court, and also, on June
26, 2014, issued a notice of violation, alleging, in the aggregate, the untimely payment of $.6 of social security and social assistance payments from September
to October 2010, 2011, and 2012. L&P Brazil argued the payments were not required because of the application of tax credits generated by L&P Brazil's use of
a correct VAT rate on the sale of mattress innersprings. These cases remain pending.

We also received a small number of other assessments from the Finance Ministry on the same or related subject matter that are immaterial individually
and in the aggregate.

State of Sdo Paulo, Brazil Cases. SSP, on October 4, 2012, issued a Tax Assessment against L&P Brazil in the amount of $.9 for the tax years 2009
through 2011 regarding the same VAT Rate Dispute but as applicable to the sale of mattress innerspring units in the SSP (SSP VAT Rate Dispute). On June 21,
2013, the SSP converted the Tax Assessment to a tax collection action against L&P Brazil in the amount of $1.2 ($1.5 with updated interest) in Sorocaba
Judicial District Court. L&P Brazil denied all allegations. This case remains pending.

L&P Brazil also received a Notice of Tax Assessment from the SSP dated March 27, 2014, in the amount of $.5 for tax years January 2011 through
August 2012 regarding the SSP VAT Rate Dispute. L&P Brazil filed its response denying the allegations, but the tax assessment was maintained at the
administrative level. On June 9, 2016, L&P Brazil filed an
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action in Sorocaba State Court to annul the entire assessment. The Court ruled against L&P Brazil and the Court of Appeals upheld the unfavorable ruling. The
High Court denied our appeal, and L&P Brazil filed an interlocutory appeal. On November 5, 2019, SSP announced an amnesty program that provides
discounts on penalties and interest on SSP assessments. We decided to move forward with the amnesty program as it relates to the $.5 assessment. We expect to
pay $.5 to resolve this matter using a portion of our $.6 cash deposit. On October 6, 2020, the Court began the process of releasing part of L&P Brazil's cash
deposit to pay the $.5. We expect the return of approximately $.1 consisting of cash deposit and accrued interest in the second quarter of 2021.

State of Minas Gerais, Brazil Cases. On December 18, 2012, the State of Minas Gerais, Brazil issued a tax assessment to L&P Brazil relating to the
same VAT Rate Dispute but as applicable to the sale of mattress innerspring units in Minas Gerais from March 2008 through August 2012 in the amount of $.3.
L&P Brazil filed its response denying any violation. The Minas Gerais Taxpayer's Council ruled against us, and L&P Brazil filed a Motion to Stay the
Execution of Judgment in Camanducaia Judicial District Court, which remains pending.

Accruals and Reasonably Possible Losses in Excess of Accruals

Accruals for Probable Losses

Although we deny liability in all currently threatened or pending litigation proceedings in which we are or may be a party, and believe that we have valid
bases to contest all claims threatened or made against us, we recorded a litigation contingency accrual for our reasonable estimate of probable loss for pending
and threatened litigation proceedings, in aggregate, as follows:

Year Ended December 31
2020 2019 2018
Litigation contingency accrual - Beginning of period $ 7 $ 19 $ 4
Adjustment to accruals - expense 1 .6 1.8
Currency (.1) — —
Cash payments (.2) (1.8) (.3)
Litigation contingency accrual - End of period $ 5 8 7 $ 1.9

The above litigation contingency accruals do not include accrued expenses related to workers' compensation, vehicle-related personal injury, product and
general liability claims, taxation issues, and environmental matters, some of which may contain a portion of litigation expense. However, any litigation expense
associated with these categories is not anticipated to have a material effect on our financial condition, results of operations or cash flows. For more information
regarding accrued expenses, see Note I under "Accrued expenses".

Reasonably Possible Losses in Excess of Accruals

Although there are a number of uncertainties and potential outcomes associated with all of our pending or threatened litigation proceedings, we believe,
based on current known facts, that additional losses, if any, are not expected to materially affect our consolidated financial position, results of operations, or
cash flows. However, based upon current known facts, as of December 31, 2020, aggregate reasonably possible (but not probable, and therefore not accrued)
losses in excess of the accruals noted above are estimated to be $11.5, including $10.7 for Brazilian VAT matters disclosed above and $.8 for other matters. If
our assumptions or analyses regarding these contingencies are incorrect, or if facts change, we could realize losses in excess of the recorded accruals (and in
excess of the $11.5 referenced above), which could have a material negative impact on our financial condition, results of operations, and cash flows.

U—Risks and Uncertainties

Because of the COVID-19 pandemic, various governments in Asia, Europe, North America, and elsewhere have instituted, and may reinstitute,
quarantines, shelter-in-place or stay-at-home orders, or restrictions on public gatherings as well as limitations on social interactions. These restrictions and
limitations have had, and could further have, an adverse effect on the economies and financial markets of the countries where our products, or our customers’
products, are sold. The resulting economic downturn has had, and could further have, an effect on the demand for our products and our customers’ products,
growth rates in the industries in which we participate, and opportunities in these industries.
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We have manufacturing facilities in the United States and 16 other countries. All of these countries have been affected by the COVID-19 pandemic. All of
our facilities are open and running at this time. From time to time we have some capacity restrictions on our plants due to governmental orders in various parts
of the world. We have been and could be further negatively affected by governmental action in any one or more of the countries in which we operate by the
imposition, or re-imposition, of restrictive measures concerning shelter-in-place or stay-at-home orders, public gatherings and human interactions, mandatory
closures of retail establishments that sell our products or our customers’ products, travel restrictions, and restrictions on the import or export of products.

The U.S. and other governments have ordered that certain nonwoven fabrics used to produce ComfortCore® innersprings be prioritized to produce
medical supplies, resulting in shortages of fabrics used for non-medical applications. These shortages and strong bedding demand have caused the Company
temporarily to be unable to supply full industry demand for ComfortCore®. We are engaging with customers in an effort to work through these issues. The
shortages have resulted in higher pricing for nonwoven fabrics. If we are unable to obtain the fabrics, cannot pass the cost along to our customers, are required
to modify existing contracts to accommodate customers, or pay damage claims to customers, our results of operations may be negatively impacted. As demand
has improved, we also have experienced some temporary labor shortages. We are in the process of hiring additional employees and adding equipment,
particularly in our U.S. Spring business, to meet this demand.

Because of the shift of production by semiconductor microchip manufacturers to consumer electronics, such as laptops and tablets for home-schooling
and home-offices, and away from automotive applications during the COVID-19 related automotive industry shutdowns in 2020, currently there is a shortage
of microchips in the automotive industry. Our Automotive Group uses the microchips in seat comfort products, and to a lesser extent in motors and actuators.
Although, to date, our Automotive Group has been able to obtain an adequate supply of microchips, we are dependent on our suppliers to deliver these
microchips in accordance with our production schedule, and a shortage of the microchips can disrupt our operations and our ability to deliver products to our
customers. Also, because of the industry shortage, automotive OEMs and other suppliers have not been able to secure an adequate supply of microchips, and as
a result have reduced their production of automobiles or parts, which in turn has recently reduced, and may continue to reduce our sale of products. If we
cannot secure an adequate supply of microchips in our supply chain, and the microchips cannot be sourced from a different supplier, or the automotive OEMs
and other suppliers continue to reduce their production as a result of such shortage, this may negatively impact our sales, earnings and financial condition.

Depending on the length and severity of the COVID-19 pandemic, and the timing and effectiveness of any vaccines, our ability to keep our manufacturing
operations open or fully operational, build and maintain appropriate labor levels, obtain necessary raw materials and parts, and ship finished products to
customers may be partially or completely disrupted, either on a temporary or prolonged basis. The continued realization of these risks to our manufacturing
operations, labor force, and supply chain could also increase labor, commodity, and energy costs.

Although not directly related to the pandemic, chemical shortages are ongoing and are expected to continue at least through mid-2021. These shortages
have resulted in higher pricing for chemicals. If we are unable to obtain the chemicals or pass the cost along to our customers, our results of operations may be
negatively impacted. Also, some facilities have experienced problems delivering products to customers because of travel restrictions and disruption in logistics
necessary to import, export, or transfer products across borders. Currently, our supply chains have also been hampered by congested ports.
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As of January 1, 2021, we changed our method for valuing certain inventories (primarily domestic steel-related inventories) to the first-in, first out (FIFO) cost method
from the last-in, first out (LIFO) cost method. The effects of this change have been retrospectively applied to all periods presented. See Note A on page 11 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements in Exhibit 99.3 attached to this Form 8-K for additional information.

Year ended December 31, (Amounts in millions, except per share data) First 14 Second 2 Third 35 Fourth 6 Total
2020
Net trade sales $ 1,045.5 845.1 1,207.6 1,182.0 $ 4,280.2
Gross profit 220.7 146.6 269.7 267.1 904.1
Earnings before income taxes 58.6 2.3 129.8 137.2 327.9
Net earnings (loss) 44.1 (6.1) 107.1 108.0 253.1
(Earnings) attributable to noncontrolling interest, net of tax — — (1) — (1)
Net earnings (loss) attributable to Leggett & Platt, Inc. common shareholders $ 44.1 (6.1) 107.0 108.0 $ 253.0
Net earnings (loss) per share attributable to Leggett & Platt, Inc. common shareholders

Basic $ 33 (.05) .79 79 1.86

Diluted $ 33 (.05) .79 .79 1.86
2019
Net trade sales $ 1,155.1 1,213.2 1,239.3 11,1449 $ 4,752.5
Gross profit 234.1 260.2 269.6 260.1 1,024.0
Earnings before income taxes 79.3 104.6 117.1 102.5 403.5
Net earnings 62.1 79.2 95.1 77.7 314.1
Loss (earnings) attributable to noncontrolling interest, net of tax 1 (.1) — (.1) (.1)
Net earnings attributable to Leggett & Platt, Inc. common shareholders $ 62.2 79.1 95.1 776 $ 314.0
Net earnings per share attributable to Leggett & Platt, Inc. common shareholders

Basic $ .46 .59 71 .57 2.33

Diluted $ 46 .59 .70 .57 2.32

All items below are shown pretax.

1

o 0o N W

First quarter 2020 Net earnings include a charge of $8 for note impairment (Note H); $4 charge for stock write-off from a prior year divestiture (Note C)

Second quarter 2020 Net earnings include a charge of $25 for goodwill impairment (Note C); $2 charge for restructuring (Note E); decreases from the
impact of lower sales primarily from pandemic-related economic declines across most of our businesses (Note U).

Third quarter 2020 Net earnings include a charge of $6 for restructuring (Note E)

First quarter 2019 Net earnings include a charge of $6 for restructuring (Note E); $1 charge for transaction costs related to the ECS acquisition (Note R)

Third quarter 2019 Net earnings include a charge of $2 for restructuring (Note E)

Fourth quarter 2019 Net earnings include a charge of $3 for restructuring (Note E)
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SCHEDULE II—VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS AND RESERVES

Column A

Description
Year ended December 31, 2020
Allowance for doubtful receivables
Tax valuation allowance

Year ended December 31, 2019
Allowance for doubtful receivables
Tax valuation allowance

Year ended December 31, 2018
Allowance for doubtful receivables
Tax valuation allowance

(Amounts in millions)

EXHIBIT 99.3

Column B Column C Column D Column E
Additions
Balance (Credited)
at to Cost Balance
Beginnin, and at End of
of Perio Expenses Deductions Period
2
$ 268" $ 17.1 19° $ 42.0
$ 16.8 $ 2.5 1.2 $ 18.1
2
$ 20.2 $ 2.8 (.5) $ 23.5
$ 132§ 1.5 1) s 16.8
2
$ 4.9 $ 16.7 1.4 $ 20.2
$ 242 $ (7.8) 32 $ 13.2

Beginning balance adjusted for implementation of ASU 2016-13 "Financial Instruments-Credit Losses" (Topic 326).

Uncollectible accounts charged off, net of recoveries.
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